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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Santa Rosa County, Florida,
(the “County”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of September 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplemental Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 12, the budgetary comparison schedules on
pages 54 and 55, and the schedules of funding progress and employer contributions for other postemployment benefits on page 56 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Supplemental Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The schedule of receipts and
expenditures of funds related to the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Rules of the Auditor General, State of Florida, and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The schedule of receipts and expenditures of funds related to the
Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of receipts and
expenditures of funds related to the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 23, 2015,
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

March 23, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Management’s discussion and analysis provides an objective and easily readable analysis of Santa Rosa
County’s (County) financial activities. The analysis provides summary financial information for the County and
should be read in conjunction with the County’s financial statements.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The County’s basic financial statements comprise three components; 1) Government-wide financial statements,
2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the financial statements. The Government-wide financial
statements present an overall picture of the County’s financial position and results of operations. The Fund
financial statements present financial information for the County’s major funds and non-major funds in the
aggregate. The Notes to the financial statements provide additional information essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the Government-wide and Fund financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.
The Government-wide financial statements are the statement of net position and the statement of activities.
These statements use accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. Emphasis is
placed on the net position of governmental activities and business-type activities and the change in net position.
Governmental Activities are primarily supported by property taxes, sales taxes, federal and state grants, and
state shared revenues. Business-type Activities are supported by charges to the users of those activities, such as
water and sewer service charges.
The statement of net position presents information on all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources of the County, with the difference between assets plus deferred outflows and
liabilities and deferred inflows reported as net position. Net position is reported in three categories: 1) net
investment in capital assets, 2) restricted, and 3) unrestricted. Assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred
inflows and net position are reported for all Governmental Activities separate from the assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position of Business-type Activities.
The statement of activities presents information on all revenues and expenses of the County and the change in
net position. Expenses are reported by major function and program revenues relating to those functions are
reported, providing the net cost of all functions provided by the County. To assist in understanding the
County’s operations, expenses have been reported as governmental activities or business-type activities.
Governmental Activities financed by the County include public safety, physical environment, transportation,
economic environment, human services, culture and recreation, and general government services. Businesstype Activities financed by user charges include water and sewer services, solid waste disposal, and hangar
leases.
Fund financial statements present financial information for governmental funds and proprietary funds. These
statements provide financial information for the major funds of the County. Governmental fund financial
statements provide information on the current assets and liabilities of the funds, changes in current financial
resources (revenues and expenditures), and current available resources. The proprietary funds financial
statements provide information on all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows of the funds,
changes in the economic resources (revenues and expenses), and total economic resources.
Fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances for all governmental funds. A statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances - budget and actual, is provided for the County’s General Fund and major governmental funds as
required supplemental information. For the proprietary funds, which include an internal service fund in addition
to business-type activities, a statement of net position; a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in
fund net position; and a statement of cash flows are presented. Fund financial statements provide more
detailed information about the County’s activities.
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Individual funds are established by the County to track revenues that are restricted to certain uses, comply with
legal requirements, or account for the use of state and federal grants.
The government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements provide different pictures of the
County. The government-wide financial statements provide an overall picture of the County’s financial
standing, split between Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities. These statements are comparable
to private-sector companies and give a good understanding of the County’s overall financial health and how the
County paid for the various activities, or functions, provided by the County. All assets of the County, including
buildings, tangible property, land, roads, bridges, and similar infrastructure are reported in the statement of net
position. All liabilities, including principal outstanding on bonds, capital leases, and future employee benefits
obligated but not paid by the County, are included. The statement of activities includes depreciation on all
long lived assets of the County. The fund financial statements provide a picture of the major funds of the
County and a column for all non-major funds. In the case of governmental activities, outlays for long lived
assets are reported as expenditures and long-term liabilities are not included in the fund financial statements.
Reconciliations are provided from the fund financial statements to the government-wide financial statements to
facilitate a comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. Notes to the financial
statements provide additional detail concerning the financial activities and financial balances of the County.
Additional information about the accounting practices of the County, investments of the County, long-term
debt, and pension plans are some of the items included in the notes to the financial statements.
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government’s financial position. In the case of the
County, assets plus deferred outflows exceeded liabilities plus deferred inflows by $184 million as of
September 30, 2014.
The largest portion of the County’s net position (70%) reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, equipment, improvements, construction in progress and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report both negative and positive balances in all three
categories of net position for the County as a whole, as well as for its governmental and business-type activities.
There was an increase in net position from governmental activities of $443,000. This consisted of a decrease of
$2.71 million to invested in net investment in capital assets, an increase of $1.16 million to restricted net
position and an increase of $1.99 million to unrestricted net position. The primary reasons for these changes
was an increase in property tax revenues due to increased property values, the sale of land in the industrial park,
and a decrease in expenditures due to cut backs.
There was an increase in net position from business-type activities of $825,000. This consisted of an increase of
$912,000 to net investment in capital assets, an increase of $214,000 in restricted net position and a decrease of
$301,000 to unrestricted net position. The primary reason for the decrease to unrestricted net position was the
increase in the restricted investments for landfill closure and long-term care costs.
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Following is a comparative statement of net position (amounts expressed in thousands):
Governmental
Activities
2014
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets

$

Unrecognized license fees
Total deferred inflow
of resources
Net position
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total

2013

2014

2013

2014

80,430
135,528
215,958

$ 72,064
139,477
211,541

$ 14,568
15,985
30,553

$ 14,120
15,821
29,941

$ 94,998
151,513
246,511

40

62

40

62

80

124

40

62

40

62

80

124

21,589
10,283
31,872

21,785
6,095
27,880

13,259
563
13,822

13,419
638
14,057

34,848
10,846
45,694

35,204
6,733
41,937

Deferred charges on
bond refunding
Total deferred outflow
of resources
Long-term liabilities
outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Business-type
Activities

2013
$

86,184
155,298
241,482

-

40

-

-

-

40

-

40

-

-

-

40

130,796
23,548
29,782
$ 184,126

133,507
22,387
27,789
$ 183,683

11,967
4,967
(163)
$ 16,771

11,055
4,753
138
$ 15,946

142,763
28,515
29,619
$ 200,897

144,562
27,140
27,927
$ 199,629

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds
The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements.
Unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year. The County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $65
million (35% is unassigned). This is a $3.9 million increase from the previous year. The bulk of the increase
was from property tax revenues which increased because of property values.
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Following is a comparative statement of changes in net position (amounts expressed in thousands):
Business-type
Activities
2013
2014

Governmental
Activities
2013
2014
Revenues:
Program revenues
$ 30,879
Charges for services
3,881
Operating grants & contributions
3,884
Capital grants & contributions
General revenues
48,305
Property tax
5,522
Sales, use and fuel tax
1,415
Communications services
13,791
Grants and contributions
Investment earnings
87
Other
3,376
111,140
Total revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Interest on long term debt
Water and sewer
Airport
Landfill
Total expenses
Increase in net position before transfers
Transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beg. of year
Net position, end of year

32,077
43,539
2,670
18,932
3,678
5,558
4,053
190
110,697
443
443
183,683
$ 184,126

$ 27,392
5,820
2,018

$

6,966
329

$

6,422
347

Total
2014

$

2013

37,845
3,881
4,213

$ 33,814
5,820
2,365

42,807
5,106
1,475
13,029
138
1,368
99,153

11
36
133
7,475

30
121
6,920

48,305
5,522
1,415
13,802
123
3,509
118,615

42,807
5,106
1,475
13,029
168
1,489
106,073

35,305
39,190
3,698
15,368
2,843
5,298
1,220
248
103,170

1,960
449
4,241
6,650

1,775
506
3,683
5,964

32,077
43,539
2,670
18,932
3,678
5,558
4,053
190
1,960
449
4,241
117,347

35,305
39,190
3,698
15,368
2,843
5,298
1,220
248
1,775
506
3,683
109,134

825
825
15,946
$ 16,771

956
25
981
14,965
$ 15,946

1,268
1,268
199,629
$ 200,897

(3,061)
(3,061)
202,690
$ 199,629

(4,017)
(25)
(4,042)
187,725
$ 183,683
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The General fund is the primary operating fund of the County. Revenues exceeded expenditures by $5.1
million. Expenditures were up by $4.8 million (7.4%) from the prior year, mostly in general government,
economic environment and public safety. The increases were primarily driven be rising costs and the first full
year of operations for the economic development department.
The Road and Bridge fund accounts for fuel and other taxes designated for road improvements. During the
year, fund balance decreased by $3.5 million. Transfers in from other funds of $2.6 million and restricted fund
balances of $3.6 million were used to offset an operating loss resulting from various road repairs.
Financial Analysis of Proprietary Funds
The Navarre Beach fund accounts for the operations of the Navarre Beach water and sewer system. Revenues
were up from the prior year due to increased usage and expenses were up $185.000 from the prior year
primarily due to water main repairs. There was a moderate operating loss of $55,000. Interest income and a
capital contribution from federal and state grants led to a net loss of $40,000.
The Landfill fund is used to account for the solid waste disposal operations at the County landfills. Operating
revenues were up from the prior year due to increased usage. Expenses were up from the previous year, mostly
due to a significant increase in landfill closure costs over the prior year. Operating income was $662,000 and
the sales of recycled materials helped the fund to end the year with an overall net position increase of $729,000.
Budgetary Analysis
The General fund budget was increased by $2.8 million from the original budget (an increase of 4%). Several
departments had increases: Sheriff, $880,000 for capital equipment and vehicles; Industrial Park, $848,000 for
the Industrial Park rail spur.; BOCC Data Processing, $209,000 for network upgrades; Emergency
Management, $178,000 for CAD software.
Actual expenditures were less than the final budgeted expenditures by $2.5 million. The major reasons for this
variance are that the County did not spend 1) $775,000 for the Industrial Park, 2) $145,000 for Navarre Beach
operations, 3) $100,000 for Health Related Functions and 4) $100,000 on Parks.
.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY
As of September 30, 2014 the County had $152 million invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including land, buildings, equipment, park facilities, roads and other infrastructure. (See table below.) This
amount represents a net decrease (including additions, discoveries and deductions) of $4 million from last
year.
Capital Assets at Year-end
(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands)
Business-type
Activities
2014
2013
$ 1,191
$ 1,191
525
785
1,175
1,251
11,381
10,672
1,713
1,922
$ 15,985
$ 15,821

Governmental
Activities
2014
2013
Land
$ 19,574
$ 19,596
Construction in progress
830
9,152
Buildings
24,672
24,006
Improvements other than buildings
79,874
76,187
Machinery, furniture and equip.
10,578
10,535
Totals
$ 135,528
$ 139,476

Totals
2014
$ 20,765
$
1,355
25,847
91,255
12,291
$ 151,513
$

2013
20,787
9,937
25,257
86,859
12,457
155,297

This year’s major additions included:
$ 1,074,689
$
656,667
$
604,596
$
526,077
$
153,819
$
282,148

Sheriff’s equipment
Winchester Circle
Bagdad Fire Station (CIP)
Spencerfield Sidewalk (CIP)
Medicine Bow Road
Equestrian Center (CIP)

Outstanding Debt at Year-end
(in Thousands)
Governmental

Business-type

Activities

Activities

2014
Revenue bonds

$

574

2013
$

853

2014
$

574

Totals

2013
$

2014

853

$ 1,148

2013
$

1,706

Notes payable

1,007

1,089

3,485

3,912

4,492

5,001

Special assessment notes

3,192

4,090

-

-

3,192

4,090

$ 8,832

$ 10,797

Totals

$

4,773

$

6,032

$ 4,059

$ 4,765
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More detailed information about the County’s capital assets and long term liabilities is presented in Notes F &
G to the financial statements, respectively.
OTHER CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS OR CONDITIONS
Subsequent to year end, the Board of County Commissioners voted to standardize the residential lease fee
on Navarre Beach to a fixed rate of $250. They also voted to eliminate the collection of the additional five
percent lease fee contained in some leases. This is expected to result in a net loss of revenues of
approximately $228,000.
In 2014, the County sold property in the Santa Rosa Industrial Park to Goldring Gulf Distributing , Inc. for
$1,745,500. This sales price included cash of $698,200 and a note in the amount of $1,047,300. Discounts are
available on the note based on development conditions specified by the County and completed within 5 years
from October 2013. This sale resulted in the construction of over 190,000 square foot facility with a capital
investment by the company of over $10,000,000. As of September 30, 2014, Goldring has satisfied 2 of the 3
discount criteria for a total discount on the note of $610,925 and a remaining balance on the note of $436,375.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT O F NET PO SITIO N
September 30, 2014

ASSET S
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net
Inventory
Capital assets, net
Nondepreciable
Depreciable
T otal assets
DEFERRED OUT FLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on bond refunding
T otal deferred outflows of resources
LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued wages payable
Interest payable
Due to other governments
Deposits
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
T otal liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Governmental
Activities
$ 66,480,036
6,132,316
7,405,091
412,078

Business-type
Activities
$
8,365,186
4,966,334
1,235,652
--

20,404,171
115,124,095
215,957,787

1,716,735
14,268,627
30,552,534

22,120,906
129,392,722
246,510,321

40,325
40,325

40,325
40,325

80,650
80,650

3,492,388
257,954
2,306,475
18,172
2,617,303
283,684
1,307,104

332,282
58,352
112,293
2,536
1,368
56,543
--

3,824,670
316,306
2,418,768
20,708
2,618,671
340,227
1,307,104

6,385,869
15,202,818
31,871,767

1,009,903
12,249,067
13,822,344

7,395,772
27,451,885
45,694,111

--

--

$

T otal
74,845,222
11,098,650
8,640,743
412,078

-Continued …
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT O F NET PO SITIO N (Continue d)
Se pte mbe r 30, 2014

NET POSIT ION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable:
Inventory
Expendable:
Landfill closure
Communications
Boating improvement
Domestic violence
Voter education
Pollworker recruitment
Federal elections
Partners for pets
Navarre Beach Bridge maintenance
Law Enforcement T rust Fund
Crime prevention
Mosquito control
Federal and state grants
Enhanced 911 system
T ransportation, recreation
and economic development
T ourist development
Infrastructure development
State Housing Improvement Program
Road and sewer construction
Canal maintance
Street lighting
State court operations
Court equipment and technology
Records modernization trust fund
Law enforcement training
Inmate welfare purchases
Gas and oil preservation
Capital construction projects
Unrestricted
T otal net position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

130,795,701

11,967,295

T otal
142,762,996

412,078

412,078
4,966,334
--------------

-1,229,288
252,193
136,907
9,234
1,887
10,544
93,816
309,334
92,830
327,113
27,400
1,522,170
1,284,308
4,003,490
2,515,020
2,748,918
809,796
324,866
77,334
64,384
30,065
822,367
272,180
26,332
757,501
195,317
5,191,730
29,782,242
$ 184,126,345

$

--------------(163,114)
16,770,515

4,966,334
1,229,288
252,193
136,907
9,234
1,887
10,544
93,816
309,334
92,830
327,113
27,400
1,522,170
1,284,308
4,003,490
2,515,020
2,748,918
809,796
324,866
77,334
64,384
30,065
822,367
272,180
26,332
757,501
195,317
5,191,730
29,619,128
$ 200,896,860

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT O F ACTIVITIES
Year ended September 30, 2014
Program Revenues

Functions/Programs:

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating

Capital

Charges for

Grants and

Grants and

Governmental

type

Expenses

Services

Contributions

Contributions

Activities

Activities

$ 32,077,210

$ 19,838,193

43,539,307

4,699,449

792,193

2,670,154

5,707,544

241,848

328,623

3,607,861

3,607,861

18,931,798

191,636

84,976

3,053,056

(15,602,130)

(15,602,130)

BusinessT otal

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
T ransportation

1,155,859

$

60,000

$ (11,023,158)

236,418

(37,811,247)

$

(11,023,158)
(37,811,247)

Economic environment

3,677,666

980,256

206,260

(2,491,150)

(2,491,150)

Human services

5,557,949

37,188

502,614

--

(5,018,147)

(5,018,147)

Culture and recreation

4,053,156

403,688

123,271

--

(3,526,197)

(3,526,197)

--

--

--

(189,570)

(189,570)

3,884,357

(72,053,738)

(72,053,738)

Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

--

$

189,570
110,696,810

30,877,698

3,881,017

1,959,739

1,904,215

--

--

448,747

253,484

--

329,224

Business-type activities:
Navarre Beach water and sewer
Peter Prince Airport
Landfill
Total business-type activities
T otal

$

(55,524)

(55,524)

133,961

133,961
566,928

4,241,176

4,808,104

--

--

566,928

6,649,662

6,965,803

--

329,224

645,365

117,346,472

37,843,501

3,881,017

4,213,581

(72,053,738)

645,365

645,365

(71,408,373)

General revenues:
T axes
Property taxes

48,305,322

--

48,305,322

Sales, use and fuel taxes

5,521,730

--

5,521,730

Communication services taxes

1,415,391

--

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Recycle building lease
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of assets
T otal general revenues and transfers

1,415,391

13,791,230

10,611

13,801,841

87,033

36,488

123,521

20,302

20,302

1,675,778

1,100

1,676,878

1,700,455

110,452

1,810,907

72,496,939

178,953

72,675,892

--

Change in net position

443,201

824,318

1,267,519

Net position - beginning

183,683,144

15,946,197

199,629,341

$ 184,126,345

$ 16,770,515

$ 200,896,860

Net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-15-

Santa Rosa County, Florida
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

General
$

33,809,168

Investments
Receivables, net of uncollectibles
Accounts
Leases - current

5,505,325
318,584
--

Notes
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

436,375
3,326,996
892,437

Inventory
Total assets

$

107,193
44,396,078

$

Other

Total

Road and

Governmental

Governmental

Bridge

Funds

Funds

5,748,782

$ 21,796,307

--

$

$

61,354,257

--

5,505,325

-2,125

744,557
--

1,063,141
2,125

-1,196,562
120,951

-1,326,044
38,541

436,375
5,849,602
1,051,929

304,885
7,373,305

-$ 23,905,449

$

$

$

412,078
75,674,832

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable

$

1,016,945
10,861

$

479,199
72,346

Accrued wages payable
Deposits
Unearned revenue

1,853,317
283,684
1,186,805

294,629

Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Total liabilities

-1,975,875
6,327,487

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources related
to note receivable
Combined liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources

Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

$

2,473,530
257,954

146,663
-120,299

2,294,609
283,684
1,307,104

--846,174

1,051,929
641,428
3,112,452

1,051,929
2,617,303
10,286,113

--

--

6,763,862

846,174

3,112,452

---

436,375

Fund balances:
Nonspendable

977,386
174,747

107,193

304,885

--

1,733,869
3,598,490
8,586,073
23,606,591

309,334
-5,912,912

11,702,584
9,462,579
763,217
(1,135,383)

37,632,216
44,396,078

6,527,131
7,373,305

-$

20,792,997
$ 23,905,449

436,375
10,722,488
412,078
13,745,787
13,061,069
15,262,202
22,471,208
$

64,952,344
75,674,832

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2014
Total Governmental Funds Balances

$

64,952,344

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the funds:
Prior periods' investment in capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Current period transfers of capital assets to governmental from business type
Current period investment in capital assets
Current period depreciation
Current period loss on disposal of capital assets, net of proceeds

254,004,137
(114,529,898)
(6,242)
5,612,635
(9,315,906)
(243,950)

Deferred inflows of resources are not financial resources
and therefore not reported in the funds
Deferred charges on bond refunding
Current period amortization/writeoff of deferred refunding costs

62,320
(21,995)

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Revenue bonds
Notes payable
Compensated absences
Special assessment notes payable
Interest payable
Other post employment benefits liability
Current period revenue bond payments
Current period note payments
Current period change in compensated absences
Current period special assessment note payments
Current period increase in other post employment benefits liability

(853,113)
(1,089,328)
(7,768,792)
(4,089,724)
(18,172)
(5,657,132)
279,476
82,259
(321,494)
897,540
(719,754)

Long term receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore are deferred on the modified accrual basis in governmental funds

436,375

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the
costs of providing insurance coverage to individual funds and
therefore, the assets and liabilities of the internal service fund
are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.
Assets
Liabilities
Net Position of Governmental Activities

5,814,108
(3,379,349)
$

184,126,345

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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S anta Rosa County, Florida
S TATEMENT OF REVENUES , EXPENDITURES , AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year ended S eptember 30, 2014
Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

4,171,684
24,236

$ 1,722,670
11,543,503

$ 55,242,443
13,251,694

11,809,821
7,517,358
342,022
4,655,916
75,357,161

5,776,537
35,920
-377,705
10,386,082

4,159,611
4,732,708
928,202
618,513
23,705,207

21,745,969
12,285,986
1,270,224
5,652,134
109,448,450

Current
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services

22,477,972
35,992,152
1,185,674
966,500
1,511,624
5,317,231

--478,307
16,081,198
---

5,187,887
7,482,739
883,843
503,956
2,096,323
132,450

27,665,859
43,474,891
2,547,824
17,551,654
3,607,947
5,449,681

Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Total expenditures

2,788,749
--70,239,902

---16,559,505

78,527
488,191
1,431,988
18,285,904

2,867,276
488,191
1,431,988
105,085,311

5,117,259

(6,173,423)

5,419,303

4,363,139

3,920,311
(2,134,399)
1,785,912

2,585,310
-2,585,310

3,704,083
(8,570,969)
(4,866,886)

10,209,704
(10,705,368)
(495,664)

6,903,171

(3,588,113)

30,702,091
26,954

Road and
Bridge

General
Revenues
Taxes
Permits, fees and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
M iscellaneous
Total revenues

$ 49,348,089
1,683,955

$

Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year
Change in reserve for inventory
Fund balances, end of year

$ 37,632,216

$

552,417

3,867,475

10,080,330
34,914

20,240,580
--

61,023,001
61,868

6,527,131

$ 20,792,997

$ 64,952,344

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended September 30, 2014
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$

3,867,475

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period
these amounts are:
Current period investment in capital assets
Current period transfers of capital assets to governmental from business type
Current period depreciation
Current period loss on disposal of capital assets, net of proceeds

5,612,635
(6,242)
(9,315,906)
(243,950)

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding loans, whereas
in governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due.
Change in interest payable

5,138

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Also debt proceeds are an other financing source in the governmental funds,
but the issuance increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Current period change in compensated absences
Current period note payments
Current period revenue bond payments
Current period special assessment note payments
Current period bond refunding costs
Current period increase in other post employment benefits liability

(321,494)
82,259
279,476
897,540
(21,995)
(719,754)

Long term receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore are deferred on the modified accrual basis in governmental funds

436,375

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the
costs of providing insurance coverage and therefore, the
change in net assets of the internal service fund is included
in governmental activities in the Statement of Activities.

(170,224)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the funds
Change in reserve for inventory
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

61,868
$

443,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2014

Business-type Activities
Non-Major Fund
Peter
Prince
Field
Landfill

Major Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Restricted investments
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Navarre
Beach
$

$

-6,247,183
6,247,183
8,897,627

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on bond refunding
Total deferred outlows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Current portion of claims payable
Accrued wages payable
Due to other governments
Compensated absences - current portion
Revenue bonds - current
Note payable - current
Accrued interest
Deposits
Current portion of landfill closure costs
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Long term portion of compensated absences
Long term portion of claims payable
Long term portion of landfill closure costs
Revenue bonds payable - net of discount
Note payable - noncurrent
OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for landfill closure
Unrestricted
Total net position

2,441,628
-198,205
10,611
2,650,444

$

5,012,624
-669,232
-5,681,856

$

4,966,334
5,954,213
10,920,547
16,602,403

910,934
-10,683
346,921
1,268,538

Total
Enterprise
Funds
$

-3,783,966
3,783,966
5,052,504

8,365,186
-878,120
357,532
9,600,838

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Fund
$

4,966,334
15,985,362
20,951,696
30,552,534

5,125,779
626,991
53,848
-5,806,618
-7,490
7,490
5,814,108

40,325
40,325

---

---

40,325
40,325

---

14,407
18,803
-26,825
-70,000
-443,693
-11,800
-585,528

98,983
--83,725
-195,000
284,341
-2,536
43,993
16,869
725,447

218,892
39,549
-1,743
1,368
----750
-262,302

332,282
58,352
-112,293
1,368
265,000
284,341
443,693
2,536
56,543
16,869
1,573,277

1,018,858
-1,442,706
11,866
-40,000
-----2,513,430

3,080
---3,041,062
54,629
3,098,771
3,684,299

65,449
-8,627,574
289,296
-166,042
9,148,361
9,873,808

-----1,935
1,935
264,237

68,529
-8,627,574
289,296
3,041,062
222,606
12,249,067
13,822,344

13,363
825,240
---27,316
865,919
3,379,349

---

---

---

---

---

2,762,428
-2,450,900
5,213,328

5,420,901
4,966,334
(3,618,315)
6,768,920

3,783,966
-1,004,301
4,788,267

11,967,295
4,966,334
(163,114)
16,770,515

7,490
-2,427,269
2,434,759

$

$

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-20-

Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended September 30, 2014
Business-type Activities
Major Funds
Non-Major Fund
Peter
Navarre
Prince
Beach
Field
Landfill
Operating revenues
Permits, fees and special assessments
Charges for services
Insurance proceeds
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Personal services
Contract services
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Depreciation
Travel and per diem
Insurance
Communications
Advertising
Fuel and oil
Rentals
Landfill closure and maintenance
Claims
State assessment
Miscellaneous
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Investment income
Interest expense
Sale of recycled materials
Recycle building lease
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Federal and State grants
Aid to private organizations
Amortization & other bond costs
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital contribution
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

Total
Enterprise
Funds

1,904,215
-902
1,905,117

4,769,454
-25
4,808,129

253,484
-173
253,657

38,650
6,927,153
-1,100
6,966,903

584,277
92,028
76,782
417,608
219,426
526,756
-8,050
12,361
-15,844
1,950
---4,657
1,959,739

1,803,682
261,250
47,108
385,322
50,922
667,694
5,371
9,280
9,909
1,525
356,415
17,776
520,174
--9,724
4,146,152

35,042
42,980
300
54,767
28,676
286,110
--211
------661
448,747

2,423,001
396,258
124,190
857,697
299,024
1,480,560
5,371
17,330
22,481
1,525
372,259
19,726
520,174
--15,042
6,554,638

281,995
144,230
16,124
1,478
-1,499
5,851
77,994
266
----1,610,755
13,340
11,492
2,165,024

(54,622)

661,977

(195,090)

412,265

(673,116)

1,837
---2,500
10,611
--14,948

33,991
(13,029)
73,210
20,302
34,742
-(60,000)
(21,995)
67,221

660
-------660

36,488
(13,029)
73,210
20,302
37,242
10,611
(60,000)
(21,995)
82,829

7,399
---(171)
---7,228

(39,674)

729,198

(194,430)

495,094

(665,888)

----

--329,224

--329,224

496,664
(1,000)
--

(39,674)

729,198

134,794

824,318

(170,224)

5,253,002

6,039,722

4,653,473

15,946,197

2,604,983

$ 5,213,328

$ 6,768,920

$ 4,788,267

16,770,515

$ 2,434,759

$

--

----

$

38,650

$

--

$

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Fund

$

$

--

856,213
635,263
432
1,491,908

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-21-

Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended September 30, 2014
Business-type Activities
Non-Major Fund
Major Funds
Peter
Prince
Navarre
Landfill
Field
Beach
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Cash received from interfund services provided
Cash paid for internal services provided
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$ 1,924,601
(882,019)
(575,939)
--466,643

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of recycled materials
Transfers in (out)
Aid to private organizations
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

-------

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets
Capital contribution
Purchases of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

4,616,838
(1,465,277)
(1,779,117)
--1,372,444

$

211,376
119,573
(34,441)
--296,508

$ 6,752,815
(2,227,723)
(2,389,497)
--2,135,595

-------

-(6,243)
73,210
20,302
(60,000)
27,269

$

432
(257,475)
(298,174)
1,457,965
(1,520,294)
(617,546)

-(6,243)
73,210
20,302
(60,000)
27,269

496,664
(1,000)
---495,664

2,500
10,611
(69,873)
(427,370)
-(484,132)

36,448
-(1,083,123)
(279,476)
(12,953)
(1,339,104)

-329,224
(487,658)
--(158,434)

38,948
339,835
(1,640,654)
(706,846)
(12,953)
(1,981,670)

--(7,042)
--(7,042)

2,025
-2,025

34,140
(213,726)
(179,586)

787
-787

36,952
(213,726)
(176,774)

7,424
(4,003)
3,421

(15,464)
2,457,092
$ 2,441,628

$

(118,977)
5,131,601
5,012,624

138,861
772,073
910,934

4,420
8,360,766
$ 8,365,186

(125,503)
5,251,282
$ 5,125,779

$

$

661,977

$ (195,090)

$

$

526,756
--

667,694
520,174

286,110
--

1,480,560
520,174

1,499
--

(24,202)
-(25,886)
(7,427)
43
1,627
44,253
6,668
-(567)
466,643

$

(207,595)
-(276,540)
(34,135)
6,217
(328)
-18,676
-16,304
1,372,444

729
53
207,566
39,549
201
-(42,780)
400
-(230)
296,508

(231,068)
53
(94,860)
(2,013)
6,461
1,299
1,473
25,744
-15,507
$ 2,135,595

$

(33,511)
-67,794
-(1,726)
(17,666)
-3,173
36,007
-(617,546)

$

21,995

$

$

--

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends
Net sale (purchase) of investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$

Total
Enterprise
Funds

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Fund

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense
Landfill closure costs
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Due to other governments
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued compensation
Compensated absences
Due from other governments
OPEB liability
Claims payable
Deposits
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Amortized deferred charges

$

(54,622)

--

$

$

$

--

412,265

21,995

(673,116)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
September 30, 2014

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits
Due to other governments
Miscellaneous
Total liabilities

$

$

$

$

4,909,983
125,019
-5,035,002

164,219
2,522,487
2,307,942
40,354
5,035,002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied consistently in the preparation of the financial
statements follows:
1.

Reporting Entity

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) established standards for defining the financial
reporting entity. In developing these standards, the GASB assumed that all governmental organizations are
responsible to elected officials at the federal, state, or local level. Financial reporting by a state or local
government should report the elected officials’ accountability for those organizations. As concluded by the
GASB, the financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the
primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Santa Rosa County, Florida (the County) is a political subdivision of the State of Florida created pursuant to
Article 8, Section 1(e), of the Constitution of the State of Florida and Chapter 7 of the Florida Statutes. It is
governed by a five member Board of County Commissioners (the Board) elected from single-member
districts. The Board has no powers other than those expressly vested in it by the Florida Statutes and its
governmental powers cannot be delegated. The Board appoints an administrator to administer all policies
emanating from its statutory powers and authority. In addition to the Board, there are five elected
Constitutional Officers, pursuant to Article 8, Section 1(d) of the Constitution of the State of Florida: Clerk
of Courts, Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property Appraiser and Supervisor of Elections.
These financial statements include the operating activities of the Board, Clerk of Courts, Sheriff, Tax
Collector, Property Appraiser and Supervisor of Elections.
Dependent Special Districts
Blackwater Soil & Water Conservation District - The Blackwater Soil & Water Conservation District
(Blackwater) was created by the Florida Legislature in 1942 pursuant to Florida Statute Section 582. Santa
Rosa County was established as the local governing authority and is Blackwater’s only source of funding.
Blackwater does not meet the criteria as a legally separate entity in that it cannot buy, sell, own, lease and
mortgage property in its own name. The activities of Blackwater are included in these financial statements
as a department of the Board within the General Fund.
Pace Property Finance Authority - The Pace Property Finance Authority (Authority) was created in 1990
by County Resolution No. 90-12 pursuant to Chapter 617 of the Florida Statutes. In accordance with Florida
Statutes Section 189.403, the Authority qualifies as a dependent special district. Additionally, the Authority
is a component unit of the County. However, the Authority meets the criteria for inclusion in more than one
reporting entity - Pace Water System as well as the County. In these cases, judgment must be exercised by
management of the reporting entities as to which reporting entity the organization should be included. The
Authority has the same elected governing body as the Pace Water System. Additionally, both
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the Authority and Pace Water System own portions of a single water/sewer system; thus, their capital assets
are part of an interconnected system. Finally, the Authority’s debt was issued solely to finance the Pace
water/sewer system improvements. Based on these facts, management has decided to include the Authority
in the combined financial statements of Pace Water System rather than as a component unit of the County.
Santa Rosa County Health Facilities Authority - The Santa Rosa County Health Facilities Authority
(Authority) was created in 1982 by County Ordinance No. 82-02 pursuant to Section 154, Florida Statutes.
In accordance with Florida Statutes Section 189.403, the Authority qualifies as a dependent special district.
Additionally, the Authority is a component unit of the Board. The Board appoints the five (5) members of
the Authority. Additionally, the Board may abolish the Authority at any time by ordinance or resolution as
long as all bonded indebtedness incurred by the Authority has been paid. The Authority exists solely to
assist health facilities within the County with the acquisition, construction, financing, and refinancing of
projects through issuance of conduit debt. All bonds issued by the Authority were subsequently defeased
through issuance of new debt culminating with the issuance of $58 million in new bonds in 2003. The debt
outstanding is a limited obligation of the Authority and not a general obligation of the Authority or the
Board. The Authority is not obligated to pay the principal and interest on the bonds except from the
revenues of the Authority pursuant to its loan agreement with Gulf Breeze Hospital. The Authority has no
financial activity and the bonds issued under the Authority’s name are recorded in the books of the hospital.
Santa Rosa County Housing Finance Authority - The Santa Rosa County Housing Finance Authority
(Authority) was created in 1984 by County Resolution No. 84-18 pursuant to Chapter 78-89, Laws of
Florida codified as Chapter 159, Part IV, Section 159.601 through 159.623. In accordance with Florida
Statutes Section 189.403, the Authority qualifies as a dependent special district. Additionally, the Authority
is a component unit of Santa Rosa County. The Board, through various resolutions and interlocal
agreements with the Escambia County Housing Finance Authority (ECHFA), has authorized ECHFA to
allow qualified residents of the County to apply for and obtain preferential mortgages from proceeds
generated by bonds issued by ECHFA. Accordingly, there is no financial activity related to the Authority
to be reflected in these financial statements.
2.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or
limitations.
The County groups its funds into two broad fund categories as either governmental or proprietary in nature.
Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds. Proprietary
funds include enterprise funds and an internal service fund.
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3.

Basis of Accounting

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which primarily rely on fees and charges for support. Fiduciary funds are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund
financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are
prepared. Therefore, the governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the
governmental fund financial statements.
The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the County and for each governmental program.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and are
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies
the extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues
of the County.
Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. The net position restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds and the
restrictions on their use. In a fund with both restricted and unrestricted positions, qualified expenses are
considered to be paid first from restricted net position then from unrestricted net position. The governmentwide statement of net position reports $23,548,402 of restricted net position, of which $23,136,324 is
restricted by enabling legislation.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Fund financial statements, as presented herein, focus primarily on the major funds of the governmental
and proprietary categories. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. The internal service fund is presented in a single column on
the face of the proprietary fund statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current
financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis revenues are recognized in the accounting period in
which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in
which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable.
The major governmental funds are:
x General Fund – This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
x Road and Bridge Fund – Accounts for that portion of state fuel taxes and fees designated for road
improvement projects.
Revenue Recognition
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are deemed both measurable and available (i.e., collectible within the current year or within one
month of year-end and available to pay obligations of the current period – except for certain grant revenues
which are recognized as revenues in the same period the grant expenditures occurred). This includes
investment earnings, property taxes, special assessments, fines and forfeitures. Certain state-levied locally
shared taxes including motor vehicle license tax and fuel taxes are considered derived non-exchange
transactions. These types of transactions are subject to income recognition when the underlying transaction
occurs. Reimbursements due for federally funded projects are accrued as revenue at the time the
expenditures are made, or when received in advance, deferred until expenditures are made.
Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues, are
recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
received.
Expenditure Recognition
The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on governmental long-term debt, which has not
matured, are recognized when paid. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the governmental funds.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
All proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus.
These funds account for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. Revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are
recorded in proprietary funds. Unbilled utility service receivables are recorded at each year-end.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of all
the County’s enterprise funds and internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
The major proprietary funds are:
x Navarre Beach Fund – Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the water and sewer system of
Navarre Beach.
x Landfill Fund – Accounts for the operation of the solid waste disposal facilities of the County.
The County’s only internal service fund is the Self Insurance Fund. This fund accounts for the risk
management activities of the County and the other elected officials. Costs are billed to the departments and
other elected officials at the actual and estimated costs of providing insurance coverage. At year-end,
uncovered costs are billed to the departments, if necessary. Billings in excess of costs are credited to the
departments. The policy of the County is not to eliminate interfund activity, i.e. the estimated insurance
costs billed to the departments, in the government-wide statement of activities, so as to better reflect the true
operating costs of those departments.
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
The County has sixteen agency fiduciary funds. Agency funds are unlike all other types of funds, reporting
only assets and liabilities. Therefore agency funds cannot be said to have a measurement focus. They do,
however, use the accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables.
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4.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Florida Statutes Chapters 129 and 200 govern the preparation, adoption, and administration of the County’s
annual budget. The budget must be balanced, i.e., the estimated revenues plus beginning fund balance
brought forward must equal appropriations and be prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Board may, at any time within a
fiscal year, amend a budget for that year as follows:
Appropriations for expenditures in any fund may be decreased and other appropriations in the same fund
correspondingly increased by motion recorded in the minutes. The budget officer may authorize certain
inter-departmental and intra-departmental budget amendments, provided that the total appropriation of the
fund is not changed. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
5.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with
a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.
6.

Investments

Investments in U.S. Treasury bills, government backed securities and the Florida Local Government
Investment Trust Fund are recorded at fair value. As permitted by GASB Statement No. 31, bank
certificates of deposit and short term money market investments are reported at amortized cost rather than
fair value.
7.

Inventory

Inventory consists of gas, oil, automotive parts, road signs, culverts, and various other items used by the
road department and insecticides used by mosquito control operations. Inventory is valued at cost (first in,
first out). The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time the inventory is purchased.
In the fund level statements, reported inventories are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance since
such amounts will not convert to cash even though they are a component of net current assets.
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8.

Accounting for Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value
at the date of donation.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that does not add to the value of an asset or materially extends
an asset’s life is not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The County
does not capitalize interest expense on borrowings used to finance construction of capital assets, as the
capitalizable interest, after netting of interest earnings, is normally insignificant.
Property, plant and equipment of the County is depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Buildings
Water Distribution System
Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangibles
9.

20 - 50 years
20 years
10 - 20 years
3 - 10 years
40 years
3 - 5 years

Compensated Absences

It is the policy of the County to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused
leave benefits which will be paid to employees upon separation from service. Unpaid compensated absences
are recorded as a liability when the benefits are earned in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. The valuation of accrued leave benefits is calculated in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 16. The majority of the compensated absences liability has been paid out of the General
(75%) and the Road and Bridge (25%) funds.
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10. Property Taxes
Real and personal property valuations are determined each year as of January 1 by the Property Appraiser’s
office. Florida Statutes require that all property be assessed at 100 percent of just value.
All property taxes become due and payable on November 1, and are delinquent on April 1 of the following
year. Discounts of 4, 3, 2 and 1 percent are allowed for early payment in November through February,
respectively. The Tax Collector advertises as required by statute and sells tax certificates for unpaid taxes
on real property. Certificates not sold are considered "County Held Certificates." Persons owning land
upon which a tax certificate has been sold may redeem the land by paying the face amount of the tax
certificate, plus interest and other costs.
Property taxes levied on property valuations as of January 1, 2014 and expected to be collected during the
period November 2014 through March 2015 are as follows:
General Fund

$ 44,646,750

These taxes, although measurable, are not recognized as revenue at September 30, 2014, since they are not
considered to be collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay current
period liabilities.
11. Landfill Closure Costs
Under the terms of current state and federal regulations, the County is required to place a final cover on
closed landfill areas, and to perform certain monitoring and maintenance functions for a period of up to
thirty years after closure. The County recognizes these costs of closure and post-closure maintenance over
the active life of each landfill area, based on landfill capacity used during the period.
12. Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts
Accounts receivable for the County are reported net of allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts represents those accounts which are deemed uncollectible based upon past collection
history.
13. Fund Balance
Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications
are as follows:
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Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the
long-term amount of interfund loans.
Restricted - Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the County to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate
payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement
that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. Legal enforceability
means that the County can be compelled by an external party-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation.
Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes imposed by formal action (ordinance) of the County. Those committed amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the County removes or changes the specified use by taking the same
type of action (ordinance) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In contrast to fund balance that
is restricted by enabling legislation, committed fund balance classification may be redeployed for other
purposes with appropriate due process. Constraints imposed on the use of committed amounts are imposed
by the Board, separate from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue; therefore, compliance with
these constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund balance also incorporates
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for
use in satisfying those contractual requirements.
Assigned – Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the County for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental
funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not
restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the
Board or a County official delegated that authority by County resolution or ordinance.
Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for
which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.
The County applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund
balance classifications could be used.
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At September 30, 2014, the bank held deposits of $74,514,168 (before outstanding checks and deposits in
transit) consisting of amounts held in checking, savings, money market or time deposit accounts. All
deposits with financial institutions were 100% insured by federal depository insurance or by collateral
pursuant to the Public Depository Security Act of the State of Florida.
The County’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 218.415, the County adopted an investment policy which outlines the
County’s investment responsibilities, objectives, and policies. The County’s investment policy authorizes
the County to invest in the following:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA) (Maximum of 75%)*;
Florida Local Government Investment Trust (FLGIT) (State Investment Trust) (100% allowed)*;
Qualified money market mutual funds (Maximum of 50%)*;
U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds (100% allowed);
Obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government as to principal and interest such as obligations of
the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) (Maximum of 5%)*;
f. Non-callable Government Agency securities (Maximum of 25%)*:
(i) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB),
(ii) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC),
(iii) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB),
(iv) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA).
This classification of government agency securities does not include any mortgage debt of any
government agency;
g. Time deposits and savings accounts in banks or savings and loan associations doing business in
Florida (Maximum of 50%)*;
h. Repurchase agreements for investments authorized in categories d, e, or f above. (Maximum of
40%)*
*To limit the County’s concentration of credit risk these are the maximum percentages of the County’s
total portfolio that can be in each type of investment.
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Interest rate risk is limited by no security having a maturity exceeding 2 years. The weighted average to
maturity for the portfolio shall be less than 365 days. Investments placed with the FLGIT, which typically
invests in instruments with maturities of less than 5 years, are exempt from this limitation.
The FLGIT, also known as Florida Trust, is a local government investment pool created by the Florida
Association of Court Clerks and Comptroller, and the Florida Association of Counties for the purpose of
providing public entities with an investment program by providing investment vehicles for funds that can
be invested in short- to intermediate-term securities and have returns generally greater than the national
average for money market instruments. The fair values of the County’s positions in the pool are the same
as the value of the pool shares. The Florida Trust offers two open-ended, professionally managed funds
available only to public entities in Florida.
The Investment Trust:
A short term bond fund with an investment portfolio structured to maintain safety of principal and maximize
available yield through a balance of quality and diversification. As of September 30, 2014 the Investment
Trust managed $714.63 million and had a price per share of $24.09. This short term bond fund invests in
U.S. Treasuries and Agency Securities, Mortgages, Commercial Paper, Asset-Backed Securities, and “A”
rated Corporate Securities.
The Day to Day Fund:
The Florida Trust Day to Day Fund is a money market product created in response to demand to provide a
fiscally conservative diversification option for Florida local governments. Fund features include same day
transactions and online account management. The fund is AAAm-rated by Standard and Poor’s and is
governed by the same board and advisory committee that oversees the Investment Trust.
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Schedule of Cash and Investments at September 30, 2014
Carrying
Amount
Investments:
FLGIT Investment Trust Fund
Total Investments

$ 11,098,650
11,098,650

Cash:
Cash in Bank
Day to Day Trust
Petty Cash
Total Cash
Total Cash and Investments

23,904,005
50,939,892
1,325
74,845,222
$ 85,943,872

Restricted cash and investments typically consist of funds set aside for the payment of debt and funds set
aside to ensure assets producing the pledged revenues are repaired and replaced as needed. These assets are
restricted since their use is limited by the applicable bond indentures. Other restricted assets consist of
funds restricted to the payment of future landfill closure costs.

Restricted investments by category and by fund are as follows:

Landfill escrow

Landfill
Fund
$ 4,966,334

NOTE C – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS
At September 30, 2014, amounts due from other governmental units were as follows:
Federal Government - Grants
State of Florida - Grants
State of Florida - Taxes
Local taxes
Other Elected Officials
Other

$

231,492
1,835,983
1,836,211
911,392
1,373,527
18,529
$ 6,207,134
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Interfund transactions for the year ended September 30, 2014 were as follows:

Interfund
Receivable
General fund
$
Road & Bridge fund
Nonmajor Governmental funds
Self Insurance fund
Total
$

Interfund
Payable

892,437
120,951
38,541
1,051,929

$

Interfund
Transfers in

1,051,929
1,051,929

$

$

$

3,920,311
2,585,310
3,704,083
496,664
10,706,368

Interfund
Transfers out
$

$

2,134,399
8,570,969
1,000
10,706,368

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds
collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) move unrestricted
revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
Interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided
or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments
between funds are made.

NOTE E – RECEIVABLES
Governmental
General
Road & Bridge
NonMajor Govt.
Self Insurance
Subtotal

Accounts
$

318,584
744,557
53,848
1,116,989

Leases
$

2,125
2,125

Notes

Intergovernmental

Total

$ 436,375
436,375

$ 3,326,996
1,196,562
1,326,044
5,849,602

$ 4,081,955
1,198,687
2,070,601
53,848
7,405,091

10,611
346,921
357,532

208,816
669,232
357,604
1,235,652

$ 6,207,134

$ 8,640,743

Business-Type
Navarre Beach
Landfill
NonMajor Business
Subtotal
Total

198,205
669,232
10,683
878,120
$ 1,995,109

$

2,125

$ 436,375
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Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 was as follows (in thousands):
Governme ntal activitie s
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business like activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business like activities capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance
$ 19,596
9,152
28,748

Additions

Deletions

$

$

50
1,733
1,783

72
10,055
10,127

$ 19,574
830
20,404
64,545
130,116
42,063
236,724

61,120
122,725
41,425
225,270

3,425
7,412
3,108
13,945

21
2,470
2,491

37,114
46,538
30,890
114,542
110,728
$ 139,476

-

$

2,759
3,707
2,080
8,546
5,399
7,182

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Deletions

$

$

$

1,191
785
1,976

1,422
1,422

$

3
1,485
1,488
1,003
11,130

1,682
1,682

2,900
25,135
7,002
35,037

41
2,286
238
2,565

643
1,137
1,780

1,649
14,463
5,080
21,192
13,845
$ 15,821

117
942
445
1,504
1,061
2,483

-

$

$

Ending
Balance

8
1,135
1,143
637
2,319

39,873
50,242
31,485
121,600
115,124
$ 135,528
Ending
Balance
$

1,191
525
1,716
2,941
26,778
6,103
35,822

1,766
15,397
4,390
21,553
14,269
$ 15,985
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Total governmental activities depreciation expense
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer
Landfill
Hanger rental
Total business-type activities depreciation expense

$ 3,380,734
668,529
131,365
3,247,584
79,546
118,297
1,691,350
$ 9,317,405

$

526,756
667,694
286,110
$ 1,480,560

Additions to accumulated depreciation do not agree with depreciation expense due to transfers of capital
assets between departments or asset classes.

NOTE G- LONG-TERM DEBT
1.

Changes in Long-Term Debt

Deferred charges on refunding of bonds totaling $40,325 are reported as deferred outflow of resources in
the governmental activities and proprietary funds.
Special assessment notes are fully secured by annual assessments made against property owners of the
specific area that benefited from the proceeds of the notes. The County has no legal obligation to levy ad
valorem taxes or cover the notes in case of default by the property owners. The County does, however,
maintain a moral commitment to cover the debt payments until such time as the property owners can make
the payments.
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year.

Governmental activities:
Compensated absences
Claims payable
Revenue bonds
Notes payable
Special assessment notes
OPEB liability

Business-type activities:
Compensated absences
Landfill closure costs
Revenue bonds
Notes payable
OPEB liability

2.

Balance
October 1,
2013

Additions

$ 7,839,821
2,231,939
853,113
1,089,329
4,089,724
5,681,275
$ 21,785,201

$

332,230
8,124,269
853,113
3,912,125
196,862
$ 13,418,599

Deductions

Balance
September 30,
2014

Amount
Due within
One Year

$ 4,133,346
1,610,755
1,348,962
$ 7,093,063

$ 3,829,518
1,574,748
279,476
82,260
897,540
626,035
$ 7,289,577

$ 8,143,649
2,267,946
573,637
1,007,069
3,192,184
6,404,202
$ 21,588,687

$ 3,800,000
1,442,706
284,341
85,382
773,440
$ 6,385,869

$

$

$

$

$

200,909
520,174
48,038
769,121

$

199,610
279,476
427,370
22,294
928,750

333,529
8,644,443
573,637
3,484,755
222,606
$ 13,258,970

265,000
16,869
284,341
443,693
$ 1,009,903

Descriptions of Bonds and Notes
Bonds and notes payable at September 30, 2014 are comprised of the following:
General government - notes payable
$999,380 Third Cent Tourist Development Tax Refunding Revenue
Note, Series 2011, payable to bank to refinance the $1,200,000 Third
Cent Tourist Development Tax Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2007
payable for the construction of a tourist information center in Navarre.
The note is due in 60 quarterly payments of $12,445 to $21,708, plus
interest at 3.79%, with final payment due in 2026 secured by Third Cent
tourist development tax revenues.

$ 828,075
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$495,570 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction
of certain road improvements in the Blackwater River and
Smuggler’s Cove subdivisions. The note is due in 36 quarterly payments
of $13,777 plus interest at 4.28%, secured by non-ad valorem revenues.
Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient to
retire the maturing principal and interest.

68,885

$341,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements for Duke Drive MSBU. The note is due
in 32 quarterly payments of $9,243 to $12,225 plus interest at 3.74%
with final payment due in 2016. Annual assessments will be made against
property owners sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

71,862

$600,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements on Polynesian Island Canal. The note is due
in 28 quarterly payments. Payments are interest only at 4.05% until 2012 then
principal payments of $36,085 to $48,931 plus interest with final payment
due in 2015. Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient
to retire the maturing principal and interest.

97,862

$169,100 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements for Joseph Circle MSBU. The note is due
in 36 quarterly payments of $3,636 to $5,941 plus interest at 5.65%
with final payment due in 2016. Annual assessments will be made against
property owners sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

50,582

$324,500 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements for Central Parkway MSBU. The note is due
in 36 quarterly payments of $7,112 to $11,146 plus interest at 5.14%
with final payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against
property owners sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

135,366
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$1,872,038 special assessment note payable to bank to refinance the
$1,582,132 and $770,000 special assessment notes payable for the
acquisition and installation of fire control equipment in the Santa Rosa
County Fire Protection MSBU. The note is due in 32 quarterly payments
of $53,061 to $64,128 plus interest at 2.44% with final payment due in 2018.
Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient to retire
the maturing principal and interest.

1,039,678

$287,870 note payable to bank for the acquisition and construction of
improvements for the Bagdad Heritage Trail Project. The note is due in 40
quarterly payments of $5,888 to 9,370 plus interest at 3.98% with final payment
due in 2020, secured by North Santa Rosa tourist development tax revenues.

178,994

$500,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Bernath Place MSBU. The note is due in 36
quarterly payments of $11,686 to $16,363 plus interest at 3.98% with final payment
due in 2018. Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient to
retire the maturing principal and interest.

244,277

$600,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Santa Rosa Shores MSBU. The note is due in 40
quarterly payments of $12,432 to $17,890 payments plus interest at 3.75% with final
payment due in 2019. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

312,930

$120,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Ski Watch Estates MSBU. The note is due in 36
quarterly payments of $2,829 to $3,883 including interest at 3.55% with final
payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

44,367

$412,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the acquisition and installation
fire control equipment in the Santa Rosa County Fire Protection MSBU. The note is
due in 28 quarterly payments of $13,565 to $15,891 plus interest at 2.34% with final
payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

199,650

$700,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the acquisition and installation
fire control equipment in the Santa Rosa County Fire Protection MSBU. The note is
due in 60 quarterly payments of $9,134 to $14,526 plus interest at 3.14% with final
payment due in 2025. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

554,444
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$395,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Longhorn Trail MSBU. The note is due in 24
quarterly payments of $15,423 to $17,537 plus interest at 2.24% with final
payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

171,038

$268,350 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Skiwatch Estates MSBU. The note is due in 40
quarterly payments of $7,625 including interest at 2.56% with final
payment due in 2021. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

201,242

General government - bonds payable
$3,027,579 Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2010
bonds due in quarterly installments of $128,435 to $145,585 plus interest
at 1.73% with final payment due in 2016; Bonds are allocated 50% to
governmental long-term debt and 50% to Landfill Fund. Secured by Sales Tax
revenues.
Total general government bonds and notes payable

573,637
$

4,772,890

Proprietary fund type - note payable
Navarre Beach
$6,500,000 Utility System Revenue Note, Series 2006 payable to bank for the
construction of certain improvements and additions to the Navarre Beach
Utility System. The note is due in 15 annual payments of $335,333 to
$555,568 plus interest at 0.0%, adjusted every 3 years, secured by non-ad
valorem revenues.

3,484,755

Proprietary fund type - bonds payable
Landfill
$3,027,579 Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2010
bonds due in quarterly installments of $128,435 to $145,585 plus interest
at 1.73% with final payment due in 2016; Bonds are allocated 50% to
governmental long-term debt and 50% to Landfill Fund. Secured by Sales Tax
revenues.
Total proprietary fund type bonds and note payable

573,637
$ 4,058,392
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3.

Debt Service Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds and notes outstanding at September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Governmental activities:
Year ended
September 30,
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029

Business-type activities:
Year ended
September 30,
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024

Principal
$ 1,178,063
1,058,164
700,355
582,601
309,935
723,937
219,835
$ 4,772,890

Interest
$ 133,856
101,243
74,667
54,116
38,714
102,022
7,347
$ 511,965

Total
$ 1,311,919
1,159,407
775,022
636,717
348,649
825,959
227,182
$ 5,284,855

Principal
$ 728,034
749,617
478,220
496,485
515,447
1,090,589
$ 4,058,392

Interest
$ 133,050
110,518
89,459
70,847
51,637
42,103
$ 497,614

Total
$ 861,084
860,135
567,679
567,332
567,084
1,132,692
$ 4,556,006

4. Defeased Debt Outstanding
In prior years the County defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts’ assets
and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the County’s financial statements. At September
30, 2014, $1.87 million of bonds are considered defeased.
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The County has issued certain limited-obligation debt instruments, including: 1) industrial development
revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of
industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest; and 2) certain municipal service benefit
unit revenue notes to finance the acquisition, construction, reconstruction and equipping of capital
improvements within the municipal service benefit unit. The debt instruments are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Neither the Board,
the State nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the debt instruments.
Accordingly, the debt instruments are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
Debt issues related to conduit financings outstanding at September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Baptist Hospital, 2003
Holley Navarre Water System, 2004
Pace Volunteer Fire Department
Navarre Beach Volunteer Fire Department
Total

Date
Issued

Final
Maturity

Amount
Issued

Outstanding
9/30/2014

8/21/2003
6/2/2004
4/16/2007
4/25/2007

10/1/2021 $ 57,905,000
5/1/2024
4,145,000
3/8/2017
1,169,000
4/25/2017
300,000

$ 57,905,000
2,410,000
377,095
95,629

$ 63,519,000

$ 60,787,724

NOTE I - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS
State and federal laws and regulations require the Board to place a final cover on its landfill sites when the
landfill stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at sites for thirty
years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs are paid only near or after the date that a
landfill stops accepting waste, the Board reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $8.6
million reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability (current and noncurrent) at September 30,
2014, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the following percentage usage of the
estimated capacity of each of the Board’s landfills:
Central Class I Landfill
Central Class III Landfill (New)
Central Class III Landfill (Old)
Holley Landfill

84%
35%
Closed 10/98
Closed 06/94

The estimated cost of postclosure care for the Central Class III and Holley landfills have been recognized in
prior years with any changes in estimates being recorded in the current year. The Board will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care for the Central Class I and Class III landfills in the
amount of $5.5 million as its remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would
cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2014.
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The estimated remaining lives of the Central Class I and Class III landfills are 15 and 32 years, respectively.
Cost of closure and life estimates are based on the areas currently in use, and not on potential areas of
expansion. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.
The Board is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust to
finance closure and postclosure care. At September 30, 2014, the Board held investments of $4,966,334 to
cover the escrow requirement of $4,961,183. These investments are reported as restricted assets in these
financial statements. The Board expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on these
restricted investments and from charges to future landfill users or future tax revenue.

NOTE J - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
1. Retirement Plan
Participation - Employees of the County participate in the Florida Retirement System, a cost-sharing multipleemployer retirement system, established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. Participation is compulsory for fulltime and part-time employees working in regularly established positions. Elected officials may elect not to
participate in the system. Eligible employees may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option
Program (DROP), deferring receipt of retirement benefits while continuing employment with a Florida
Retirement System employer.
Benefit Provisions – The Florida retirement system offers two retirement plans – the FRS Pension Plan and the
FRS Investment Plan. An employee may participate in only one of the plans. Both plans, effective July 1,
2011, are funded monthly by a combination of employer and employee contributions.
The FRS Pension Plan is a defined benefit plan which provides retirement and disability benefits, annual costof-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Normal retirement benefits are
available to employees who retire at age 62 or 65 (depending on hire date) with 6 or 8 (depending on hire date)
or more years of service, or to those employees who have at least 30 or 33 (depending on hire date) years of
creditable service, regardless of age. Retirement age and years of service requirements may vary depending on
membership class. Early retirement is available after 6 years of service with a 5% reduction of benefits for each
year prior to the normal retirement age. Retirement benefits are based upon age, average compensation, and
years-of-service credit where average compensation is computed as the average of an individual’s five (if
enrolled prior to July 1, 2011) or eight (if enrolled on or after July 1, 2011) highest years of earnings.
The FRS Investment Plan is a defined contribution plan in which participants are vested after one year of
service. The employer makes contributions each month based on a percentage of the employee’s gross salary
and membership class. The contribution percentage is the same whether participating in the Pension Plan or
Investment Plan. Members in the Investment Plan decide how their funds are allocated between various
investment accounts and the funds are portable upon termination if the participant is vested. Members in the
investment plan are not eligible for participation in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP).
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For DROP participants, the deferred monthly benefit plus interest compounded monthly, accrues for the
specified period of the DROP participation. Upon retirement, the participant receives the total accumulated
DROP benefits and begins to receive current benefits at the previously determined rate.
Contributions - Chapter 121 requires the employer to pay all contributions (employee noncontributory)
based upon state-wide rates established by the State of Florida. During 2014, the County contributed an
average of 7.06% of each qualified regular employee’s gross salary, 35.58% percent of the elected
officials’ salary, 19.25% of each special risk employee’s salary, and 12.7% for each DROP participant.
The County’s contributions to the Pension Plan, funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, were equal to the
actuarially determined contribution requirements for the year. The County’s contributions to the Investment
Plan were equal to the legislatively mandated contribution rates, which are equal to a percentage of the
members’ gross monthly salary based on membership class. Contributions to both plans totaled
$4,672,306, $3,452,871 and $2,956,762 for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively.
Financial Report of the Plan - The Florida Retirement System issues a stand-alone financial report. A
copy can be obtained by contacting the State of Florida, Division of Retirement, Tallahassee, Florida.
2.

Litigation

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the County’s attorney the resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the County.
3.

Federal and State Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by grantors cannot be
determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE K - FUND BALANCES
Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the government funds. The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental
funds and all other governmental funds are presented on the following page.
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Fund balances
Nonspendable
Inventory
$
Restricted for:
Communications
Boating improvement
Domestic violence
Voter education
Pollworker recruitment
Federal elections
Partners for pets
Navarre Beach Bridge maintenance
Law Enforcement Trust Fund
Crime prevention
Mosquito control
Federal and state grants
Enhanced 911 system
Tourist development
Infrastructure development
State Housing Improvement Program
Road and sewer construction
Canal maintance
Street lighting
State court operations
Court equipment and technology
Records modernization trust fund
Law enforcement training
Inmate welfare purchases
Committed to:
Animal service education
Court innovations
Transportation, recreation
and economic development
Gas and oil preservation
Capital construction projects
Assigned to:
Road and bridge construction
and maintenance
Debt service
Berm restoration
Law library
Court operations
Gas and oil preservation
Beach berm restoration
Unassigned
$

Major Funds
Road and
General
Bridge
Fund
Fund
107,193

$

1,229,288
252,193
136,907
9,234
1,887
10,544
93,816
-

304,885
309,334
-

Other
Funds
$

Total
-

$

412,078

92,830
327,113
27,400
1,522,170
1,284,308
2,515,020
2,748,918
809,796
324,866
77,334
64,384
30,065
822,367
272,180
26,332
757,501

1,229,288
252,193
136,907
9,234
1,887
10,544
93,816
309,334
92,830
327,113
27,400
1,522,170
1,284,308
2,515,020
2,748,918
809,796
324,866
77,334
64,384
30,065
822,367
272,180
26,332
757,501

46,823
-

-

267,359

46,823
267,359

3,551,667
-

-

4,003,490
5,191,730

4,003,490
3,551,667
5,191,730

83,590
26,574
653,053
(1,135,383)
$ 20,792,997

5,912,912
83,590
8,200,000
26,574
653,053
195,317
190,756
22,471,208
$ 64,952,344

8,200,000
195,317
190,756
23,606,591
37,632,216

$

5,912,912
6,527,131
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The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In 1986 the County established a
Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under this
program the County is self-insured with respect to the following exposures:
Workers Compensation
Auto Physical Damage
Auto Liability
Construction and Road Equipment
Portable Communication Equipment
The County is covered by outside insurance for the following exposures:
Boats
Employee Fidelity
Buildings and Contents, $5,000 deductible
General Liability, $25,000 deductible
Public Officials’ Liability, $25,000 deductible
Conventional insurance remains in effect for buildings, contents and Sheriff’s general, automobile and
professional liability. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The Board of County Commissioners and other County
elected officials participate in the program and make payments to the Self Insurance Fund based on
historical estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to establish a reserve for
catastrophic losses. The claims liability of $2,267,946 is based on the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Liabilities for incurred losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determined payments over a long period of
time are reported at their present value using an expected future investment yield assumption of 3.9 - 7
percent. These liabilities are reported at their present value of $902,650 at September 30, 2014.

Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

2012 - 2013
2013 - 2014

Beginning-ofFiscal-Year
Liability

Current-Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

$ 2,884,872
$ 2,231,939

$ 1,270,453
$ 1,610,755

Balance at
Fiscal
Year-End

Claim
Payments
$
$

1,923,386
1,574,748

$
$

2,231,939
2,267,946
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The following table presents a summary of the claims payable liability at year e
Current claims payable
Current claims-structured settlements
Total claims payable, current
Long-term claims-structured settlements
Total claims payable

$

$

1,365,296
77,410
1,442,706
825,240
2,267,946

The County is a member of the Florida Association of Counties Trust, a pooled liability program providing
general liability coverage and public officials’ liability coverage, excluding the Sheriff. The County pays an
annual premium as a participant of the pooled liability program. During 1994, the first year of participation, the
County paid an extraordinary loss fund payment of $249,886. The liability coverage is not designed to be
assessable; however, should the pool fail to meet its obligations, the County may be required to contribute
additional funds or cover its own obligations. No accrual for future assessments has been recorded in the
financial statements as such assessments do not appear probable based on past experience of the pool, and
experience of the pool subsequent to the County’s fiscal year end through the date of these financial statements.
In the event the County elected to terminate its participation in the pool, the extraordinary loss fund payment
would be refunded to the County, given adequate funding of the pool.

NOTE M – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
The County implemented, in 2009, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for certain postemployment health care benefits
provided by the County.
Plan Description – Pursuant to the provisions of Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, former employees who
retire from the County and eligible dependents, may continue to participate in the County’s purchased health
and hospitalization insurance coverage (the Plan) ) at the same group rate as for active employees and
participating retirees are required to reimburse the County 100% of the health insurance premium a month in
advance.. The Plan is a single-employer plan. The County subsidizes the premium rates paid by the retirees by
allowing them to participate in the plan at reduced or blended group (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for
both active and retired employees. These rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial
basis, their current and future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the plan on average than those of
active employees. The County also provides an insurance subsidy for employees with at least 10 years (8 years
elected) creditable service. The subsidy pays $3 per year of service limited to the individual’s premium
payment up to a maximum of $90 per year. No stand-alone financial report is issued.

-50-

Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE M – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS – Continued
Funding Policy – The County has not advance-funded or established a funding methodology for the annual
Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) costs or the net OPEB obligation. For the 2014 fiscal year, 212 retirees
and eligible dependents received postemployment health care benefits. The County provided required
contributions of $158,329 toward the annual OPEB cost, comprised of benefit payments made on behalf of
retirees insurance net of retiree contributions totaling $394,269. Required contributions are based on projected
pay-as-you-go financing which differ from the Annual Required Contribution.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation – The following table shows the County’s annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation:
Description
Normal Cost (Service cost for one year)
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
Annual Required Contribution
Amortization of Net OPEB Obligation
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation
Annual OPEB Cost (expense)
Contribution Towards the OPEB Cost
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year
Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year

Health
Insurance
$ 589,000
602,000
1,191,000
(357,000)
206,000
1,040,000
(291,329)
748,671
5,878,137
$ 6,626,808

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation as of September 30, 2014, was as follows:

Fiscal Year
2011-2012
2012-2013
2013-2014

Annual
OPEB Cost
$ 1,473,000
$
991,000
$ 1,040,000

Percentage
Of Annual
OPEB Cost
Contributed
23%
27%
28%

Net OPEB
Obligation
$ 5,154,773
$ 5,878,137
$ 6,626,808

Funded Status and Funding Progress – As of September 30, 2014, the date of the actuarial valuation, the
actuarial accrued liability was $9,930,000 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability of $9,930,000. Amortization of the accrued liability for the year ended September 30,
2014 was $602,000. The annual covered payroll (annual payroll of active participating employees) was
$46,609,103 for the 2013-2014 fiscal year. The ratio of the unfunded actuarial liability to annual covered
payroll is 21%.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment and termination, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan provisions, as understood by the employer and participating members, and include the type of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and participating members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
The County’s OPEB actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2014, used the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method to estimate both the unfunded actuarial liability as of September 30, 2014 and to estimate the County’s
2013-2014 fiscal year annual required contribution. This method was selected because it produced the best
estimate of the OPEB liability and annual cost. Because the OPEB liability is currently unfunded, the actuarial
assumptions include a 3.5% rate of return on invested assets assuming the benefits will continue to be funded
on a pay-as-you-go basis and that the County’s investments will earn 3.5% over the long term. The actuarial
assumptions also include an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.5% initially for the 09-10 fiscal year,
decreasing gradually per year to an ultimate rate of 4.3% in 2070. The inflation rate assumption is 2.8%. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level dollar method. The remaining, closed,
amortization period at September 30, 2014 is 25 years.
The required schedule of funding progress, immediately following the notes, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

NOTE N – DEFICIT FUND BALANCE
At September 30, 2014, the Disaster Special Revenue Fund, a non-major fund, has a deficit fund balance of
$978,000. The deficit is due to expenditures related to the historical flash flooding in April 2014 which brought
over 24 inches of rain in parts of the County and delayed grant funding.
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Year ended September 30, 2014

Final
Budget

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Permits, fees and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Reserve for contingencies
Total expenditures

43,768,640
1,306,250
10,110,250
8,147,526
202,210
3,253,640
66,788,516

$

43,959,396
1,306,250
10,978,201
8,256,576
245,281
3,286,877
68,032,581

Actual
$

49,348,089
1,683,955
11,809,821
7,517,358
342,022
4,655,916
75,357,161

22,326,367
35,580,762
1,347,376
931,400
143,080
5,477,508
2,885,002
1,250,470
69,941,965

23,433,060
36,739,641
1,588,416
964,010
1,645,244
5,534,563
2,973,316
41,424
72,919,674

22,477,972
35,992,152
1,185,674
966,500
1,511,624
5,317,231
2,788,749
-70,239,902

(3,153,449)

(4,887,093)

5,117,259

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

2,241,706
(782,493)
1,459,213

3,920,311
(2,134,399)
1,785,912

3,920,311
(2,134,399)
1,785,912

Net change in fund balances

(1,694,236)

(3,101,181)

6,903,171

Fund balance, beginning of year
Change in reserve for inventory

1,694,236
--

5,381,125
--

30,702,091
26,954

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Fund balance, end of year

$

--

$

2,279,944

$

37,632,216

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND
Year ended September 30, 2014

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Permits, fees and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

Expenditures
Current
Physical environment
Transportation
Reserve for contingencies
Total expenditures

Final
Budget

3,691,700
-2,944,210
-286,890
6,922,800

$

Actual

3,691,700
-3,355,160
-286,890
7,333,750

$

4,171,684
24,236
5,776,537
35,920
377,705
10,386,082

-10,451,830
-10,451,830

547,932
19,458,977
46,674
20,053,583

478,307
16,081,198
-16,559,505

(3,529,030)

(12,719,833)

(6,173,423)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

2,441,979
2,441,979

2,585,310
2,585,310

2,585,310
2,585,310

Net change in fund balances

(1,087,051)

(10,134,523)

(3,588,113)

Fund balance, beginning of year
Change in reserve for inventory

1,087,051
--

10,134,523
--

10,080,330
34,914

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Fund balance, end of year

$

--

$

--

$

6,527,131

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS
AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Year ended September 30, 2014

Actuarial Valuation Date
9/30/12

Schedule of Funding Progress
1. Current retirees liability

$

2,656,000

$

2,414,000

$

2,574,000

9,289,000

6,897,000

7,356,000

11,945,000

9,311,000

9,930,000

--

--

11,945,000

9,311,000

9,930,000

0%

0%

0%

$ 44,541,475

$ 44,527,946

$ 46,609,103

27%

21%

21%

2. Active employees
3. Actuarial Accrued Liability

--

4. Actuarial Value of Assets
5. Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
6. Funded Ratio (4. divided by 3.)
7. Annual Covered Payroll

9/30/14

9/30/13

8. Ratio of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
Liability to Covered Payroll

Fiscal Year Ended
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual OPEB Cost

$

Actual Contribution
Percentage Contributed
Net OPEB Obligation

$

1,473,000

9/30/14

9/30/13

9/30/12
$

991,000

$

1,040,000

332,971

267,636

291,329

23%

27%

28%

5,154,773

$

5,878,137

$

6,626,808

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
September 30, 2014

BUDGETARY INFORMATION
Florida Statutes Chapters 129 and 200 govern the preparation, adoption, and administration of the County’s
annual budget. The budget must be balanced, i.e., the estimated revenues plus beginning fund balance
brought forward must equal appropriations and be prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Board may, at any time within a
fiscal year, amend a budget for that year as follows:
Appropriations for expenditures in any fund may be decreased and other appropriations in the same fund
correspondingly increased by motion recorded in the minutes. The budget officer may authorize certain
inter-departmental and intra-departmental budget amendments, provided that the total appropriation of the
fund is not changed. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
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Other Supplemental Information
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES OF
FUNDS RELATED TO THE DEEPWATER HORIZON OIL SPILL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Source
BP Economic and Property Damages Promotional Fund:
Agreement No. ____2012-2013_________
Agreement No. ____2013-2014_________

Amount
Received
in the
2013-14
Fiscal Year

Amount
Expended
in the
2013-14
Fiscal Year

$ 98,200
$392,800

$ 131,607
$ 159,474

Note: This does not include funds related to the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill that are
considered Federal awards or State financial assistance. The Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance does not include any expenditures that are
related to the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Santa Rosa County, Florida, (the “County”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s basic financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 23, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL

We have examined Santa Rosa County, Florida’s, (hereinafter referred to as “County”), compliance with
Florida Statute 288.8018 in regards to the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill receipts and expenditures for the year
ended September 30, 2014.
Management is responsible for the County’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our examination.
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the County’s compliance with
specified requirements.
In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
year ended September 30, 2014.

Pensacola, Florida
March 23, 2015
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MANAGEMENT LETTER

To The Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Santa Rosa County, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as “County”),
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2015.
Auditors’ Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Other Reports
We have also issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and State Project and on Internal Control Over Compliance required by OMB Circular A-133, and
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General; and Independent Accountants’ Report on Examination of
Compliance Requirements in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in
those reports, which are dated March 23, 2015, should be considered in conjunction with this management
letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit
report. No recommendations were made in the preceding annual financial report.
Financial Condition
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we report the results of our determination
as to whether or not the County has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1),
Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we
determined that the County did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida
Statutes.
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the County’s financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management
and the review of financial information provided by same.
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Annual Financial Report
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we report the results of our determination
as to whether the annual financial report for the County for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, filed
with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. In connection
with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in agreement.
Special District Component Units
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.d, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not a special
district that is a component unit of the County provided the financial information necessary for proper
reporting of the component unit, within the audited financial statements of the County in accordance with
Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. The County’s financial statements do not include any special district
component units.
Other Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such
recommendations.
Section 10.554 (1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that
have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of those
charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, the
Board of County Commissioners, and applicable management and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

March 23, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Board of County Commissioners of Santa Rosa County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as
“Board”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board, as of September 30,
2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, the financial statements referred to above have been
prepared for the purpose of complying with the Rules of the Auditor General, State of Florida. In conformity
with the Rules, the accompanying financial statements are intended to present the financial position and
changes in financial position of each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information, only for that
portion of the major funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information, of Santa Rosa County, Florida that is
attributable to the Board. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Santa Rosa
County, Florida as of September 30, 2014, and the changes in its financial position for the fiscal year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary
comparison schedules on pages 43 and 44, and the schedules of funding progress and employer contributions
for other post-employment benefits on page 45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 23, 2015, on
our consideration of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 23, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net of uncollectibles
Notes
Accounts
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventory
Total assets
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued wages payable
Deposits
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources related
to note receivable
Combined liabilites and deferred inflows
of resources
Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

Road and
Bridge

General
$ 30,698,077
5,505,325

$

436,375
302,939
3,139,035
822,349
67,620
$ 40,971,720

$

$

$

737,730
10,861
664,271
230,412
1,165,839
-133,589
2,942,702

5,748,782
---

436,375

2,125
1,196,562
120,951
304,885
7,373,305

479,199
72,346
294,629
----846,174

--

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 19,019,637
--

$ 55,466,496
5,505,325

-719,042
1,253,967
--$ 20,992,646

436,375
1,024,106
5,589,564
943,300
372,505
$ 69,337,671

$

$

955,526
174,747
34,521
--943,300
-2,108,094

2,172,455
257,954
993,421
230,412
1,165,839
943,300
133,589
5,896,970

436,375

--

3,379,077

846,174

2,108,094

6,333,345

67,620
1,733,869
3,598,490
8,586,073
23,606,591
37,592,643

304,885
309,334
-5,912,912
-6,527,131

-9,794,139
9,462,579
763,217
(1,135,383)
18,884,552

372,505
11,837,342
13,061,069
15,262,202
22,471,208
63,004,326

7,373,305

$ 20,992,646

$ 69,337,671

$ 40,971,720

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year ended September 30, 2014

General

Road and
Bridge

Other
Governmental
Funds

$ 49,348,089
1,683,955
11,809,821
4,152,801
342,022
4,616,593

$ 4,171,684
24,236
5,776,537
35,920
-377,705

$ 1,722,670
11,543,503
2,711,008
2,300,920
39,559
266,832

71,953,281

10,386,082

18,584,492

100,923,855

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service

18,554,516
36,519,216
1,185,674
966,500
1,511,624
5,317,231
2,788,749
---

--478,307
16,081,198
------

925,004
6,627,626
883,843
503,956
2,096,323
132,450
78,527
488,191
1,431,988

19,479,520
43,146,842
2,547,824
17,551,654
3,607,947
5,449,681
2,867,276
488,191
1,431,988

Total expenditures

66,843,510

16,559,505

13,167,908

96,570,923

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

5,109,771

(6,173,423)

5,416,584

4,352,932

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in
Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)

3,920,311
(2,134,399)
1,785,912

2,585,310
-2,585,310

3,704,083
(8,570,969)
(4,866,886)

10,209,704
(10,705,368)
(495,664)

Net change in fund balances

6,895,683

(3,588,113)

549,698

3,857,268

30,670,006
26,954

10,080,330
34,914

18,334,854
--

59,085,190
61,868

$ 37,592,643

$ 6,527,131

$ 18,884,552

Revenues
Taxes
Permits, fees and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Fund balances, beginning of year
Change in reserve for inventory
Fund balances, end of year

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

55,242,443
13,251,694
20,297,366
6,489,641
381,581
5,261,130

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

63,004,326
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2014

Business-type Activities
Non-Major
Peter
Prince
Field
Landfill

Major Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Interest
Due from other governments
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Restricted investments
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on bond refunding
Total deferred inflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Current portion of claims payable
Accrued wages payable
Due to other governments
Compensated absences - current
Revenue bonds - current
Note payable - current
Accrued interest
Deposits
Current portion of landfill closure costs
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Long term portion of compensated absences
Long term portion of claims payable
Long term portion of landfill closure costs
Revenue bonds payable - net of discount
Note payable - noncurrent
OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for landfill closure
Unrestricted
Total net position

Navarre
Beach
$ 2,441,628
-198,205
-10,611
2,650,444
-6,247,183
6,247,183
8,897,627

$

5,012,624
-669,232
--5,681,856

$

910,934
-10,683
-346,921
1,268,538

Total
Enterprise
Funds
$

-3,783,966
3,783,966
5,052,504

4,966,334
5,954,213
10,920,547
16,602,403

8,365,186
-878,120
-357,532
9,600,838

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Fund
$

5,125,779
626,991
53,848
-5,806,618

4,966,334
15,985,362
20,951,696
30,552,534

-7,490
7,490
5,814,108

40,325
40,325

---

40,325
40,325

---

14,407
18,803
-26,825
-70,000
-443,693
-11,800
-585,528

98,983
--83,725
-195,000
284,341
-2,536
43,993
16,869
725,447

218,892
39,549
-1,743
1,368
----750
-262,302

332,282
58,352
-112,293
1,368
265,000
284,341
443,693
2,536
56,543
16,869
1,573,277

1,018,858
-1,442,706
11,866
-40,000
-----2,513,430

3,080
---3,041,062
54,629
3,098,771
3,684,299

65,449
-8,627,574
289,296
-166,042
9,148,361
9,873,808

-----1,935
1,935
264,237

68,529
-8,627,574
289,296
3,041,062
222,606
12,249,067
13,822,344

13,363
825,240
---27,316
865,919
3,379,349

---

---

---

---

---

3,783,966
-1,004,301
4,788,267

11,967,295
4,966,334
(163,114)
16,770,515

7,490
-2,427,269
2,434,759

2,762,428
-2,450,900
$ 5,213,328

5,420,901
4,966,334
(3,618,315)
$ 6,768,920

$

$

---

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended September 30, 2014
Business-type Activities
Non-Major
Major Funds
Peter
Navarre
Prince
Beach
Landfill
Field
Operating revenues
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Insurance proceeds
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Personal services
Contract services
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Depreciation
Travel and per diem
Insurance
Communications
Advertising
Fuel and oil
Rentals
Landfill closure and maintenance
Claims
State assessment
Miscellaneous
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Investment income
Interest expense
Sale of recycled materials
Recycle building lease
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Federal and State grants
Aid to private organizations
Amortization & other bond costs
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Transfer in
Transfer out
Capital contribution
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

.

$

-1,904,215
-902
1,905,117

$

38,650
4,769,454
-25
4,808,129

$

-253,484
-173
253,657

Total
Enterprise
Funds
$

38,650
6,927,153
-1,100
6,966,903

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Fund
$

-856,213
635,263
432
1,491,908

584,277
92,028
76,782
417,608
219,426
526,756
-8,050
12,361
-15,844
1,950
---4,657
1,959,739

1,803,682
261,250
47,108
385,322
50,922
667,694
5,371
9,280
9,909
1,525
356,415
17,776
520,174
--9,724
4,146,152

35,042
42,980
300
54,767
28,676
286,110
--211
------661
448,747

2,423,001
396,258
124,190
857,697
299,024
1,480,560
5,371
17,330
22,481
1,525
372,259
19,726
520,174
--15,042
6,554,638

281,995
144,230
16,124
1,478
-1,499
5,851
77,994
266
----1,610,755
13,340
11,492
2,165,024

(54,622)

661,977

(195,090)

412,265

(673,116)

1,837

660

2,500
10,611
--14,948

33,991
(13,029)
73,210
20,302
34,742
-(60,000)
(21,995)
67,221

660

36,488
(13,029)
73,210
20,302
37,242
10,611
(60,000)
(21,995)
82,829

(39,674)

729,198

(194,430)

495,094

(665,888)

----

----

--329,224

--329,224

496,664
(1,000)
--

(39,674)

729,198

134,794

824,318

(170,224)

5,253,002

6,039,722

4,653,473

15,946,197

2,604,983

$ 5,213,328

$ 6,768,920

$ 4,788,267

$ 16,770,515

$ 2,434,759

---

--------

7,399
---(171)
---7,228
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended September 30, 2014

Navarre
Beach
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Cash received from interfund services provided
Cash paid for internal services provided
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

Cash flows from non capital financing activities
Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of recycled materials
Lease on recycling building
Aid to private organizations
Net cash provided (used) by non capital financing activities

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Amortized deferred charges

.

4,616,838
(1,465,277)
(1,779,117)
--1,372,444

$

-(6,243)
73,210
20,302
(60,000)
27,269

Total
Enterprise
Funds

211,376
119,573
(34,441)
--296,508

6,752,815
(2,227,723)
(2,389,497)
--2,135,595

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Fund
$

432
(257,475)
(298,174)
1,457,965
(1,520,294)
(617,546)

-(6,243)
73,210
20,302
(60,000)
27,269

496,664
(1,000)
---495,664

-329,224
(487,658)
--(158,434)

38,948
339,835
(1,640,654)
(706,846)
(12,953)
(1,981,670)

--(7,042)
--(7,042)

787
787

36,952
(213,726)
(176,774)

7,424
(4,003)
3,421

$

4,420
8,360,766
8,365,186

$

(125,503)
5,251,282
5,125,779

$

412,265

$

(673,116)

36,448
-(1,083,123)
(279,476)
(12,953)
(1,339,104)

2,025
2,025

34,140
(213,726)
(179,586)

$

(15,464)
2,457,092
2,441,628

$

(118,977)
5,131,601
5,012,624

$

138,861
772,073
910,934

$

(54,622)

$

661,977

$

(195,090)

--

$

-------

2,500
10,611
(69,873)
(427,370)
-(484,132)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends
Net sale (purchase) of investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense
Landfill closure costs
Changes in ass ets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Due to other governments
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued compensation
Compensated absences
Due from other governments
OPEB liability
Claims payable
Deposits
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

-------

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets
Capital contributions
Purchases of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1,924,601
(882,019)
(575,939)
--466,643

Business-type Activities
Major Funds
Peter
Prince
Landfill
Field

--

526,756
--

667,694
520,174

286,110
--

1,480,560
520,174

1,499

$

(24,202)
-(25,886)
(7,427)
43
1,627
44,253
6,668
-(567)
466,643

$

(207,595)
-(276,540)
(34,135)
6,217
(328)
-18,676
-16,304
1,372,444

$

729
53
207,566
39,549
201
-(42,780)
400
-(230)
296,508

$

(231,068)
53
(94,860)
(2,013)
6,461
1,299
1,473
25,744
-15,507
2,135,595

$

$

--

$

21,995

$

--

$

21,995

$

-(33,511)
-67,794
-(1,726)
(17,666)
-3,173
36,007
-(617,546)

--
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied consistently in the preparation of the financial
statements follows:
1. Reporting Entity
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) established standards for defining the financial
reporting entity. In developing these standards, the GASB assumed that all governmental organizations are
responsible to elected officials at the federal, state, or local level. Financial reporting by a state or local
government should report the elected officials’ accountability for those organizations. As concluded by the
GASB, the financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which
the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The Board of County Commissioners of Santa Rosa County, Florida (the Board) is the principal legislative
and governing body of Santa Rosa County (the County), as provided by the Florida Constitution, Article 8,
Section 1(e), and Chapter 125, Florida Statutes. The Board consists of five Commissioners elected by the
voters of the County for terms of four years each.
The Board is considered part of the County’s primary government for purposes of GASB. These special
purpose financial statements of the Board are issued separately to comply with Section 10.557(3), Rules of
the Auditor General for Local Governmental Entity Audits, pursuant to Section 11.45(8), Florida Statutes
and do not include the Clerk of Courts, Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property Appraiser or Supervisor of
Elections (collectively known as County officers), or other independent authorities and boards. The
Board’s financial statements do not purport to reflect the financial position or the results of operations of
the County taken as a whole.
Dependent Special Districts
Blackwater Soil & Water Conservation District - The Blackwater Soil & Water Conservation District
(Blackwater) was created by the Florida Legislature in 1942 pursuant to Florida Statute Section 582. Santa
Rosa County was established as the local governing authority and is Blackwater’s only source of funding.
Blackwater does not meet the criteria as a legally separate entity in that it cannot buy, sell, own, lease and
mortgage property in its own name. The activities of Blackwater are included in these financial statements
as a department of the Board within the General Fund.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Pace Property Finance Authority - The Pace Property Finance Authority (Authority) was created in 1990
by County Resolution No. 90-12 pursuant to Chapter 617 of the Florida Statutes. In accordance with
Florida Statutes Section 189.403, the Authority qualifies as a dependent special district. Additionally, the
Authority is a component unit of the Board. However, the Authority meets the criteria for inclusion in more
than one reporting entity - Pace Water System as well as the Board. In these cases, judgment must be
exercised by management of the reporting entities as to which reporting entity the organization should be
included. The Authority has the same elected governing body as the Pace Water System. Additionally,
both the Authority and Pace Water System own portions of a single water/sewer system; thus, their capital
assets are part of an interconnected system. Finally, the Authority’s debt was issued solely to finance the
Pace water/sewer system improvements. Based on these facts, management has decided to include the
Authority in the combined financial statements of Pace Water System rather than as a component unit of
the Board.
Santa Rosa County Health Facilities Authority - The Santa Rosa County Health Facilities Authority
(Authority) was created in 1982 by County Ordinance No. 82-02 pursuant to Section 154, Florida Statutes.
In accordance with Florida Statutes Section 189.403, the Authority qualifies as a dependent special district.
Additionally, the Authority is a component unit of the Board. The Board appoints the five (5) members of
the Authority. Additionally, the Board may abolish the Authority at any time by ordinance or resolution as
long as all bonded indebtedness incurred by the Authority has been paid. The Authority exists solely to
assist health facilities within the County with the acquisition, construction, financing, and refinancing of
projects through issuance of conduit debt. All bonds issued by the Authority were subsequently defeased
through issuance of new debt culminating with the issuance of $58 million in new bonds in 2003. The debt
outstanding is a limited obligation of the Authority and not a general obligation of the Authority or the
Board. The Authority is not obligated to pay the principal and interest on the bonds except from the
revenues of the Authority pursuant to its loan agreement with Gulf Breeze Hospital. The Authority has no
financial activity and the bonds issued under the Authority’s name are recorded in the books of the hospital.
Santa Rosa County Housing Finance Authority - The Santa Rosa County Housing Finance Authority
(Authority) was created in 1984 by County Resolution No. 84-18 pursuant to Chapter 78-89, Laws of
Florida codified as Chapter 159, Part IV, Section 159.601 through 159.623. In accordance with Florida
Statutes Section 189.403, the Authority qualifies as a dependent special district. Additionally, the Authority
is a component unit of the Board. The Board, through various resolutions and interlocal agreements with
the Escambia County Housing Finance Authority (ECHFA), has authorized ECHFA to allow qualified
residents of the County to apply for and obtain preferential mortgages from proceeds generated by bonds
issued by ECHFA. Accordingly, there is no financial activity related to the Authority to be reflected in
these financial statements.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
2.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or
limitations.
The Board groups its funds into two broad fund categories as either governmental or proprietary in nature.
Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, debt service, permanent and capital projects
funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and an internal service fund.
3. Basis of Accounting
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Fund financial statements, as presented herein, focus primarily on the major funds of the governmental
and proprietary categories. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. The internal service fund is presented in a single column on
the face of the proprietary fund statements.
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current
financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis revenues are recognized in the accounting period
in which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in
which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable.
The major governmental funds are:
x General Fund – This is the Board’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
x Road and Bridge Fund – Accounts for that portion of state fuel taxes and fees designated for road
improvement projects.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Revenue Recognition
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are deemed both measurable and available (i.e., collectible within the current year or within one
month of year-end and available to pay obligations of the current period – except for certain grant revenues
which are recognized as revenues in the same period the grant expenditures occurred). This includes
investment earnings, property taxes, special assessments, and fines and forfeitures. Certain state-levied
locally shared taxes including motor vehicle license tax and fuel taxes are subject to income recognition
when the underlying transaction occurs. Reimbursements due for grant funded projects are accrued as
revenue at the time the expenditures are made, or when received in advance, deferred until expenditures are
made.
Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues,
are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
received.
Expenditure Recognition
The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on governmental long-term debt, which has not
matured, are recognized when paid. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the governmental funds.
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
All proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus.
These funds account for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. Revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are
recorded in proprietary funds. Unbilled utility service receivables are recorded at each year end.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of all
the Board’s enterprise funds and internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
Net positions should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. In a fund with both restricted and unrestricted assets, qualified expenses are considered to be
paid first from restricted net positions then from unrestricted net positions.
The major proprietary funds are:
x Navarre Beach Fund – Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the water and sewer system of
Navarre Beach.
x Landfill Fund – Accounts for the operation of the solid waste disposal facilities of the county.
The Board’s only internal service fund is the Self Insurance Fund. This fund accounts for the risk
management activities of the Board and the other elected officials. Costs are billed to the departments and
other elected officials at the actual and estimated costs of providing insurance coverage.
4. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Florida Statutes Chapters 129 and 200 govern the preparation, adoption, and administration of the Board’s
annual budget. The budget must be balanced, i.e., the estimated revenues plus beginning fund balance
brought forward must equal appropriations and be prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Board may, at any time within a
fiscal year, amend a budget for that year as follows:
Appropriations for expenditures in any fund may be decreased and other appropriations in the same fund
correspondingly increased by motion recorded in the minutes. The budget officer may authorize certain
inter-departmental and intra-departmental budget amendments, provided that the total appropriation of the
fund is not changed. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with
a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.
6. Investments
Investments in U.S. Treasury bills, government backed securities and the Florida Local Government
Investment Trust Fund are recorded at fair value. As permitted by GASB Statement No. 31, bank
certificates of deposit and short term money market investments are reported at amortized cost rather than
fair value.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
7. Inventory
Inventory consists of gas, oil, automotive parts, road signs, culverts, and various other items used by the
road department and insecticides used by mosquito control operations. Inventory is valued at cost (first in,
first out). The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time the inventory is purchased. Reported
inventories are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance since such amounts will not convert to cash
even though they are a component of net current assets.
8.

Accounting for Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined
by its measurement focus. Constructed or purchased capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or where
historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost. Donated capital assets
are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated. The minimum capitalization threshold is
any individual item with a total cost greater than $1,000 and a useful life of one year or more.
Capital assets in governmental funds, including infrastructure such as streets, drainage systems, culverts,
traffic signals, and signs are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:
Buildings
Water Distribution System
Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangibles

20 - 50 years
20 years
10 - 20 years
3 - 10 years
40 years
3 - 5 years

The Board does not capitalize interest expense on borrowings used to finance construction of capital assets,
as the capitalizable interest, after netting of interest earnings, is normally insignificant.
9.

Compensated Absences

Employees may accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused sick leave, annual leave, and
compensatory time, which will be paid upon separation from service. For the governmental fund
statements, expenditures are not recognized until payments are made to employees.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Proprietary fund types accrue benefits in the period they are earned. The majority of the compensated
absences liability has been paid out of the General (75%) and the Road and Bridge (25%) funds.
10. Property Taxes
Real and personal property valuations are determined each year as of January 1 by the Property Appraiser’s
office. Florida Statutes require that all property be assessed at 100 percent of just value.
All property taxes become due and payable on November 1, and are delinquent on April 1 of the following
year. Discounts of 4, 3, 2 and 1 percent are allowed for early payment in November through February,
respectively. The Tax Collector advertises as required by statute and sells tax certificates for unpaid taxes
on real property. Certificates not sold are considered "County Held Certificates." Persons owning land
upon which a tax certificate has been sold may redeem the land by paying the face amount of the tax
certificate, plus interest and other costs.
Property taxes levied on property valuations as of January 1, 2014 and expected to be collected during the
period November 2014 through March 2015 are as follows:
General Fund

$ 44,646,750

These taxes, although measurable, are not recognized as revenue at September 30, 2014, since they are not
considered to be collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay current
period liabilities.
11. Landfill Closure Costs
Under the terms of current state and federal regulations, the Board is required to place a final cover on
closed landfill areas, and to perform certain monitoring and maintenance functions for a period of up to
thirty years after closure. The Board recognizes these costs of closure and post-closure maintenance over
the active life of each landfill area, based on landfill capacity used during the period.
12. Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts
Accounts receivable for the Board are reported net of allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts represents those accounts which are deemed uncollectible based upon past collection
history.
13. Fund Balance
Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the Board is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications
are as follows:
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the
long-term amount of interfund loans.
Restricted - Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the Board to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment
of resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those
resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. Legal enforceability means
that the Board can be compelled by an external party-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation.
Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes imposed by formal action (ordinance or resolution) of the Board. Those committed
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board removes or changes the specified use by
taking the same type of action (ordinance) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In contrast to
fund balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed fund balance classification may be
redeployed for other purposes with appropriate due process. Constraints imposed on the use of committed
amounts are imposed by the Board, separate from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue;
therefore, compliance with these constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund
balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.
Assigned – Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Board for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental
funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not
restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the
Board or a County official delegated that authority by Board resolution or ordinance.
Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for
which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.
The Board applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund
balance classifications could be used.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS
At September 30, 2014, the bank held deposits of $63,112,911 (before outstanding checks and deposits in
transit) consisting of amounts held in checking, savings, money market or time deposit accounts. All
deposits with financial institutions were 100% insured by federal depository insurance or by collateral
pursuant to the Public Depository Security Act of the State of Florida.
The Board’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 218.415, the Board adopted an investment policy which outlines the
Board’s investment responsibilities, objectives, and policies. The Board’s investment policy authorizes
the Board to invest in the following:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA) (Maximum of 75%)*;
Florida Local Government Investment Trust (FLGIT) (State Investment Trust) (100% allowed)*;
Qualified money market mutual funds (Maximum of 50%)*;
U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds (100% allowed);
Obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government as to principal and interest such as obligations of
the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) (Maximum of 5%)*;
f. Non-callable Government Agency securities (Maximum of 25%)*:
(i) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB),
(ii) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC),
(iii) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB),
(iv) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA).
This classification of government agency securities does not include any mortgage debt of any
government agency;
g. Time deposits and savings accounts in banks or savings and loan associations doing business in
Florida (Maximum of 50%)*;
h. Repurchase agreements for investments authorized in categories d, e, or f above. (Maximum of
40%)*
*To limit the County’s concentration of credit risk these are the maximum percentages of the County’s
total portfolio that can be in each type of investment.
Interest rate risk is limited by no security having a maturity exceeding 2 years. The weighted average to
maturity for the portfolio shall be less than 365 days. Investments placed with the FLGIT, which typically
invests in instruments with maturities of less than 5 years, are exempt from this limitation.
The FLGIT, also known as Florida Trust, is a local government investment pool created by the Florida
Association of Court Clerks and Comptroller, and the Florida Association of Counties for the purpose
of providing public entities with an investment program by providing investment vehicles for funds that
can be invested in short- to intermediate-term securities and have returns generally greater than the national
average for money market instruments. The Florida Trust offers two open-ended, professionally managed
funds available only to public entities in Florida.
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued
The Investment Trust:
A short term bond fund with an investment portfolio structured to maintain safety of principal and maximize
available yield through a balance of quality and diversification. As of September 30, 2014 the Investment
Trust managed $714.63 million and had a price per share of $24.09. This short term bond fund invests in
U.S. Treasuries and Agency Securities, Mortgages, Commercial Paper, Asset-Backed Securities, and “A”
rated Corporate Securities.
The Day to Day Fund:
The Florida Trust Day to Day Fund is a money market product created in response to demand to provide a
fiscally conservative diversification option for Florida local governments. Fund features include same day
transactions and online account management. The fund is AAAm-rated by Standard and Poor’s and is
governed by the same board and advisory committee that oversees the Investment Trust.
Schedule of Cash and Investments at September 30, 2014
Carrying
Amount
Investments
FLGIT Investment Trust Fund
Total Investments

$ 11,098,650
11,098,650

Cash
Cash in Bank

18,016,244

Day to Day Trust

50,939,892

Petty Cash
Total Cash
Total Cash and Investments

1,325
68,957,461
$ 80,056,111

Financial Statement Presentation
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Governmental

$ 55,466,496

Enterprise

8,365,186

Internal Service

5,125,779

Investments
Governmental

5,505,325

Enterprise

4,966,334

Internal Service
Total Cash and Investments

626,991
$ 80,056,111
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued
Restricted cash and investments typically consist of funds set aside for the payment of debt or to ensure
assets producing pledged revenues are repaired and replaced as needed. These assets are restricted since
their use is limited by the applicable bond indentures. Other restricted assets consist of funds restricted to
the payment of future landfill closure costs.

Restricted investments by category and by fund are as follows:

Landfill escrow

Landfill
Fund
$ 4,966,334

NOTE C – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

At September 30, 2014, amounts due from other governmental units were as follows:
Federal Government - Grants
State of Florida - Grants
State of Florida - Taxes
Local taxes
Other Elected Officials
Other
Total

$

159,415
1,835,983
1,836,211
911,392
1,185,566
18,529
$ 5,947,096
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NOTE D – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Interfund transactions for the year ended September 30, 2014 were as follows:

General fund
Road & Bridge fund
Nonmajor Governmental funds
Self Insurance funds
Total

Interfund
Receivable
$ 822,349
120,951
$ 943,300

Interfund
Payable
$
943,300
$ 943,300

Interfund
Transfers in
$ 3,920,311
2,585,310
3,704,083
496,664
$ 10,706,368

Interfund
Transfers out
$ 2,134,399
8,570,969
1,000
$ 10,706,368

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) move
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.
Interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and
(3) payments between funds are made.
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NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 was as follows (in thousands):

Governmental activities

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Deletions

$

$

$

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

61,120
122,725
29,087
212,932

3,425
7,412
2,035
12,872

21
1,606
1,627

37,114
46,538
21,231
104,883
108,049
$ 136,797

-

$

2,759
3,707
2,080
8,546
4,326
6,109

Business like activities

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Deletions

$

$

$

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business like activities capital assets, net

$

19,596
9,152
28,748

1,191
785
1,976

50
1,733
1,783

1,422
1,422

$

72
10,055
10,127

3
1,485
1,488
139
10,266

1,682
1,682

Ending
Balance

$

19,574
830
20,404
64,545
130,116
29,516
224,177

39,873
50,242
21,826
111,941
112,236
$ 132,640

Ending
Balance

$

1,191
525
1,716

2,900
25,135
7,002
35,037

41
2,286
238
2,565

643
1,137
1,780

2,941
26,778
6,103
35,822

1,649
14,463
5,080
21,192
13,845
15,821

117
942
445
1,504
1,061
2,483

-

1,766
15,397
4,390
21,553
14,269
15,985

$

$

8
1,135
1,143
637
2,319

$
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NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued
Additions to accumulated depreciation do not agree with depreciation expense due to transfers of capital assets
between funds.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Government activities:
General government
Public Safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Total governmental activities depreciation expense

$2,579,235
668,529
131,365
3,247,584
79,546
118,297
1,691,350
$8,515,906

Business type activities
Water and sewer
Landfill
Hanger rental
Total business-type activities depreciation expense

$ 526,756
667,694
286,110
$1,480,560
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT
1. Changes in Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year.
Balance

Balance

Amount

October 1,

September 30,

Due within

2013

Additions

Deductions

2014

One Year

$ 2,916,870

$ 1,785,574

$ 1,710,467

$ 2,991,977

$ 1,800,000

Claims payable

2,231,939

1,610,755

1,574,748

2,267,946

1,442,706

Revenue bonds

853,113

-

279,476

573,637

284,341

Notes payable

1,089,329

-

82,260

1,007,069

85,382

Special assessment notes

4,089,724

-

897,540

3,192,184

808,341

Governmental activities:
Compensated absences

Total

$ 11,180,975

$ 3,396,329

$ 4,544,491

$ 10,032,813

$ 4,420,770

$

$

$

$

$

Business type activities:
Compensated absences

332,230

200,909

199,610

333,529

265,000

8,644,443

16,869

853,113

-

279,476

573,637

284,341

Notes payable

3,912,125

-

427,370

3,484,755

443,693

OPEB Liability

196,862

48,038

22,294

222,606

928,750

$ 13,258,970

Landfill closure costs
Revenue bonds

Total

8,124,269

$ 13,418,599

-

520,174

$

769,121

$

$ 1,009,903

Deferred charges on refunding of bonds totaling $40,325 are reported as deferred outflow of resources in
the proprietary funds.
Special assessment notes are fully secured by annual assessments made against property owners of the
specific area that benefited from the proceeds of the notes. The County has no legal obligation to levy ad
valorem taxes or cover the notes in case of default by the property owners. The County does, however,
maintain a moral commitment to cover the debt payments until such time as the property owners can make
the payments.
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
2. Descriptions of Bonds and Notes
Bonds and notes payable at September 30, 2014 are comprised of the following:
General government - notes payable
$999,380 Third Cent Tourist Development Tax Refunding Revenue
Note, Series 2011, payable to bank to refinance the $1,200,000 Third
Cent Tourist Development Tax Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2007
payable for the construction of a tourist information center in Navarre.
The note is due in 60 quarterly payments of $12,445 to $21,708, plus
interest at 3.79%, with final payment due in 2026 secured by Third Cent
tourist development tax revenues.

$

828,075

$495,570 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction
of certain road improvements in the Blackwater River and
Smuggler’s Cove subdivisions. The note is due in 36 quarterly payments
of $13,777 plus interest at 4.28%, secured by non-ad valorem revenues.
Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient to
retire the maturing principal and interest.

68,885

$341,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements for Duke Drive MSBU. The note is due
in 32 quarterly payments of $9,243 to $12,225 plus interest at 3.74%
with final payment due in 2016. Annual assessments will be made against
property owners sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

71,862

$600,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements on Polynesian Island Canal. The note is due
in 28 quarterly payments. Payments are interest only at 4.05% until 2012 then
principal payments of $36,085 to $48,931 plus interest with final payment
due in 2015. Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient
to retire the maturing principal and interest.

97,862

$169,100 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements for Joseph Circle MSBU. The note is due
in 36 quarterly payments of $3,636 to $5,941 plus interest at 5.65%
with final payment due in 2016. Annual assessments will be made against
property owners sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

50,582
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$324,500 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of
infrastructure improvements for Central Parkway MSBU. The note is due
in 36 quarterly payments of $7,112 to $11,146 plus interest at 5.14%
with final payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against
property owners sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.
$1,872,038 special assessment note payable to bank to refinance the
$1,582,132 and $770,000 special assessment notes payable for the
acquisition and installation of fire control equipment in the Santa Rosa
County Fire Protection MSBU. The note is due in 32 quarterly payments
of $53,061 to $64,128 plus interest at 2.44% with final payment due in 2018.
Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient to retire
the maturing principal and interest.

135,366

1,039,678

$287,870 note payable to bank for the acquisition and construction of
improvements for the Bagdad Heritage Trail Project. The note is due in 40
quarterly payments of $5,888 to 9,370 plus interest at 3.98% with final payment
due in 2020, secured by North Santa Rosa tourist development tax revenues.

178,995

$500,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Bernath Place MSBU. The note is due in 36
quarterly payments of $11,686 to $16,363 plus interest at 3.98% with final payment
due in 2018. Annual assessments will be made against property owners sufficient to
retire the maturing principal and interest.

244,277

$600,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Santa Rosa Shores MSBU. The note is due in 40
quarterly payments of $12,432 to $17,890 payments plus interest at 3.75% with final
payment due in 2019. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

312,930

$120,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Ski Watch Estates MSBU. The note is due in 36
quarterly payments of $2,829 to $3,883 including interest at 3.55% with final
payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

44,367

$412,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the acquisition and installation
fire control equipment in the Santa Rosa County Fire Protection MSBU. The note is
due in 28 quarterly payments of $13,565 to $15,891 plus interest at 2.34% with final
payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

199,650
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$700,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the acquisition and installation
fire control equipment in the Santa Rosa County Fire Protection MSBU. The note is
due in 60 quarterly payments of $9,134 to $14,526 plus interest at 3.14% with final
payment due in 2025. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

554,444

$395,000 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Longhorn Trail MSBU. The note is due in 24
quarterly payments of $15,423 to $17,537 plus interest at 2.24% with final
payment due in 2017. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

171,038

$268,350 special assessment note payable to bank for the construction of certain
infrastructure improvements in the Skiwatch Estates MSBU. The note is due in 40
quarterly payments of $7,625 including interest at 2.56% with final
payment due in 2021. Annual assessments will be made against property owners
sufficient to retire the maturing principal and interest.

201,242

General government - bonds payable
$3,057,579 Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2010
bonds due in quarterly installments of $128,435 to $145,585 plus interest
at 1.73% with final payment due in 2016; Bonds are allocated 50% to
governmental long-term debt and 50% to Landfill Fund. Secured by Sales Tax
revenues.
Total general government bonds and notes payable

573,637
$

4,772,890
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Proprietary fund type - note payable
Navarre Beach
$6,500,000 Utility System Revenue Note, Series 2006 payable to bank for the
construction of certain improvements and additions to the Navarre Beach
Utility System. The note is due in 15 annual payments of $335,333 to
$555,568 plus interest at 0.0%, adjusted every 3 years, secured by non-ad
valorem revenues.

3,484,755

Proprietary fund type - bonds payable
Landfill
$3,057,579 Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2010
bonds due in quarterly installments of $128,435 to $145,585 plus interest
at 1.73% with final payment due in 2016; Bonds are allocated 50% to
governmental long-term debt and 50% to Landfill Fund. Secured by Sales Tax
revenues.
Total proprietary fund type bonds and note payable

573,637
$ 4,058,392
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3. Debt Service Requirements
The annual requirements to amortize all bonds and notes outstanding at September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Governmental activities:
Year ended
September 30,
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029

Business-type activities:
Year ended
September 30,
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024

Principal
$ 1,178,063
1,058,164
700,355
582,601
309,935
723,937
219,835
$ 4,772,890

Interest
$ 133,856
101,243
74,667
54,116
38,714
102,022
7,347
$ 511,965

Total
$ 1,311,919
1,159,407
775,022
636,717
348,649
825,959
227,182
$ 5,284,855

Principal
$ 728,034
749,617
478,220
496,485
515,447
1,090,589
$ 4,058,392

Interest
$ 133,050
110,518
89,459
70,847
51,637
42,103
$ 497,614

Total
$ 861,084
860,135
567,679
567,332
567,084
1,132,692
$ 4,556,006

4. Defeased Debt Outstanding
In prior years the Board defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts’ assets
and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the Board’s financial statements. At September
30, 2014, $1.87 million of bonds are considered defeased.
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NOTE G - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS
The County has issued certain limited-obligation debt instruments, including: 1) industrial development
revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of
industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest; and 2) certain municipal service
benefit unit revenue notes to finance the acquisition, construction, reconstruction and equipping of capital
improvements within the municipal service benefit unit. The debt instruments are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Neither the
Board, the State nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the debt
instruments. Accordingly, the debt instruments are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.
Debt issues related to conduit financings outstanding at September 30, 2014 are as follows:
Date
Issued
Baptist Hospital, 2003
Holley Navarre Water System, 2004
Pace Volunteer Fire Department
Navarre Beach Volunteer Fire Department
Total

8/21/2003
6/2/2004
4/16/2007
4/25/2007

Final
Maturity

Amount
Issued

Outstanding
9/30/2014

10/1/2021 $ 57,905,000
5/1/2024
4,145,000
3/8/2017
1,169,000
4/25/2017
300,000

$ 57,905,000
2,410,000
377,095
95,629

$ 63,519,000

$ 60,787,724
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NOTE H - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS
State and federal laws and regulations require the Board to place a final cover on its landfill sites when the
landfill stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at sites for thirty
years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs are paid only near or after the date that a
landfill stops accepting waste, the Board reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $8.6
million reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability (current and noncurrent) at September 30,
2014, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the following percentage usage of the
estimated capacity of each of the Board’s landfills:
Central Class I Landfill
Central Class III Landfill (New)
Central Class III Landfill (Old)
Holley Landfill

84%
35%
Closed 10/98
Closed 06/94

The estimated cost of postclosure care for the Central Class III and Holley landfills have been recognized in
prior years with any changes in estimates being recorded in the current year. The Board will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care for the Central Class I and Class III landfills in the
amount of $5.5 million as its remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it
would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2014. The estimated remaining lives of the
Central Class I and Class III landfills are 15 and 32 years, respectively. Cost of closure and life estimates
are based on the areas currently in use, and not on potential areas of expansion. Actual costs may be higher
due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.
The Board is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust to
finance closure and postclosure care. At September 30, 2014, the Board held investments of $4,966,334 to
cover the escrow requirement of $4,961,183. These investments are reported as restricted assets in these
financial statements. The Board expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on
these restricted investments and from charges to future landfill users or future tax revenue.

NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
1. Retirement Plan
Participation - Employees of the Board participate in the Florida Retirement System, a cost-sharing
multiple-employer retirement system, established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. Participation is
compulsory for full-time and part-time employees working in regularly established positions. Elected
officials may elect not to participate in the system. Eligible employees may elect to participate in the
Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP), deferring receipt of retirement benefits while continuing
employment with a Florida Retirement System employer.
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NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued
Benefit Provisions – The Florida retirement system offers two retirement plans – the FRS Pension Plan
and the FRS Investment Plan. An employee may participate in only one of the plans. Both plans, effective
July 1, 2011, are funded monthly by a combination of employer and employee contributions.
The FRS Pension Plan is a defined benefit plan which provides retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Normal retirement
benefits are available to employees who retire at age 62 or 65 (depending on hire date) with 6 or 8
(depending on hire date) or more years of service, or to those employees who have at least 30 or 33
(depending on hire date) years of creditable service, regardless of age. Retirement age and years of service
requirements may vary depending on membership class. Early retirement is available after 6 years of
service with a 5% reduction of benefits for each year prior to the normal retirement age. Retirement
benefits are based upon age, average compensation, and years-of-service credit where average
compensation is computed as the average of an individual’s five (if enrolled prior to July 1, 2011) or eight
(if enrolled on or after July 1, 2011) highest years of earnings.
The FRS Investment Plan is a defined contribution plan in which participants are vested after one year of
service. The employer makes contributions each month based on a percentage of the employee’s gross
salary and membership class. The contribution percentage is the same whether participating in the Pension
Plan or Investment Plan. Members in the Investment Plan decide how their funds are allocated between
various investment accounts and the funds are portable upon termination if the participant is vested.
Members in the investment plan are not eligible for participation in the Deferred Retirement Option
Program (DROP).
For DROP participants, the deferred monthly benefit plus interest compounded monthly, accrues for the
specified period of the DROP participation. Upon retirement, the participant receives the total accumulated
DROP benefits and begins to receive current benefits at the previously determined rate.
Contributions - Chapter 121 requires the employer to pay contributions based upon state-wide rates
established by the State of Florida. Employees contribute 3% of their salary. During 2014, the Board
contributed an average of 7.06% of each qualified regular employee’s gross salary, 35.58% percent of the
elected official’s salary and 12.7% for each DROP participant. The Board’s contributions to the pension
plan, funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, were equal to the actuarially determined contribution requirements
for the year. The Board’s contributions to the Investment Plan were equal to the legislatively mandated
contribution rates, which are equal to a percentage of the members’ gross monthly salary based on
membership class. Contributions to both plans totaled $1,365,625, $923,537 and $766,330 for the years
ended September 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

Financial Report of the Plan - The Florida Retirement System issues a stand-alone financial report. A
copy can be obtained by contacting the State of Florida, Division of Retirement, Tallahassee, Florida.
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NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued
2. Litigation
The Board is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the Board’s attorney the resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Board.
3. Federal and State Grants
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by grantors cannot be
determined at this time although the Board expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In 1986 the Board established a
Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under
this program the Board is self-insured with respect to the following exposures:
Workers Compensation
Auto Physical Damage
Auto Liability
Construction and Road Equipment
Portable Communication Equipment
The Board is covered by outside insurance for the following exposures:
Boats
Employee Fidelity
Buildings and Contents, $5,000 deductible
General Liability, $25,000 deductible
Public Officials’ Liability, $25,000 deductible
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NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued
Conventional insurance remains in effect for buildings, contents and Sheriff’s general, automobile and
professional liability. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The Board of County Commissioners and other County
elected officials participate in the program and make payments to the Self Insurance Fund based on
historical estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to establish a reserve for
catastrophic losses. The claims liability of $2,267,946 is based on the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Liabilities for incurred losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determined payments over a long period of
time are reported at their present value using an expected future investment yield assumption of 3.9 - 7
percent. These liabilities are reported at their present value of $902,650 at September 30, 2014.

Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

2012 - 2013
2013 - 2014

Beginning-ofFiscal-Year
Liability

Current-Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

$ 2,884,872
$ 2,231,939

$ 1,270,453
$ 1,610,755

Balance at
Fiscal
Year-End

Claim
Payments
$
$

1,923,386
1,574,748

$
$

2,231,939
2,267,946

The following table presents a summary of the claims payable liability at year end:
Current claims payable
Current claims-structured settlements
Total claims payable, current
Long-term claims-structured settlements
Total claims payable

$

$

1,365,296
77,410
1,442,706
825,240
2,267,946
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NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued
The Board is a member of the Florida Association of Counties Trust, a pooled liability program providing
general liability coverage and public officials’ liability coverage, excluding the Sheriff. The Board pays an
annual premium as a participant of the pooled liability program. During 1994, the first year of
participation, the Board paid an extraordinary loss fund payment of $249,886. The liability coverage is not
designed to be assessable; however, should the pool fail to meet its obligations, the Board may be required
to contribute additional funds or cover its own obligations. No accrual for future assessments has been
recorded in the balance sheet as such assessments do not appear probable based on past experience of the
pool, and experience of the pool subsequent to the Board’s fiscal year end through the date of these
financial statements. In the event the Board elected to terminate its participation in the pool, the
extraordinary loss fund payment would be refunded to the Board, given adequate funding of the pool.

NOTE K - FUND BALANCES
Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the Board is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the government funds. The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental
funds and all other governmental funds are presented on the following page.
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NOTE K - FUND BALANCES – Continued

Fund balances
Nonspendable
$
Inventory
Restricted for:
Communications
Boating improvement
Domestic violence
Voter education
Pollworker recruitment
Federal elections
Partners for pets
Navarre Beach Bridge maintenance
Law Enforcement Trust Fund
Crime prevention
Mosquito control
Federal and state grants
Enhanced 911 system
Tourist development
Infrastructure development
State Housing Improvement Program
Road and sewer construction
Canal maintance
Street lighting
Committed to:
Animal service education
Court innovations
Transportation, recreation
and economic development
Gas and oil preservation
Capital construction projects
Assigned to:
Road and bridge construction
and maintenance
Debt service
Berm restoration
Law library
Court operations
Gas and oil preservation
Berm restoration
Unassigned
$

Major Funds
Road and
Bridge
General
Fund
Fund
67,620

$

304,885
309,334
-

1,229,288
252,193
136,907
9,234
1,887
10,544
93,816
-

Other
Funds
$

Total
-

$

372,505

92,830
327,113
27,400
1,522,170
1,284,308
2,515,020
2,748,918
809,796
324,866
77,334
64,384

1,229,288
252,193
136,907
9,234
1,887
10,544
93,816
309,334
92,830
327,113
27,400
1,522,170
1,284,308
2,515,020
2,748,918
809,796
324,866
77,334
64,384

46,823
-

-

267,359

46,823
267,359

3,551,667
-

-

4,003,490
5,191,730

4,003,490
3,551,667
5,191,730

83,590
26,574
653,053
(1,135,383)
$ 18,884,552

5,912,912
83,590
8,200,000
26,574
653,053
195,317
190,756
22,471,208
$ 63,004,326

8,200,000
195,317
190,756
23,606,591
37,592,643

$

5,912,912
6,527,131
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NOTE L – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
The County implemented, in 2009, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for certain postemployment health care benefits
provided by the County.
Plan Description – Pursuant to the provisions of Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, former employees who
retire from the County and eligible dependents, may continue to participate in the County’s purchased health
and hospitalization insurance coverage (the Plan) at the same group rate as for active employees and
participating retirees are required to reimburse the Board 100% of the health insurance premium a month in
advance. The Plan is a single-employer plan. The County subsidizes the premium rates paid by the retirees by
allowing them to participate in the plan at reduced or blended group (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for
both active and retired employees. These rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial
basis, their current and future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the plan on average than those of
active employees. The County also provides an insurance subsidy for employees with at least 10 years (8 years
elected) creditable service. The subsidy pays $3 per year of service limited to the individual’s premium
payment up to a maximum of $90 per year. No stand-alone financial report is issued.
Funding Policy – The County has not advance-funded or established a funding methodology for the annual
Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) costs or the net OPEB obligation. For the 2014 fiscal year, 212 retirees
and eligible dependents received postemployment health care benefits. The County provided required
contributions of $158,329 toward the annual OPEB cost, comprised of benefit payments made on behalf of
retirees insurance net of retiree contributions totaling $394,269. Required contributions are based on projected
pay-as-you-go financing which differ from the Annual Required Contribution.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation – The following table shows the County’s annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation:

Description
Normal Cost (Service cost for one year)
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
Annual Required Contribution
Amortization of Net OPEB Obligation
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation
Annual OPEB Cost (expense)
Contribution Towards the OPEB Cost
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year
Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year

Health
Insurance
$ 589,000
602,000
1,191,000
(357,000)
206,000
1,040,000
(291,329)
748,671
5,878,137
$ 6,626,808
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NOTE L – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS - Continued
The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation as of September 30, 2014, was as follows:

Fiscal Year
2011-2012
2012-2013
2013-2014

Annual
OPEB Cost
$ 1,473,000
$
991,000
$ 1,040,000

Percentage
Of Annual
OPEB Cost
Contributed
23%
27%
28%

Net OPEB
Obligation
$ 5,154,773
$ 5,878,137
$ 6,626,808

Funded Status and Funding Progress – As of September 30, 2014, the date of the actuarial valuation, the
actuarial accrued liability was $9,930,000 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability of $9,930,000. Amortization of the accrued liability for the year ended September 30,
2014 was $602,000. The annual covered payroll (annual payroll of active participating employees) was
$46,609,103 for the 2013-2014 fiscal year. The ratio of the unfunded actuarial liability to annual covered
payroll is 21%.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment and termination, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan provisions, as understood by the employer and participating members, and include the type of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and participating members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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NOTE L – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS - Continued
The County’s OPEB actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2014, used the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method to estimate both the unfunded actuarial liability as of September 30, 2014 and to estimate the County’s
2013-2014 fiscal year annual required contribution. This method was selected because it produced the best
estimate of the OPEB liability and annual cost. Because the OPEB liability is currently unfunded, the actuarial
assumptions include a 3.5% rate of return on invested assets assuming the benefits will continue to be funded
on a pay-as-you-go basis and that the County’s investments will earn 3.5% over the long term. The actuarial
assumptions also include an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.5% initially for the 09-10 fiscal year,
decreasing gradually per year to an ultimate rate of 4.3% in 2070. The inflation rate assumption is 2.8%. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level dollar method. The remaining, closed,
amortization period at September 30, 2014 is 25 years.
The required schedule of funding progress, immediately following the notes, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended September 30, 2014

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Permits, fees and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous

Final
Budget

Actual

43,768,640
1,306,250
10,110,250
3,878,240
202,210
3,188,820

43,959,396
1,306,250
10,978,201
3,878,240
245,281
3,218,597

49,348,089
1,683,955
11,809,821
4,152,801
342,022
4,616,593

62,454,410

63,585,965

71,953,281

17,992,261
35,580,762
1,347,376
931,400
143,080
5,477,508
2,885,002
1,250,470

18,986,444
36,739,641
1,588,416
964,010
1,645,244
5,534,563
2,973,316
41,424

18,554,516
36,519,216
1,185,674
966,500
1,511,624
5,317,231
2,788,749
--

Total expenditures

65,607,859

68,473,058

66,843,510

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

(3,153,449)

(4,887,093)

5,109,771

2,241,706
(782,493)

3,920,311
(2,134,399)

3,920,311
(2,134,399)

1,459,213

1,785,912

1,785,912

Net change in fund balances

(1,694,236)

(3,101,181)

6,895,683

Fund balance, beginning of year
Change in reserve for inventory

1,694,236
--

5,381,125
--

30,670,006
26,954

--

2,279,944

37,592,643

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Reserve for contingencies

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Fund balance, end of year

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Board of County Commissioners
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND
Year ended September 30, 2014

Final
Budget

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Permits, fees and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

$

3,691,700
-2,944,210
-286,890

$

3,691,700
-3,355,160
-286,890

Actual
$

4,171,684
24,236
5,776,537
35,920
377,705

6,922,800

7,333,750

10,386,082

-10,451,830
--

547,932
19,458,977
46,674

478,307
16,081,198
--

Total expenditures

10,451,830

20,053,583

16,559,505

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

(3,529,030)

(12,719,833)

(6,173,423)

2,441,979

2,585,310

2,585,310

2,441,979

2,585,310

2,585,310

Net change in fund balances

(1,087,051)

(10,134,523)

(3,588,113)

Fund balance, beginning of year
Change in reserve for inventory

1,087,051
--

10,134,523
--

10,080,330
34,914

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Physical environment
Transportation
Reserve for contingencies

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

Fund balance, end of year

$

--

$

--

$

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

6,527,131
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SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS
AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Year ended September 30, 2014

Actuarial Valuation Date
Schedule of Funding Progress
1. Current retirees liability

$

2. Active employees
3. Actuarial Accrued Liability

2,656,000

$

5. Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability

2,414,000

$

2,574,000

6,897,000

7,356,000

11,945,000

9,311,000

9,930,000

--

--

11,945,000

9,311,000

9,930,000

0%

0%

0%

6. Funded Ratio (4. divided by 3.)
$

9/30/14

9,289,000

--

4. Actuarial Value of Assets

7. Annual Covered Payroll

9/30/13

9/30/12

44,541,475

$

44,527,946

$

46,609,103

8. Ratio of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
21%

27%

Liability to Covered Payroll

21%

Fiscal Year Ended
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual OPEB Cost

9/30/12
$

Actual Contribution
Percentage Contributed
Net OPEB Obligation

$

9/30/13

1,473,000

$

9/30/14

991,000

$

1,040,000

332,971

267,636

291,329

23%

27%

28%

5,154,773

$

5,878,137

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

$

6,626,808
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BUDGETARY INFORMATION
Florida Statutes Chapters 129 and 200 govern the preparation, adoption, and administration of the County’s
annual budget. The budget must be balanced, i.e., the estimated revenues plus beginning fund balance
brought forward must equal appropriations and be prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Board may, at any time within a
fiscal year, amend a budget for that year as follows:
Appropriations for expenditures in any fund may be decreased and other appropriations in the same fund
correspondingly increased by motion recorded in the minutes. The budget officer may authorize certain
inter-departmental and intra-departmental budget amendments, provided that the total appropriation of the
fund is not changed. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of County Commissioners of Santa Rosa County,
Florida, (hereinafter referred to as “Board”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
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contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 23, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL

We have examined the Board of County Commissioners of Santa Rosa County, Florida’s, (hereinafter
referred to as “Board”), compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in regards to investments for the year
ended September 30, 2014.
Management is responsible for the Board’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Board’s compliance based on our examination.
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the Board’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Board’s compliance with
specified requirements.
In our opinion, the Board complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
year ended September 30, 2014.

Pensacola, Florida
March 23, 2015
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MANAGEMENT LETTER
Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Santa Rosa County, Florida, Board of County Commissioners, (hereinafter referred to as “Board”), as
of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated March 23, 2015.
Auditors’ Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Other Reports
We have also issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountants’ Report on Examination of Compliance
Requirements in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports,
which are dated March 23, 2015, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit
report. No recommendations were made in the preceding annual financial report.
Other Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such
recommendations.
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with provisions
of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect
on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of those charged with
governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
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Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, and the
Santa Rosa County Board of County Commissioners and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

March 23, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE
AUDITOR GENERAL
Board of County Commissioners
Santa Rosa County, Florida
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project
We have audited the compliance of Santa Rosa County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as “County”), with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, and the requirements described in the State of Florida
Department of Financial Services’ State Projects Compliance Supplement, that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs and state projects for the year ended
September 30, 2014. The County’s major federal programs and state projects are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal programs and state projects.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal programs
and state projects based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program or state project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and state project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
County’s compliance with those requirements.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project
In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs and
state projects for the year ended September 30, 2014.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program or state project to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance for each major federal program and state project and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the Florida Department of Financial Services
State Projects Compliance Supplement, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program or state project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program or state project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state
project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not suitable
for any other purpose.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Required
by OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Santa Rosa County, Florida, as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2014, and the notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2015, which contained
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance is presented
for the purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of
the Auditor General, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements.
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The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

March 23, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Santa Rosa County Florida
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Year ended September 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/Pass-through
Grantor/Program Title

CFDA
Number

Contract /
Grant Number

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service
Cooperative Forestry Assistance

10.664

VFA

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed Through Florida Dept. of Revenue
Child Support Enforcement Program
Child Support Enforcement Program
Child Support Enforcement Program
Child Support Enforcement Program

93.563
93.563
93.563
93.563

COC57
CD357
CSS57
CST57

93.617

2013-2014-0003

97.039
97.039

13HM-2X-01-67-01-491
14HM-6B-01-67-01-373

292,020
51,199
343,219

97.036

15-SP-8Z-01-67-02-500

43,386

97.067
97.067
97.067

13-DS-20-01-67-01-149
14-DS-C2-01-67-01-156
14-DS-L5-01-67-01-482

4,020
11,520
13,450
28,990

97.042
97.042
97.042
97.042

14-CI-K1-01-67-02-437
14FG-1M-01-67-01-124
15FG-4D-01-67-01-124
14-CC-K1-01-67-02-448

6,897
53,052
19,153
12,400
91,502

14.228
14.228
14.228

10DB-K4-01-67-01-K31
11DB-C5-01-67-01-N22
12DB-P5-01-67-01-K57

164,618
241,848
79,002
485,468

14.239

M-13-DC-12-0225

378,093

16.588
16.588

14-8027-SAO
15-8027-SAO

Passed Through Florida Division of Elections
Voting Access for Individuals with Disabilities Grants to States
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed Through Florida Division of Emergency Management
Hazard Mitigation Grant - Ramblewood Phase II
Hazard Mitigation Grant - Settlers Colony Phase I

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (April Severe Weather)
Passed Through Florida Division of Emergency Management
Homeland Security Grant Program
Homeland Security Grant Program
Homeland Security Grant Program

Emergency Management Performance Grants - CERT
Emergency Management Performance Grants
Emergency Management Performance Grants
Emergency Management Performance Grants - Citizen Corps

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed Through Florida Dept. of Community Affairs
Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Grant
Community Development Block Grants
Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Grant (DREF)
Passed Through Escambia County Consortium
HOME Investment Partnerships Program
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed Through Florida Coalition Against Domestic Violence
Violence Against Women Formula Grants
Violence Against Women Formula Grants

$

15,000

10,897
155,680
9,286
2,792
178,655
15,288

42,574
16,600
59,174

Passed Through Office of the Attorney General
Crime Victim Assistance

16.575

Passed Through Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

16.738
16.738

2014-JAGC-SANT-1-E5-100
2013-DJ-BX-0104

54,075
14,316
68,391

20.509

AQF63

84,976

Highway Planning and Construction

20.205

Highway Planning and Construction

20.205

ARO95/428872-2-58-01/8886-297-A
428872-2-68-01/8886-297-A
AQ207/428099-1-38-01/8887-838-A
428099-1-58-01/8887-842-A

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed Through Florida Dept. of Transportation
Formula Grants for Rural Areas

V13233

35,687

818,133
526,077
1,344,210

U.S. Election Assistance Commission
Passed Through Florida Division of Elections
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments

90.401

N/A

33,489

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Congressionally Mandated Projects

66.202

XP-95478911-0

10,611

Total Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

$

3,216,139
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Santa Rosa County Florida
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Year ended September 30, 2014

State Grantor/Pass-through
Grantor/Program Title

CSFA
Number

Contract /
Grant Number

Expenditures

Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
Mosquito Control

42.003

020324

Florida Department of Health
County Grant Awards

64.005

C2055

19,395

Florida Department of State
State Aid to Libraries

45.030

14-ST-78

123,271

State Highway Project Reimbursement - FDOT Landscape Program

55.023

416533-8-58-26

60,000

Transportation Regional Incentive Program

55.026

421994-1-5801

40,605

Economic Development Transportation Projects - Road Fund

55.032

432504-1-58-01 (AQT64)

73,073

Aviation Development Grants - Joint Participation Agreement
Aviation Development Grants - Joint Participation Agreement

55.004
55.004

41593119401 (AQG10)
42563319401 (AR960)

Small County Outreach Program

55.009

AR457 (425691-1-58-01)

31.063
31.063

14-BG-83-01-67-01-057
15-BG-83-01-67-01-057

79,464
32,910
112,374

31.067

14-CP-11-01-67-01-214

8,558

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Beach Management Funding Assistance Program

37.003

12SR1

Florida Executive Office of the Governor
Enterprise Florida Inc. - Defense Infrastructure Grant
Enterprise Florida Inc. - Defense Infrastructure Grant

31.003
31.003

DIG 11-08
DIG 12-02

25,901
81,117
107,018

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity
Military Base Protection - Enterprise Florida, Inc.
Military Base Protection - Enterprise Florida, Inc.
Military Base Protection - Florida Defense Support Task Force

40.014
40.014
40.014

DRG 13-05
DRG 14-02
DTF 13-06

4,290
47,652
129,400
181,342

Florida Housing Finance Corporation
State Housing Initiative Partnership Program

52.901

$

29,456

Florida Department of Transportation

Florida Division of Emergency Management
Emergency Management Programs
Emergency Management Programs

Emergency Management Projects - Hazards Analysis

304,792
24,432
329,224
1,452,651

36,603

N/A

Total State Financial Assistance

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

216,560
$

2,790,130
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance includes
the Federal and State grant activity of Santa Rosa County, Florida and is presented on the accrual basis
of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Auditor General. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
For the year ended September 30, 2014

A.

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR RESULTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Unmodified Opinion
______ yes

• no

______ yes

•none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

______ yes

•no

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)?

______ yes

•no

______ yes

•none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Unmodified opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
Circular A-133?
______ yes

•no

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Internal control over major projects:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)?

______ yes

•no

______ yes

••none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major projects:

Unmodified Opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Auditor General?

______ yes

•no

IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR PROGRAMS
Federal Programs
CFDA No. 20.205 Highway Planning and Construction
CFDA No. 97.039 Hazard Mitigation Assistance
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:

$300,000
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

•yes ______no

State Projects
CSFA No. 55.004 Aviation Development Grants
CSFA No. 55.009 Small County Outreach Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:
B.

$300,000

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
There were no findings required to be reported in accordance with government auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.

C.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS
There were no findings which were required to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
OMB Circular A-133.

D.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
There were no findings which were required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Auditor General.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

A.

Prior-Year Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs
None reported.

B.

Prior-Year Findings and Questioned Costs – Major State Projects
None reported.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT


+RQRUDEOH:HQGHOO+DOO6KHULII
6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD

Report on the Financial Statements

:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV ³ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV´ RIHDFKPDMRUIXQGDQGWKH
DJJUHJDWHUHPDLQLQJIXQGLQIRUPDWLRQRIWKH2IILFHRIWKH6KHULIIRI6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD ³6KHULII´ DV
RI DQG IRU WKH \HDU HQGHG 6HSWHPEHU   DQG WKH UHODWHG QRWHV WR WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZKLFK
FROOHFWLYHO\FRPSULVHWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVOLVWHGLQWKHWDEOHRIFRQWHQWV

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

0DQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKDFFRXQWLQJSULQFLSOHVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFDWKLVLQFOXGHV
WKH GHVLJQ LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ DQG PDLQWHQDQFH RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU
SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV WKDW DUH IUHH IURP PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHWKHU GXH WR IUDXG RU
HUURU

Auditors’ Responsibility

2XUUHVSRQVLELOLW\LVWRH[SUHVVRSLQLRQVRQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVEDVHGRQRXUDXGLW:HFRQGXFWHG
RXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFDDQG
WKH VWDQGDUGV DSSOLFDEOH WR ILQDQFLDO DXGLWV FRQWDLQHG LQGovernment Auditing Standards LVVXHG E\ WKH
&RPSWUROOHU*HQHUDORIWKH8QLWHG6WDWHV7KRVHVWDQGDUGVUHTXLUHWKDWZHSODQDQGSHUIRUPWKHDXGLWWR
REWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQW

$QDXGLWLQYROYHVSHUIRUPLQJSURFHGXUHVWRREWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHDERXWWKHDPRXQWVDQGGLVFORVXUHVLQ
WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 7KH SURFHGXUHV VHOHFWHG GHSHQG RQ WKH DXGLWRUV¶ MXGJPHQW LQFOXGLQJ WKH
DVVHVVPHQWRIWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,Q PDNLQJ WKRVH ULVN DVVHVVPHQWV WKH DXGLWRU FRQVLGHUV LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH 6KHULII¶V
SUHSDUDWLRQDQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLWSURFHGXUHVWKDWDUH
DSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRI
WKH6KHULII¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO$FFRUGLQJO\ZHH[SUHVVQRVXFKRSLQLRQ$QDXGLWDOVRLQFOXGHVHYDOXDWLQJ
WKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHV
PDGHE\PDQDJHPHQWDVZHOODVHYDOXDWLQJWKHRYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRU
RXUDXGLWRSLQLRQV




Opinions
,Q RXU RSLQLRQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV UHIHUUHG WR DERYH SUHVHQW IDLUO\ LQ DOO PDWHULDO UHVSHFWV WKH
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIHDFKPDMRUIXQGDQGWKHDJJUHJDWHUHPDLQLQJIXQGLQIRUPDWLRQRIWKH6KHULIIDVRI
6HSWHPEHU   DQG WKH UHVSHFWLYH FKDQJHV LQ ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ IRU WKH \HDU WKHQ HQGHG LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKDFFRXQWLQJSULQFLSOHVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFD

Emphasis of Matter

$VGLVFXVVHGLQ1RWH$WRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHIHUUHGWRDERYHKDYHEHHQ
SUHSDUHG IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI FRPSO\LQJ ZLWK WKH 5XOHV RI WKH $XGLWRU *HQHUDO 6WDWH RI )ORULGD  ,Q
FRQIRUPLW\ ZLWK WKH 5XOHV WKH DFFRPSDQ\LQJ ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH LQWHQGHG WR SUHVHQW WKH ILQDQFLDO
SRVLWLRQDQGFKDQJHVLQILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIHDFKPDMRUIXQGDQGDJJUHJDWHUHPDLQLQJIXQGLQIRUPDWLRQ
RQO\ IRU WKDW SRUWLRQ RI WKH PDMRU IXQGV DQG WKH DJJUHJDWH UHPDLQLQJ IXQG LQIRUPDWLRQ RI 6DQWD 5RVD
&RXQW\)ORULGDWKDWLVDWWULEXWDEOHWRWKH6KHULII7KH\GRQRWSXUSRUWWRDQGGRQRWSUHVHQWIDLUO\WKH
ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ RI 6DQWD 5RVD &RXQW\ )ORULGD DV RI 6HSWHPEHU   DQG WKH FKDQJHV LQ LWV
ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ IRU WKH ILVFDO \HDU WKHQ HQGHG LQ FRQIRUPLW\ ZLWK DFFRXQWLQJ SULQFLSOHV JHQHUDOO\
DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFD2XURSLQLRQLVQRWPRGLILHGZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHVHPDWWHUV

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
$FFRXQWLQJ SULQFLSOHV JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG LQ WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI $PHULFD UHTXLUH WKDW WKH EXGJHWDU\
FRPSDULVRQ LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ SDJH  EH SUHVHQWHG WR VXSSOHPHQW WKH EDVLF ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV  6XFK
LQIRUPDWLRQDOWKRXJKQRWDSDUWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLVUHTXLUHGE\WKH*RYHUQPHQWDO$FFRXQWLQJ
6WDQGDUGV %RDUG ZKR FRQVLGHUV LW WR EH DQ HVVHQWLDO SDUW RI ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ IRU SODFLQJ WKH EDVLF
ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ DQ DSSURSULDWH RSHUDWLRQDO HFRQRPLF RU KLVWRULFDO FRQWH[W  :H KDYH DSSOLHG
FHUWDLQ OLPLWHG SURFHGXUHV WR WKH UHTXLUHG VXSSOHPHQWDU\ LQIRUPDWLRQ LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DXGLWLQJ
VWDQGDUGVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFDZKLFKFRQVLVWHGRILQTXLULHVRIPDQDJHPHQW
DERXW WKH PHWKRGV RI SUHSDULQJ WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG FRPSDULQJ WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ IRU FRQVLVWHQF\ ZLWK
PDQDJHPHQW¶V UHVSRQVHV WR RXU LQTXLULHV WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG RWKHU NQRZOHGJH ZH REWDLQHG
GXULQJRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV:HGRQRWH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRUSURYLGHDQ\DVVXUDQFHRQ
WKHLQIRUPDWLRQEHFDXVHWKHOLPLWHGSURFHGXUHVGRQRWSURYLGHXVZLWKVXIILFLHQWHYLGHQFHWRH[SUHVVDQ
RSLQLRQRUSURYLGHDQ\DVVXUDQFH

Other Supplementary Information
2XUDXGLWZDVFRQGXFWHGIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIIRUPLQJRSLQLRQVRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJ
FRPELQLQJIXQGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRQSDJHVDUHSUHVHQWHGIRUSXUSRVHVRIDGGLWLRQDODQDO\VLVDQGDUH
QRWDUHTXLUHGSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV6XFKLQIRUPDWLRQLVWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\RIPDQDJHPHQWDQG
ZDVGHULYHGIURPDQGUHODWHVGLUHFWO\WRWKHXQGHUO\LQJDFFRXQWLQJDQGRWKHUUHFRUGVXVHGWRSUHSDUHWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KHLQIRUPDWLRQKDVEHHQVXEMHFWHGWRWKHDXGLWLQJSURFHGXUHVDSSOLHGLQWKHDXGLWRI
WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG FHUWDLQ DGGLWLRQDO SURFHGXUHV LQFOXGLQJ FRPSDULQJ DQG UHFRQFLOLQJ VXFK
LQIRUPDWLRQGLUHFWO\WRWKHXQGHUO\LQJDFFRXQWLQJDQGRWKHUUHFRUGVXVHGWRSUHSDUHWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
WKHPVHOYHVDQGRWKHUDGGLWLRQDOSURFHGXUHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH
8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFD,QRXURSLQLRQWKHLQIRUPDWLRQLVIDLUO\VWDWHGLQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVLQUHODWLRQWR
WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWDNHQDVDZKROH



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWKGovernment Auditing StandardsZHKDYHDOVRLVVXHGRXUUHSRUWGDWHG0DUFK
RQ RXU FRQVLGHUDWLRQ RI WKH 6KHULII¶V LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ DQG RQ RXU WHVWV RI LWV
FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK FHUWDLQ SURYLVLRQV RI ODZV UHJXODWLRQV FRQWUDFWV DQG JUDQW DJUHHPHQWV DQG RWKHU
PDWWHUV7KHSXUSRVHRIWKDWUHSRUWLVWRGHVFULEHWKHVFRSHRIRXUWHVWLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWURORYHUILQDQFLDO
UHSRUWLQJ DQG FRPSOLDQFH DQG WKH UHVXOWV RI WKDW WHVWLQJ DQG QRW WR SURYLGH DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH LQWHUQDO
FRQWURORYHUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJRURQFRPSOLDQFH7KDWUHSRUWLVDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIDQDXGLWSHUIRUPHGLQ
DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK Government Auditing Standards LQ FRQVLGHULQJ WKH 6KHULII¶V LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU
ILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGFRPSOLDQFH
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ASSETS
&DVK
'XHIURPRWKHUIXQGV
'XHIURPRWKHUJRYHUQPHQWDOXQLWV
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
,QYHQWRU\
7RWDODVVHWV

LIABILITIES
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGSD\UROO
'XHWRRWKHUIXQGV
'XHWRRWKHUJRYHUQPHQWDOXQLWV
8QHDUQHGUHYHQXH
7RWDOOLDELOLWLHV

FUND BALANCE
)XQGEDODQFH
5HVWULFWHGIRULQPDWHZHOIDUHDQGUHFUHDWLRQ
5HVWULFWHGIRUODZHQIRUFHPHQWWUDLQLQJ
1RQVSHQGDEOHLQYHQWRU\
7RWDOIXQGEDODQFH

7RWDOOLDELOLWLHVDQGIXQGEDODQFH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2014
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-DLO
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FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR









FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR









REVENUES
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO
0LVFHOODQHRXV
7RWDOUHYHQXHV

EXPENDITURES
&XUUHQW
*HQHUDOJRYHUQPHQW
-XGLFLDO
3HUVRQDOVHUYLFHV
2SHUDWLQJ
3XEOLFVDIHW\
/DZHQIRUFHPHQW
3HUVRQDOVHUYLFHV
2SHUDWLQJ
&DSLWDORXWOD\
&RUUHFWLRQDQGGHWHQWLRQ
3HUVRQDOVHUYLFHV
2SHUDWLQJ
&DSLWDORXWOD\
7RWDOH[SHQGLWXUHV
([FHVV GHILFLHQF\ RIUHYHQXHV
RYHUH[SHQGLWXUHV

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
%2&&DSSURSULDWLRQ
%2&&XQVSHQWIXQGV
7RWDORWKHUILQDQFLQJVRXUFHV XVHV

Net change in fund balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
September 30, 2014

ASSETS
&DVK
0LVFHOODQHRXVUHFHLYDEOH
7RWDODVVHWV





LIABILITIES
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOH
'XHWRRWKHUJRYHUQPHQWDOXQLWV
'HSRVLWV
7RWDOOLDELOLWLHV






The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

$VXPPDU\RIWKHVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVFRQVLVWHQWO\DSSOLHGLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVIROORZV

1. Reporting Entity

7KH2IILFHRIWKH6KHULIIRI6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD WKH³6KHULII´ DVHVWDEOLVKHGE\$UWLFOH9,,,RI
WKH &RQVWLWXWLRQ RI WKH 6WDWH RI )ORULGD LV DQ HOHFWHG RIILFLDO RI 6DQWD 5RVD &RXQW\ )ORULGD WKH
³&RXQW\´   $OWKRXJK WKH 6KHULII LV RSHUDWLRQDOO\ DXWRQRPRXV IURP WKH 6DQWD 5RVD &RXQW\ %RDUG RI
&RXQW\ &RPPLVVLRQHUV WKH ³%RDUG´  WKH 6KHULII GRHV QRW KROG VXIILFLHQW FRUSRUDWH SRZHUV WR EH
FRQVLGHUHGDOHJDOO\VHSDUDWHHQWLW\IRUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSXUSRVHV7KHUHIRUHWKH6KHULIILVFRQVLGHUHG
SDUWRIWKH&RXQW\¶VSULPDU\JRYHUQPHQW

7KHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH QRW LQWHQGHG WR EH D FRPSOHWH SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DQG
UHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQVRIWKH&RXQW\WDNHQDVDZKROH$VSHUPLWWHGE\&KDSWHU  5XOHVRIWKH
$XGLWRU *HQHUDO 6WDWH RI )ORULGD WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV FRQVLVW RI RQO\ WKH fund level ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDVGHILQHGLQ*RYHUQPHQWDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ³*$6%´ 6WDWHPHQW1RDQGGR
QRWLQFOXGHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRIgovernment-wideILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH6KHULII

2. Fund Accounting

7KHDFFRXQWLQJV\VWHPRIWKH6KHULIILVRUJDQL]HGDQGRSHUDWHGRQDIXQGEDVLV$IXQGLVGHILQHGDVD
ILVFDODQGDFFRXQWLQJHQWLW\ZLWKDVHOIEDODQFLQJVHWRIDFFRXQWVUHFRUGLQJFDVKDQGILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHV
WRJHWKHU ZLWK DOO UHODWHG OLDELOLWLHV DQG UHVLGXDO HTXLWLHV RU EDODQFHV DQG FKDQJHV WKHUHLQ ZKLFK DUH
VHJUHJDWHGIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIFDUU\LQJRQVSHFLILFDFWLYLWLHVRUDWWDLQLQJFHUWDLQREMHFWLYHVLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWK VSHFLDO UHJXODWLRQV UHVWULFWLRQV RU OLPLWDWLRQV  7KH IXQGV XWLOL]HG E\ WKH 6KHULII¶V RIILFH DUH DV
IROORZV

Governmental Funds

7KHVH IXQGV XWLOL]H D PRGLILHG DFFUXDO EDVLV RI DFFRXQWLQJ 7KH PHDVXUHPHQW IRFXV LV EDVHG XSRQ
GHWHUPLQDWLRQ RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DQG FKDQJHV LQ ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ VRXUFHV XVHV DQG EDODQFHV RI
ILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHVUDWKHUWKDQXSRQQHWLQFRPHGHWHUPLQDWLRQ 7KH6KHULIIUHSRUWVWKHIROORZLQJPDMRU
JRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGV

General FundLVXVHGWRDFFRXQWIRUDOOILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHVZKLFKDUHJHQHUDWHGIURPRSHUDWLRQVRIWKH
RIILFHDSSURSULDWLRQVIURPWKH%RDUGRUDQ\RWKHUUHVRXUFHVQRWUHTXLUHGWREHDFFRXQWHGIRULQDQRWKHU
IXQG





Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES – (Continued)
2. Fund Accounting -- (Continued)
Jail Commissary Fund DFFRXQWV IRU MDLO FRPPLVVDU\ DQG YHQGLQJ PDFKLQH UHYHQXHV WKDW DUH XVHG WR
SURYLGHUHFUHDWLRQDOIDFLOLWLHVDQGHTXLSPHQWIRULQPDWHV

1RQPDMRUJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVRIWKH6KHULIIDUHDVIROORZV






*UDQWV)XQGDFFRXQWVIRUJUDQWUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQGLWXUHVDFFRUGLQJWRWKHWHUPVRIHDFKJUDQW

6HFRQG 'ROODU DFFRXQWV IRU VKDUHG ILQH UHYHQXHV IURP WKH %RDUG ZKLFK DUH XVHG IRU ODZ
HQIRUFHPHQWWUDLQLQJSXUSRVHV
)HGHUDO 6HL]XUH DFFRXQWV IRU VKDUHG VHL]XUH UHYHQXHV IURP WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV 'HSDUWPHQW RI
-XVWLFHZKLFKDUHXVHGIRUODZHQIRUFHPHQWSXUSRVHV


Fiduciary Funds

7KH6KHULIIXVHVDJHQF\IXQGVWRDFFRXQWIRUDVVHWVKHOGLQDFXVWRGLDOFDSDFLW\IRURWKHUV
3. Basis of Accounting

%DVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJUHIHUVWRwhenUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQGLWXUHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGLQWKHDFFRXQWVDQGUHSRUWHG
LQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG UHODWHV WR WKH WLPLQJ RI WKH PHDVXUHPHQWV PDGH UHJDUGOHVV RI WKH
PHDVXUHPHQWIRFXVDSSOLHG$OOJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVDUHDFFRXQWHGIRUXVLQJWKHPRGLILHGDFFUXDOEDVLVRI
DFFRXQWLQJ  5HYHQXHV DUH UHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKH\EHFRPH ERWK PHDVXUDEOH DQG DYDLODEOH DV QHW FXUUHQW
DVVHWV 7KH 6KHULII FRQVLGHUV UHFHLYDEOHV FROOHFWHG ZLWKLQ VL[W\ GD\V DIWHU \HDUHQG WR EH DYDLODEOH DQG
UHFRJQL]HV WKHP DV UHYHQXHV RI WKH FXUUHQW \HDU  ([SHQGLWXUHV DUH UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKH UHODWHG IXQG
OLDELOLW\LVLQFXUUHG$JHQF\IXQGVXVHWKHDFFUXDOEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
)RU ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQW UHSRUWLQJ DOO KLJKO\ OLTXLG LQYHVWPHQWV ZLWK D PDWXULW\ RI WKUHH PRQWKV RU OHVV
ZKHQSXUFKDVHGDUHFRQVLGHUHGWREHFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
5. Inventory

,QYHQWRU\ ZKLFK FRQVLVWV RI H[SHQGDEOH VXSSOLHV KHOG IRU FRQVXPSWLRQ LV VWDWHG DW FRVW XVLQJ WKH
ILUVWLQILUVWRXWPHWKRG,QYHQWRU\LVUHFRUGHGZKHQFRQVXPHGUDWKHUWKDQZKHQSXUFKDVHG



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES – (Continued)
6. Accounting for Capital Assets

&DSLWDO DVVHWV YHKLFOHV HTXLSPHQW DQG RWKHU WDQJLEOH DQG FHUWDLQ LQWDQJLEOH SURSHUW\ FRVWLQJ DW OHDVW
ZLWKDXVHIXOOLIHRIPRUHWKDQRQH\HDU DUHUHFRUGHGDVH[SHQGLWXUHVE\WKHDFTXLULQJIXQGDWWKH
WLPHRISXUFKDVH7KH6KHULIIGRHVQRWHQJDJHLQWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRISXEOLFGRPDLQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DVVHWV

$OO FDSLWDO DVVHWV DUH YDOXHG DW KLVWRULFDO FRVW RU HVWLPDWHGKLVWRULFDOFRVWLIDFWXDOKLVWRULFDOFRVWLVQRW
DYDLODEOH'RQDWHGFDSLWDODVVHWVDUHYDOXHGDWHVWLPDWHGIDLUYDOXHRQWKHGDWHGRQDWHG

'HSUHFLDWLRQRIYHKLFOHVDQGHTXLSPHQWLVFDOFXODWHGXVLQJWKHVWUDLJKWOLQHPHWKRGRYHUHVWLPDWHGXVHIXO
OLYHVRI\HDUV

&DSLWDODVVHWVDQGUHODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQH[SHQVHDUHUHSRUWHGDVDFRPSRQHQWRIWKH&RXQW\JRYHUQPHQW
ZLGHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGDUHQRWUHIOHFWHGLQWKHJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV%XLOGLQJV
DQGLPSURYHPHQWVDUHRZQHGE\WKH%RDUGRI&RXQW\&RPPLVVLRQHUV

7. Compensated Absences

(PSOR\HHVDFFXPXODWHDOLPLWHGDPRXQWRIHDUQHGEXWXQXVHGVLFNOHDYHDQQXDOOHDYHDQGFRPSHQVDWRU\
WLPHZKLFKZLOOEHSDLGXSRQVHSDUDWLRQIURPVHUYLFH8QSDLGFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDUHUHFRUGHGDVD
OLDELOLW\ ZKHQ WKH EHQHILWV DUH HDUQHG LQ WKH &RXQW\ JRYHUQPHQWZLGH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV  )RU WKH
JRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVWDWHPHQWVH[SHQGLWXUHVDUHQRWUHFRJQL]HGXQWLOSD\PHQWVDUHPDGHWRHPSOR\HHV
8. Unspent Appropriations from Board
,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWK6HFWLRQ  )ORULGD6WDWXWHVH[FHVVDSSURSULDWLRQVDUHUHWXUQHGWRWKH%RDUGDW
ILVFDO\HDUHQGDQGDUHUHSRUWHGLQWKH³GXHWRRWKHUJRYHUQPHQWDOXQLWV´OLDELOLW\DFFRXQW&KDUJHVIRU
VHUYLFHVLQWHUHVWLQFRPHDQGRWKHUPLVFHOODQHRXVUHYHQXHVFROOHFWHGE\WKH6KHULIIDUHFRQVLGHUHGWREH
³DJHQF\´ WUDQVDFWLRQV QRW DYDLODEOH IRU H[SHQGLWXUH E\ WKH 6KHULII DQG DUH UHPLWWHG WR WKH %RDUG RQ D
PRQWKO\EDVLV

9. Fund Balance
)XQGEDODQFHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVHLWKHUQRQVSHQGDEOHRUDVUHVWULFWHGFRPPLWWHGDVVLJQHGDQGXQDVVLJQHG
EDVHGRQWKHH[WHQWWRZKLFKWKHUHDUHH[WHUQDODQGLQWHUQDOFRQVWUDLQWVRQWKHVSHQGLQJWKHUHRI



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE B - CASH

7KH 6KHULII¶V GHSRVLWV DW \HDUHQG ZHUH KHOG E\ ILQDQFLDO LQVWLWXWLRQV GHVLJQDWHG DV TXDOLILHG SXEOLF
GHSRVLWRULHVE\WKH6WDWH7UHDVXUHU$OOGHSRVLWVZHUHIXOO\LQVXUHGWKURXJKDFRPELQDWLRQRI)HGHUDO
GHSRVLWRU\ LQVXUDQFH DQG SDUWLFLSDWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO LQVWLWXWLRQV LQ WKH PXOWLSOH ILQDQFLDO LQVWLWXWLRQ
FROODWHUDOSRRODVVSHFLILHGLQ&KDSWHU)ORULGD6WDWXWHV$W6HSWHPEHUWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQW
RI WKH 6KHULII¶V GHSRVLWV ZDV  DQG WKH EDQN EDODQFH ZDV  FRQVLVWLQJ HQWLUHO\ RI
GHSRVLWVZLWKILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQVLQFKHFNLQJDFFRXQWV

NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS

'LVFORVXUHV UHTXLUHG E\ &KDSWHU   K  5XOHV RI WKH $XGLWRU *HQHUDO 6WDWH RI )ORULGD UHODWHG WR
FDSLWDODVVHWVDUHDVIROORZV

   
 %DODQFH  

 

  %DODQFH 
   
    $GGLWLRQV   5HGXFWLRQV    
 9HKLFOHVHTXLSPHQW
 VRIWZDUHDQGIXUQLWXUH
    
   
 /HVVDFFXPXODWHG
 GHSUHFLDWLRQ
   
  
   
 1HW7RWDO
  
 
   

'HSUHFLDWLRQH[SHQVHIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG6HSWHPEHUZDV

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

'LVFORVXUHV UHTXLUHG E\ &KDSWHU   K  5XOHV RI WKH $XGLWRU *HQHUDO 6WDWH RI )ORULGD UHODWHG WR
ORQJWHUPGHEWDUHDVIROORZV

&RPSHQVDWHG$EVHQFHV
 %DODQFH2FWREHU
 
 ,QFUHDVHV


 'HFUHDVHV

 
 %DODQFH6HSWHPEHU
 

&RPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDUHSDLGIURPWKHJHQHUDOIXQG




Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE E - INTERFUND BALANCES
$W6HSWHPEHULQWHUIXQGEDODQFHVFRQVLVWHGRIWKHIROORZLQJ


)XQG

 5HFHLYDEOH 
*HQHUDO)XQG


-DLO&RPPLVVDU\


1RQPDMRUJRYHUQPHQWDO


 



 3D\DEOH 









$PRXQWVGXHWRWKH*HQHUDO)XQGIURPQRQPDMRUJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVDUHUHODWHGWRDGYDQFHVZKLFK
ZLOOEHSDLGEDFNWRWKH*HQHUDO)XQGDIWHUUHLPEXUVHPHQWLVUHFHLYHGIURPJUDQWRUV$PRXQWVGXHWR
WKH *HQHUDO )XQG IURP WKH -DLO &RPPLVVDU\)XQGDUHIRUYDULRXVH[SHQGLWXUHVSDLGE\WKH*HQHUDO
)XQGRQEHKDOIRIWKH-DLO&RPPLVVDU\)XQG


NOTE F - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN
6XEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO IXOOWLPH HPSOR\HHV RI WKH 6KHULII DUH FRYHUHG E\ WKH )ORULGD 5HWLUHPHQW 6\VWHP
)56 7KH)56ZDVHVWDEOLVKHGLQE\&KDSWHU)ORULGD6WDWXWHVDQGLVDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH
)ORULGD 'HSDUWPHQW RI 0DQDJHPHQW 6HUYLFHV 'LYLVLRQ RI 5HWLUHPHQW  &KDQJHV WR WKH )56 FDQ EH
PDGHRQO\E\DQDFWRIWKH)ORULGD/HJLVODWXUH5XOHVJRYHUQLQJWKHRSHUDWLRQDQGDGPLQLVWUDWLRQRI
WKH V\VWHP PD\ EH IRXQG LQ &KDSWHU 6 RI WKH )ORULGD $GPLQLVWUDWLYH &RGH  7KH )56 LVVXHV D
ILQDQFLDO UHSRUW WKDW LQFOXGHV ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG UHTXLUHG VXSSOHPHQWDU\ LQIRUPDWLRQ  7KH
UHSRUW PD\ EH REWDLQHG DW ZZZP\IUVFRP RU E\ ZULWLQJ WR )56 & 1RUWK 0RQURH 6WUHHW
7DOODKDVVHH)ORULGD

7KH )56 RIIHUV WZR UHWLUHPHQW SODQV ± WKH )56 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ DQG WKH )56 ,QYHVWPHQW 3ODQ  $Q
HPSOR\HH PD\ SDUWLFLSDWH LQ RQO\ RQH RI WKH SODQV %RWK SODQV HIIHFWLYH -XO\   DUH IXQGHG
PRQWKO\E\DFRPELQDWLRQRIHPSOR\HUDQGHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQV

7KH )56 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ LV D PXOWLSOH HPSOR\HU FRVW VKDULQJ GHILQHG EHQHILW SODQ ZKLFK SURYLGHV
UHWLUHPHQW DQG GLVDELOLW\ EHQHILWV DQQXDO FRVWRIOLYLQJ DGMXVWPHQWV DQG GHDWK EHQHILWV WR SODQ
PHPEHUV DQG EHQHILFLDULHV )RU HPSOR\HHV ZKR ZHUH HQUROOHG LQ WKH SODQ SULRU WR -XO\  
QRUPDO UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV DUH DYDLODEOH DW DJH  ZLWK  RU PRUH \HDUV RI VHUYLFH RU WR WKRVH
HPSOR\HHV ZKR KDYH DW OHDVW  \HDUV RI FUHGLWDEOH VHUYLFH UHJDUGOHVV RI DJH (DUO\ UHWLUHPHQW LV
DYDLODEOH DIWHU  \HDUV RI VHUYLFH ZLWK D  UHGXFWLRQ RI EHQHILWV IRU HDFK \HDU SULRU WR WKH QRUPDO
UHWLUHPHQWDJH

)RU HPSOR\HHV HQUROOLQJ LQ WKH SODQ IRU WKH ILUVW WLPH RQ RU DIWHU -XO\   QRUPDO UHWLUHPHQW
EHQHILWVDUHDYDLODEOHDWDJHZLWKRU



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE F - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN -- (Continued)

PRUH \HDUV RI VHUYLFH RU WR WKRVH HPSOR\HHV ZKR KDYH DW OHDVW  \HDUV RI FUHGLWDEOH VHUYLFH
UHJDUGOHVV RI DJH    (DUO\ UHWLUHPHQW LV DYDLODEOH DIWHU  \HDUV RI VHUYLFH ZLWK D  UHGXFWLRQ RI
EHQHILWV IRU HDFK \HDU SULRU WR WKH QRUPDO UHWLUHPHQW DJH 5HWLUHPHQW DJH DQG \HDUV RI VHUYLFH
UHTXLUHPHQWV DOVR YDU\ GHSHQGLQJ RQ PHPEHUVKLS FODVV    5HWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDUHEDVHGXSRQDJH
DYHUDJH FRPSHQVDWLRQ DQG \HDUVRIVHUYLFH FUHGLW ZKHUH DYHUDJH FRPSHQVDWLRQ LV FRPSXWHG DV WKH
DYHUDJHRIWKHPHPEHUVKLJKHVW LIHQUROOHGSULRUWR-XO\ RU LIHQUROOHGRQRUDIWHU-XO\
 ILVFDO\HDUVRIHDUQLQJV

7KH)56,QYHVWPHQW3ODQLVDGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSODQIXQGHGPRQWKO\E\HPSOR\HUDQGHPSOR\HH
FRQWULEXWLRQV EDVHG RQ VDODU\ DQG PHPEHUVKLS FODVV (PSOR\HU FRQWULEXWLRQV YHVW DIWHU  \HDU RI
VHUYLFHZKHUHDVHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQVYHVWLPPHGLDWHO\0HPEHUVLQWKH,QYHVWPHQW3ODQGHFLGH
KRZWKHLUIXQGVDUHDOORFDWHGEHWZHHQYDULRXVLQYHVWPHQWDFFRXQWVDQGWKHYHVWHGIXQGVDUHSRUWDEOH
XSRQ WHUPLQDWLRQ  7KH ILQDO UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILW LV HTXDO WR WKH YHVWHG FRQWULEXWLRQV SOXV LQYHVWPHQW
HDUQLQJVOHVVH[SHQVHVDQGORVVHVDOORFDWHGWRWKHPHPEHU¶VDFFRXQW0HPEHUVLQWKH,QYHVWPHQW3ODQ
DUHQRWHOLJLEOHIRUSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQWKH'HIHUUHG5HWLUHPHQW2SWLRQ3URJUDP '523 
'523LVDYDLODEOHIRUPHPEHUVRIWKH)563HQVLRQ3ODQZKRDUHYHVWHGDQGHOHFWWRSDUWLFLSDWHLQ
'523ZLWKLQ\HDUDIWHUUHDFKLQJQRUPDOUHWLUHPHQWDJH8QGHUWKLVSURJUDPDPHPEHUHIIHFWLYHO\
UHWLUHVZKLOHFRQWLQXLQJWREHHPSOR\HGIRUXSWR\HDUV:KLOHLQ'523WKHPHPEHU¶VGHIHUUHG
PRQWKO\ UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV DFFXPXODWH HDUQLQJ LQWHUHVW DQG FRVWRIOLYLQJ LQFUHDVHV  :KHQ WKH
'523 SHULRG LV RYHU WKH SDUWLFLSDQW WHUPLQDWHV FRYHUHG HPSOR\PHQW DQG EHJLQV UHFHLYLQJ WKHLU
SUHGHWHUPLQHGPRQWKO\UHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWDVZHOODVWKHDFFUXHG'523EHQHILW'LVDELOLW\UHWLUHHV
DUH QRW HOLJLEOH WR SDUWLFLSDWH LQ '523 DQG '523 SDUWLFLSDQWV GR QRW TXDOLI\ IRU GLVDELOLW\
UHWLUHPHQW

3ULRU WR -XO\  WKH SODQV ZHUH QRQFRQWULEXWRU\ IRU HPSOR\HHV ZLWK DOO FRQWULEXWLRQV EHLQJ WKH
SDUWLFLSDWLQJ )56 HPSOR\HU¶V UHVSRQVLELOLW\ (IIHFWLYH -XO\   SDUWLFLSDWLQJ HPSOR\HHV
FRQWULEXWHRIWKHLUJURVVVDODULHVHDFKSD\SHULRGWRWKHSODQ3DUWLFLSDWLQJHPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWLRQV
DUHEDVHGXSRQVWDWHZLGHUDWHVHVWDEOLVKHGE\WKH6WDWHRI)ORULGD$YHUDJHFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHVIRUWKH
ILVFDO \HDU HQGHG 6HSWHPEHU   ZHUH DV IROORZV  UHJXODU HPSOR\HHV   VSHFLDO ULVN
HPSOR\HHVHOHFWHGRIILFLDOVVHQLRUPDQDJHPHQWHPSOR\HHVDQG'523
SDUWLFLSDQWV    7KH 6KHULII¶V FRQWULEXWLRQV WR WKH 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ IXQGHG RQ D SD\DV\RXJR
EDVLV ZHUH HTXDO WR WKH DFWXDULDOO\ GHWHUPLQHG FRQWULEXWLRQV IRU HDFK \HDU &RQWULEXWLRQV WR WKH
,QYHVWPHQW 3ODQ ZHUH HTXDO WR WKH OHJLVODWLYHO\PDQGDWHG FRQWULEXWLRQ UDWHV &RQWULEXWLRQV WR ERWK
SODQVWRWDOHGDQGIRUWKH\HDUVHQGHG6HSWHPEHU
DQGUHVSHFWLYHO\



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE G - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN
7KH 6KHULII SDUWLFLSDWHV LQ WKH KHDOWK LQVXUDQFH SODQ RIIHUHG WR HPSOR\HHV RI WKH %RDUG DQG RWKHU
&RXQW\ (OHFWHG 2IILFLDOV WKH %RDUG SODQ  $GGLWLRQDOO\ UHWLUHHV DQG HOLJLEOH GHSHQGHQWV KDYH WKH
RSWLRQ RI FRQWLQXLQJ LQ WKH %RDUG SODQ DW WKH VDPH JURXS UDWH DV IRU DFWLYH HPSOR\HHV $OWKRXJK
SDUWLFLSDWLQJUHWLUHHVDUHUHTXLUHGWRUHLPEXUVHWKH%RDUGIRURIWKHSUHPLXPFRVWHPSOR\HHV
ZKRUHWLUHZLWKDPLQLPXPRI\HDUVRIFUHGLWDEOHVHUYLFH \HDUVHOHFWHGVHUYLFH DUHHOLJLEOHIRUD
PRQWKO\KHDOWKLQVXUDQFHVXEVLG\EDVHGRQWKHQXPEHURI\HDUVRIFUHGLWDEOHVHUYLFHPXOWLSOLHGE\
DQGOLPLWHGWRWKHOHVVHURISHUPRQWKRUWKHDFWXDOFRVWRIWKHUHWLUHH¶VPRQWKO\KHDOWKLQVXUDQFH
SUHPLXP
%HFDXVHWKHSUHPLXPLVDJURXSUDWHZKLFKLQFOXGHVDFWLYHORZHUFRVWHPSOR\HHVWKHVHUHWLUHHVDUH
UHFHLYLQJDQ³LPSOLFLWVXEVLG\´7KLVLPSOLFLWVXEVLG\KDVDFRVWZKLFKLVUHTXLUHGWREHGLVFORVHGLQ
WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV +RZHYHU WKLV DQQXDO FRVW WKH DFFUXHG REOLJDWLRQ DQG RWKHU UHTXLUHG
GLVFORVXUHV KDYH EHHQ FDOFXODWHG IRU WKH &RXQW\ DV D ZKROH DQG QRW VHSDUDWHO\ IRU WKH 6KHULII
$FFRUGLQJO\ WKHVH FDOFXODWLRQV DQG GLVFORVXUHV FDQ EH IRXQG LQ WKH &RXQW\ZLGH FRPSUHKHQVLYH
DQQXDOILQDQFLDOUHSRUW
NOTE H - GRANT ASSISTANCE

7KH 6KHULII VHUYHV DV LPSOHPHQWLQJ DJHQF\ IRU YDULRXV JUDQWV ZKLFK DUH UHSRUWHG LQ WKH 6LQJOH $XGLW
5HSRUWSUHSDUHGE\WKH%RDUG
NOTE I - RISK MANAGEMENT

7KH 6KHULII LV H[SRVHG WR YDULRXV ULVNV RI ORVV UHODWHG WR WRUWV WKHIW RI GDPDJH WR DQG GHVWUXFWLRQ RI
DVVHWV HUURUV DQG RPLVVLRQV LQMXULHV WR HPSOR\HHV DQG QDWXUDO GLVDVWHUV  7KH %RDUG RI &RXQW\
&RPPLVVLRQHUVKDVHVWDEOLVKHGD6HOI,QVXUDQFH)XQG DQLQWHUQDOVHUYLFHIXQG WRDFFRXQWIRUDQGILQDQFH
LWVXQLQVXUHGULVNVRIORVV8QGHUWKLVSURJUDPWKH&RXQW\LVVHOILQVXUHGZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHIROORZLQJ
H[SRVXUHV

 $XWR3K\VLFDO'DPDJH
 $XWR/LDELOLW\
 &RQVWUXFWLRQDQG5RDG(TXLSPHQW
 3RUWDEOH&RPPXQLFDWLRQ(TXLSPHQW

7KH&RXQW\LVFRYHUHGE\RXWVLGHLQVXUDQFHIRUWKHIROORZLQJH[SRVXUHV

 (PSOR\HH)LGHOLW\
 *HQHUDO/LDELOLW\GHGXFWLEOH
 3XEOLF2IILFLDOV¶/LDELOLW\GHGXFWLEOH
 %XLOGLQJ&RQWHQWVGHGXFWLEOH



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE I - RISK MANAGEMENT – (Continued)

&RQYHQWLRQDO LQVXUDQFH UHPDLQV LQ HIIHFW IRU EXLOGLQJV FRQWHQWV 6KHULII¶V JHQHUDO DQG SURIHVVLRQDO
OLDELOLW\ 6KHULII¶V DXWRPRELOHV DQG 6KHULII¶V PHGLFDO FDWDVWURSKLF LQVXUDQFH IRU WUHDWPHQW RI SULVRQHUV
6HWWOHGFODLPVUHVXOWLQJIURPWKHVHULVNVKDYHQRWH[FHHGHGFRPPHUFLDOLQVXUDQFHFRYHUDJHLQDQ\RIWKH
SDVWWKUHHILVFDO\HDUV
:RUNHU¶V FRPSHQVDWLRQ FRYHUDJH LV SURYLGHG E\ WKH )ORULGD 6KHULII¶V :RUNHU¶V &RPSHQVDWLRQ 6HOI
,QVXUDQFH )XQG  $QQXDO SUHPLXP FRVWV XQGHU WKLV FRYHUDJH ZHUH  DQG  IRU WKH
\HDUV HQGHG 6HSWHPEHU   DQG  UHVSHFWLYHO\  &RYHUDJH OLPLWV XQGHU WKH SROLF\ LQFOXGH
 ERGLO\ LQMXU\ IRU HDFK DFFLGHQW DQG  ERGLO\ LQMXU\ E\ GLVHDVH IRU HDFK
HPSOR\HHZLWKDOLPLW

NOTE J – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

)XQGEDODQFHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVIROORZV

Non-spendable IXQGEDODQFHVLQFOXGHDPRXQWVWKDWFDQQRWEHVSHQWEHFDXVHWKH\DUHQRWLQVSHQGDEOH
IRUPRUDUHOHJDOO\RUFRQWUDFWXDOO\UHTXLUHGWREHPDLQWDLQHGLQWDFW

2WKHUIXQGEDODQFHDPRXQWVDUHFODVVLILHGGHSHQGLQJRQWKH6KHULII¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWUROWKHVSHQGLQJ
RIWKHIXQGEDODQFHVDVIROORZV

Restricted IXQG EDODQFHV FDQ RQO\ EH XVHG IRU VSHFLILF SXUSRVHV ZKLFK DUH H[WHUQDOO\ LPSRVHG E\
FUHGLWRUVJUDQWRUVFRQWULEXWRUVDQGRWKHUJRYHUQPHQWV YLDODZVDQGUHJXODWLRQV RUDUHLPSRVHGE\
ODZWKURXJKFRQVWLWXWLRQDOSURYLVLRQVRUHQDEOLQJOHJLVODWLRQ
Committed IXQGEDODQFHVFDQRQO\EHXVHGIRUVSHFLILFSXUSRVHVLPSRVHGLQWHUQDOO\E\WKH6KHULII¶V
IRUPDO DFWLRQ RI KLJKHVW OHYHO RI GHFLVLRQ PDNLQJ DXWKRULW\ $W \HDUHQG WKH 6KHULII KDG QR
FRPPLWWHGIXQGEDODQFHV
Assigned IXQGEDODQFHVDUHIXQGEDODQFHVLQWHQGHGWREHXVHGIRUVSHFLILFSXUSRVHVEXWZKLFKGRQRW
PHHW WKH PRUH IRUPDO FULWHULRQ WR EH FRQVLGHUHG HLWKHU UHVWULFWHG RU FRPPLWWHG $W \HDUHQG WKH
6KHULIIKDGQRDVVLJQHGIXQGEDODQFHV

Unassigned IXQG EDODQFHV UHSUHVHQW WKH UHVLGXDO SRVLWLYH IXQG EDODQFH ZLWKLQ WKH *HQHUDO )XQG
ZKLFK KDV QRW EHHQ DVVLJQHG WR RWKHU IXQGV DQG KDV QRW EHHQ UHVWULFWHG FRPPLWWHG RU DVVLJQHG ,Q
IXQGV RWKHU WKDQ WKH *HQHUDO )XQG XQDVVLJQHG IXQG EDODQFHV DUH OLPLWHG WR QHJDWLYH UHVLGXDO
EDODQFHV $W \HDUHQG WKH 6KHULII KDG QR XQDVVLJQHG IXQG EDODQFHV EHFDXVH DOO XQVSHQW %RDUG
DSSURSULDWLRQV RI WKH *HQHUDO )XQG DUH UHTXLUHG WR EH UHPLWWHG WR WKH %RDUG DQG WKHUH ZHUH QR
QHJDWLYHUHVLGXDOEDODQFHVLQWKHVSHFLDOUHYHQXHIXQGV




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the year ended September 30, 2014
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FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR









FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

 

 





REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
&XUUHQW
*HQHUDOJRYHUQPHQW
-XGLFLDO
3HUVRQDOVHUYLFHV
2SHUDWLQJ
3XEOLFVDIHW\
/DZHQIRUFHPHQW
3HUVRQDOVHUYLFHV
2SHUDWLQJ
&DSLWDORXWOD\
&RUUHFWLRQDQGGHWHQWLRQ
3HUVRQDOVHUYLFHV
2SHUDWLQJ
7RWDOH[SHQGLWXUHV
([FHVV GHILFLHQF\ RIUHYHQXHV
RYHUH[SHQGLWXUHV

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
%2&&DSSURSULDWLRQ
%2&&XQVSHQWIXQGV
7RWDORWKHUILQDQFLQJVRXUFHV XVHV

Net change in fund balance

See notes to required supplementary information.



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2014

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

7KH 6KHULII RSHUDWHV XQGHU EXGJHW SURFHGXUHV SXUVXDQW WR &KDSWHUV  DQG  )ORULGD 6WDWXWHV 7KH
*HQHUDO)XQG¶VEXGJHWLVSUHSDUHGRQDEDVLVFRQVLVWHQWZLWKDFFRXQWLQJSULQFLSOHVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQ
WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI $PHULFD  7KH 6KHULII LV QRW OHJDOO\ UHTXLUHG WR SUHSDUH D EXGJHW IRU WKH RWKHU
JRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVWKHUHIRUHFRPSDUDWLYHEXGJHWDQGDFWXDOUHVXOWVDUHQRWSUHVHQWHGIRUWKHVHIXQGV
7KHOHJDOOHYHORIEXGJHWDU\FRQWUROLVWKHIXQGOHYHO




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – COMBINING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ALL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2014
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ASSETS
&DVK
'XHIURPRWKHUJRYHUQPHQWDOXQLWV
7RWDODVVHWV

LIABILITIES
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGSD\UROO
'XHWRRWKHUIXQGV
8QHDUQHGUHYHQXH
7RWDOOLDELOLWLHV

FUND BALANCE
)XQGEDODQFH
5HVULFWHGIRUODZHQIRUFHPHQWWUDLQLQJ
7RWDOOLDELOLWLHVDQGIXQGEDODQFH



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2014
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FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

 



 



FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

 



 



REVENUES
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO
0LVFHOODQHRXV
7RWDOUHYHQXHV

EXPENDITURES
&XUUHQW
3XEOLFVDIHW\
/DZHQIRUFHPHQW
3HUVRQDOVHUYLFHV
2SHUDWLQJ
&DSLWDORXWOD\
7RWDOH[SHQGLWXUHV
1HWFKDQJHLQIXQGEDODQFHV



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
September 30, 2014
,QGLYLGXDO
'HSRVLWRUV
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6HL]XUH
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ASSETS
&DVK
0LVFHOODQHRXVUHFHLYDEOH
7RWDODVVHWV

LIABILITIES
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOH
'HSRVLWV
7RWDOOLDELOLWLHV



316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS


+RQRUDEOH:HQGHOO+DOO6KHULII
6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD


:H KDYH DXGLWHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG LQ WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI
$PHULFD DQG WKH VWDQGDUGV DSSOLFDEOH WR ILQDQFLDO DXGLWV FRQWDLQHG LQ Government Auditing Standards
LVVXHGE\WKH&RPSWUROOHU*HQHUDORIWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV KHUHLQDIWHUUHIHUUHGWRDV
³ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV´ RIHDFKPDMRUIXQGDQGWKHDJJUHJDWHUHPDLQLQJIXQGLQIRUPDWLRQRIWKH2IILFHRI
WKH 6KHULII RI 6DQWD 5RVD &RXQW\ )ORULGD KHUHLQDIWHU UHIHUUHG WR DV ³6KHULII´  DV RI DQG IRU WKH \HDU
HQGHG6HSWHPEHUDQGWKHUHODWHGQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKLFKFROOHFWLYHO\FRPSULVH
WKH6KHULII¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGKDYHLVVXHGRXUUHSRUWWKHUHRQGDWHG0DUFK

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
,Q SODQQLQJ DQG SHUIRUPLQJ RXU DXGLW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZH FRQVLGHUHG WKH 6KHULII¶V LQWHUQDO
FRQWURORYHUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJ LQWHUQDOFRQWURO WRGHWHUPLQHWKHDXGLWSURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQ
WKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJRXURSLQLRQVRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVEXWQRWIRUWKH
SXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH6KHULII¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO$FFRUGLQJO\ZH
GRQRWH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH6KHULII¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO

$ deficiency in internal control H[LVWV ZKHQ WKH GHVLJQ RU RSHUDWLRQ RI D FRQWURO GRHV QRW DOORZ
PDQDJHPHQW RU HPSOR\HHV LQ WKH QRUPDO FRXUVH RI SHUIRUPLQJ WKHLU DVVLJQHG IXQFWLRQV WR SUHYHQW RU
GHWHFWDQGFRUUHFWPLVVWDWHPHQWVRQDWLPHO\EDVLV$material weaknessLVDGHILFLHQF\RUDFRPELQDWLRQ
RIGHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDOFRQWUROVXFKWKDWWKHUHLVDUHDVRQDEOHSRVVLELOLW\WKDWDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQW
RIWKHHQWLW\¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZLOOQRWEHSUHYHQWHGRUGHWHFWHGDQGFRUUHFWHGRQDWLPHO\EDVLV$
significant deficiency LV D GHILFLHQF\ RU D FRPELQDWLRQ RI GHILFLHQFLHV LQ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO WKDW LV OHVV
VHYHUH WKDQ D PDWHULDO ZHDNQHVV \HW LPSRUWDQW HQRXJK WR PHULW DWWHQWLRQ E\ WKRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK
JRYHUQDQFH

2XUFRQVLGHUDWLRQRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROZDVIRUWKHOLPLWHGSXUSRVHGHVFULEHGLQWKHILUVWSDUDJUDSKRIWKLV
VHFWLRQ DQG ZDV QRW GHVLJQHG WR LGHQWLI\ DOO GHILFLHQFLHV LQ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO WKDW PLJKW EH PDWHULDO
ZHDNQHVVHVRUVLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHV*LYHQWKHVHOLPLWDWLRQVGXULQJRXUDXGLWZHGLGQRWLGHQWLI\DQ\
GHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZHFRQVLGHUWREHPDWHULDOZHDNQHVVHV+RZHYHUPDWHULDOZHDNQHVVHV
PD\H[LVWWKDWKDYHQRWEHHQLGHQWLILHG



Compliance and Other Matters
$V SDUW RI REWDLQLQJ UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH DERXW ZKHWKHU WKH 6KHULII¶V ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH IUHH RI
PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZH SHUIRUPHG WHVWV RI FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK FHUWDLQ SURYLVLRQV RI ODZV UHJXODWLRQV
FRQWUDFWVDQGJUDQWDJUHHPHQWVQRQFRPSOLDQFHZLWKZKLFKFRXOGKDYHDGLUHFWDQGPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKH
GHWHUPLQDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWDPRXQWV+RZHYHUSURYLGLQJDQRSLQLRQRQFRPSOLDQFHZLWKWKRVH
SURYLVLRQVZDVQRWDQREMHFWLYHRIRXUDXGLWDQGDFFRUGLQJO\ZHGRQRWH[SUHVVVXFKDQRSLQLRQ7KH
UHVXOWV RI RXU WHVWV GLVFORVHG QR LQVWDQFHV RI QRQFRPSOLDQFH RU RWKHU PDWWHUV WKDW DUH UHTXLUHG WR EH
UHSRUWHGXQGHUGovernment Auditing Standards

Purpose of this Report
7KHSXUSRVHRIWKLVUHSRUWLVVROHO\WRGHVFULEHWKHVFRSHRIRXUWHVWLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWURODQGFRPSOLDQFH
DQGWKHUHVXOWVRIWKDWWHVWLQJDQGQRWWRSURYLGHDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKHHQWLW\¶VLQWHUQDO
FRQWURO RU RQ FRPSOLDQFH 7KLV UHSRUW LV DQ LQWHJUDO SDUW RI DQ DXGLW SHUIRUPHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK
Government Auditing StandardsLQFRQVLGHULQJWKHHQWLW\¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURODQGFRPSOLDQFH$FFRUGLQJO\
WKLVUHSRUWLVQRWVXLWDEOHIRUDQ\RWKHUSXUSRVH



0DUFK
3HQVDFROD)ORULGD



316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL
+RQRUDEOH:HQGHOO+DOO6KHULII
6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD


:HKDYHH[DPLQHGWKH2IILFHRIWKH6KHULIIRI6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD¶V KHUHLQDIWHUUHIHUUHGWRDV
³6KHULII´  FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK )ORULGD 6WDWXWH  LQ UHJDUGV WR LQYHVWPHQWV IRU WKH \HDU HQGHG
6HSWHPEHU

0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKH6KHULII¶VFRPSOLDQFHZLWKWKRVHUHTXLUHPHQWV2XUUHVSRQVLELOLW\LVWR
H[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKH6KHULII¶VFRPSOLDQFHEDVHGRQRXUH[DPLQDWLRQ

2XU H[DPLQDWLRQ ZDV FRQGXFWHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DWWHVWDWLRQ VWDQGDUGV HVWDEOLVKHG E\ WKH $PHULFDQ
,QVWLWXWHRI&HUWLILHG3XEOLF$FFRXQWDQWVDQGDFFRUGLQJO\LQFOXGHGH[DPLQLQJRQDWHVWEDVLVHYLGHQFH
DERXW WKH 6KHULII¶V FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK WKRVH UHTXLUHPHQWV DQG SHUIRUPLQJ VXFK RWKHU SURFHGXUHV DV ZH
FRQVLGHUHGQHFHVVDU\LQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHV:HEHOLHYHWKDWRXUH[DPLQDWLRQSURYLGHVDUHDVRQDEOHEDVLV
IRURXURSLQLRQ2XUH[DPLQDWLRQGRHVQRWSURYLGHDOHJDOGHWHUPLQDWLRQRQWKH6KHULII¶VFRPSOLDQFHZLWK
VSHFLILHGUHTXLUHPHQWV

,Q RXU RSLQLRQ WKH 6KHULII FRPSOLHG LQ DOO PDWHULDO UHVSHFWV ZLWK WKHDIRUHPHQWLRQHGUHTXLUHPHQWVIRU
WKH\HDUHQGHG6HSWHPEHU



3HQVDFROD)ORULGD
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Wendell Hall, Sheriff
Santa Rosa County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements (“financial statements”) of each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Office of the Sheriff of Santa Rosa County, Florida (hereinafter referred to
as “Sheriff”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014 and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 2, 2015.
Auditors’ Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Florida Auditor General.
Other Reports
We have also issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountants’ Report on Examination of Compliance
Requirements in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports,
which are March 2, 2015, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report. No recommendations were made in the preceding annual financial report.
Other Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such
recommendations.
Section 10.554 (1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

- 25 -

Purpose of this Letter
2XU PDQDJHPHQW OHWWHU LV LQWHQGHG VROHO\ IRU WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG XVH RI WKH /HJLVODWLYH $XGLWLQJ
&RPPLWWHHPHPEHUVRIWKH)ORULGD6HQDWHDQGWKH)ORULGD+RXVHRI5HSUHVHQWDWLYHVWKH)ORULGD$XGLWRU
*HQHUDOWKH6KHULIIDQGWKH6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\%RDUGRI&RXQW\&RPPLVVLRQHUVDQGLVQRWLQWHQGHGWR
EHDQGVKRXOGQRWEHXVHGE\DQ\RQHRWKHUWKDQWKHVHVSHFLILHGSDUWLHV



0DUFK
3HQVDFROD)ORULGD



Santa Rosa County, Florida Sheriff
MANAGEMENT’S REPSONSE TO MANAGEMENT LETTER
September 30, 2014

There were no comments which require management’s written response.
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Pensacola, FL 32502
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Stan Colie Nichols
Tax Collector
Santa Rosa County, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial
statements”) of the general fund and the tax fund of the Office of the Tax Collector of Santa
Rosa County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as “Tax Collector”) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Tax Collector’s financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Tax Collector’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tax Collector’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the general fund and tax fund of the Tax Collector, as of
September 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, where applicable, thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, the financial statements referred to above
were prepared solely for the purpose of complying with the Rules of the Auditor General of the
State of Florida. In conformity with the Rules, the accompanying financial statements are
intended to present the financial position and changes in financial position of the general fund
and tax fund of Santa Rosa County that is attributable to the Tax Collector. They do not purport
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Santa Rosa County as of September 30,
2014, and the changes in its financial position for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement
the financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 19, 2015, on our consideration of the Tax Collector’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rules, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters included under the heading “Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.” The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Tax Collector’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
BALANCE SHEET - GENERAL FUND
September 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash
Due from other governmental units
Total assets

$
$

574,979
31,000
605,979

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll, taxes and benefits
Unearned revenues
Due to other governmental units
Total liabilities

$

4,864
84,902
20,966
495,247
605,979

FUND BALANCE
Fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balance

-$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

605,979
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GENERAL FUND
For the year ended September 30, 2014

REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

3,863,202
3,838
3,867,040

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

2,753,475
625,510
5,008
3,383,993

Excess of revenues over expenditures

483,047

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Unspent revenues

(483,047)

Net change in fund balance

--

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

--

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

--
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - AGENCY FUNDS TAX FUND
September 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash
Miscellaneous receivables

$

1,611,214
124,984
1,736,198

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governmental units
Miscellaneous

49,213
1,646,631
40,354

Total liabilities

1,736,198

NET POSITION
Net Position

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

--
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements follows.
1. Reporting Entity
The Office of the Tax Collector of Santa Rosa County, Florida (the “Tax Collector”), as
established by Article VIII, Section 1(d), of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is an elected
official of Santa Rosa County, Florida (the “County”). Although the Tax Collector is
operationally autonomous from the Santa Rosa County Board of County Commissioners (the
“Board”), it does not hold sufficient corporate powers to be considered a legally separate entity
for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Tax Collector is considered part of County’s
primary government for external financial reporting purposes.
These financial statements of the Tax Collector are not intended to be a complete presentation of
the financial position and results of operations of the County taken as a whole. As permitted by
Chapter 10.556(4), Rules of the Auditor General State of Florida, the financial statements consist
of only the fund level financial statements as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 34, and do not include presentations of government-wide
financial statements of the Tax Collector.
2. Fund Accounting
The accounting system of the Tax Collector is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is
defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and
financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and
changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or
attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.
The funds utilized by the Tax Collector are as follows:
Governmental Funds
These funds utilize a modified accrual basis of accounting. The measurement focus is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances
of financial resources rather than upon net income determination).
General Fund - The general fund of the Tax Collector is used to account for all financial
resources which are generated from operations of the office and any other resources not required
to be accounted for in another fund.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES -- (Continued)
2. Fund Accounting – (Continued)
Fiduciary Funds -- The Tax Collector’s sole fiduciary fund is an agency fund (the “Tax
Fund”). Agency funds are used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity for others.
Assets equal liabilities in agency funds and results of operations are not measured. The Tax
Fund is used to account for receipts of various types of taxes, licenses, and fees collected on
behalf of state, county, and municipal governmental agencies.
3. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. The basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. All governmental funds are
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The revenues are recognized
when they become both measurable and available as net current assets. The Tax Collector
considers receivables collected within sixty days after year-end to be available and recognizes
them as revenues of the current year. Expenditures are recognized when the related fund
liability is incurred. Agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting.
4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased.
5. Accounting for Capital Assets
Capital assets are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase by the Tax Collector. These
assets (vehicles, equipment, and other tangible property and certain intangible property costing
at least $1,000 with a useful life of more than one year) are capitalized at cost and accounted for
in the County’s government-wide financial statements.
6. Compensated Absences
Employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused annual and sick leave which will
be paid upon separation from service. Compensated absence expenditures are not recognized in
the General Fund until payments are made to employees. However, these unpaid compensated
absences are recorded as a liability when the benefits are earned in the County’s governmentwide financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES -- (Continued)
7.

Unspent Revenue and Fund Balance

In accordance with Section 218.36, Florida Statutes, unspent revenue is remitted proportionately
to the various taxing districts at fiscal year-end. As a result, no fund balance exists at year end in
the General Fund.
8.

Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

The Tax Collector has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between September 30,
2014 and January 19, 2015, which is the date that the financial statement were available to be
issued, for possible recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS
At September 30, 2014, the bank reported deposits before outstanding checks and deposits of
$2,122,091 all of which was held by a financial institution designated as a "qualified public
depository" by the State Treasurer. All deposits were fully insured through a combination of
Federal depository insurance and participation of the financial institution in the multiple
financial institution collateral pool as specified in Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. Accordingly,
the Tax Collector does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash balances.
Florida Statutes authorize the Tax Collector to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in banks participating in the multiple financial
institution collateral pool. The Tax Collector does not have any assets of an investment nature as
of September 30, 2014.

NOTE C - LONG-TERM DEBT -- COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Disclosures required by Chapter 10.557(3)(h), Rules of the Auditor General State of Florida
related to long-term debt are as follows:
Balance - October 1, 2013
Earned absences
Used absences
Balance - September 30, 2014

$

325,023
131,703
(122,967)
$ 333,759

Compensated absences are paid by the General Fund.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE D - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN
Substantially all full-time employees of the Tax Collector are covered by the Florida
Retirement System (FRS). The FRS was established in 1970 by Chapter 121, Florida
Statutes and is administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division
of Retirement. Changes to the FRS can be made only by an act of the Florida Legislature.
Rules governing the operation and administration of the system may be found in Chapter
60S of the Florida Administrative Code. The FRS issues a financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained at
www.myfrs.com or by writing to FRS, 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida
32399.
The FRS offers two retirement plans – the FRS Pension Plan and the FRS Investment Plan.
An employee may participate in only one of the plans. Both plans, effective July 1, 2011 are
funded monthly by a combination of employer and employee contributions.
The FRS Pension Plan is a multiple employer cost sharing defined benefit plan which
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. For employees who were enrolled in the plan
prior to July 1, 2011, normal retirement benefits are available at age 62 with 6 or more years
of service, or to those employees who have at least 30 years of creditable service, regardless
of age. Early retirement is available after 6 years of service with a 5% reduction of benefits
for each year prior to the normal retirement age. For employees enrolling in the plan for the
first time on or after July 1, 2011, normal retirement benefits are available at age 65 with 8
or more years of service, or to those employees who have at least 33 years of creditable
service, regardless of age. Early retirement is available after 8 years of service with a 5%
reduction of benefits for each year prior to the normal retirement age. Retirement age and
years of service requirements also vary depending on membership class. Retirement
benefits are based upon age, average compensation and years-of-service credit where
average compensation is computed as the average of the members highest 5 (if enrolled
prior to July 1, 2011) or 8 (if enrolled on or after July 1, 2011) fiscal years of earnings.
The FRS Investment Plan is a defined contribution plan funded monthly by employer and
employee contributions based on salary and membership class. Employer contributions vest
after 1 year of service whereas employee contributions vest immediately. Members in the
Investment Plan decide how their funds are allocated between various investment accounts
and the vested funds are portable upon termination. The final retirement benefit is equal to
the vested contributions plus investment earnings less expenses and losses allocated to the
member’s account. Members in the Investment Plan are not eligible for participation in the
Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP).
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE D - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN -- (Continued)
DROP is available for members of the FRS Pension Plan who are vested and elect to
participate in DROP within 1 year after reaching normal retirement age. Under this
program, a member effectively retires while continuing to be employed for up to 5 years.
While in DROP, the member’s deferred monthly retirement benefits accumulate, earning
interest and cost-of-living increases. When the DROP period is over, the participant
terminates covered employment and begins receiving their predetermined monthly
retirement benefit, as well as the accrued DROP benefit. Disability retirees are not eligible
to participate in DROP, and DROP participants do not qualify for disability retirement.
Prior to July 2011, the plans were noncontributory for employees with all contributions being the
participating FRS employer’s responsibility. Effective July 1, 2011, participating employees
contribute 3% of their gross salaries each pay period to the plan. Participating employer
contributions are based upon state-wide rates established by the State of Florida. Average
contribution rates for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 were as follows: regular
employees, 7.06%, special risk employees, 19.25%, elected officials, 35.58%, senior
management employees, 19.02%, and DROP participants, 12.70%. The Tax Collector’s
contributions to the Pension Plan, funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, were equal to the actuarially
determined contributions for each year. Contributions to the Investment Plan were equal to the
legislatively-mandated contribution rates. Contributions to both plans totaled $175,202,
$118,650, and $102,288 for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

NOTE E - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN
The Tax Collector participates in the health insurance plan offered to employees of the Board
and other County Elected Officials (the Board plan). Additionally, retirees and eligible
dependents have the option of continuing in the Board plan at the same group rate as for
active employees. Although participating retirees are required to reimburse the Board for
100% of the premium cost, employees who retire with a minimum of 10 years of creditable
service (8 years elected service) are eligible for a monthly health insurance subsidy based on
the number of years of creditable service multiplied by $3, and limited to the lesser of $90 per
month or the actual cost of the retiree’s monthly health insurance premium.
Because the premium is a group rate which includes active lower cost employees, these
retirees are receiving an “implicit subsidy”. This implicit subsidy has a cost which is required
to be disclosed in these financial statements. However, this annual cost, the accrued
obligation, and other required disclosures have been calculated for the County as a whole, and
not separately for the Tax Collector. Accordingly, these calculations and disclosures can be
found in the County-wide comprehensive annual financial report.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE F - LEASES
The Tax Collector leases certain office space and equipment under operating lease agreements
with expiration dates through February 2016. Future minimum rental commitments under
these leases are as follows:
Fiscal year end September 30:
2015
2016
Total minimum future rental payment

26,400
11,000
$ 37,400

Rental expense for the year ended September 30, 2014 was $26,400.

NOTE G - RISK MANAGEMENT
The Tax Collector is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
Board has established a Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and
finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under this program the County is self-insured with
respect to the following exposures:
Workers Compensation
Auto Physical Damage
Auto Liability
Construction and Road Equipment
Portable Communication Equipment
The County is covered by outside insurance for the following exposures:
Buildings and contents, $5,000 deductible
Boats
Employee Fidelity
General Liability, $25,000 deductible
Public Officials’ Liability, $25,000 deductible
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE G - RISK MANAGEMENT – (Continued)
Conventional insurance remains in effect for buildings and their contents. There also were
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims
resulting from conventional insurance risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years. The County is a member of the Florida Association of Counties Trust, a
pooled liability program providing general liability coverage and public officials’ liability
coverage. The Tax Collector participates in the program and makes payments to the SelfInsurance Fund based on historical estimates of amounts needed to pay prior and current year
claims and to establish a reserve for catastrophe losses.

NOTE H – COMMITMENTS
The Tax Collector entered into a service agreement for routine tax bill and collections
software for an initial term of five years beginning October 1, 2014. The Tax Collector has
committed to an initial implementation fee of $150,000, of which $100,000 has been paid as
of September 30, 2014. Beginning October 1, 2015, there is an annual fee of $150,000. After
the first year, such fee shall escalate annually at a rate of 5%.

NOTE I – LITIGATION
The Tax Collector is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims which
might be filed incidental to the ordinary course of operations. In the opinion of management,
based on the advice of legal counsel, there are no lawsuits or claims outstanding which will
have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Tax Collector’s Office.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND (Unaudited)
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Actual

$ 3,698,100
33,500
3,731,600

$ 3,698,100
33,500
3,731,600

$ 3,863,202
3,838
3,867,040

2,775,910
658,696
-3,434,606

2,775,910
653,596
5,100
3,434,606

2,753,475
625,510
5,008
3,383,993

22,435
28,086
92
50,613

296,994

296,994

483,047

186,053

(296,994)

(296,994)

(483,047)

(186,053)

REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

165,102
(29,662)
135,440

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Unspent revenues

Net change in fund balance

--

--

--

--

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

--

--

--

--

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

$

--

$

See notes to required supplementary information.

--

$

--

$

--
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2014

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The Tax Collector establishes an annual budget pursuant to Section 195.087, Florida Statutes.
The budget is submitted to the Florida Department of Revenue for approval. A copy is provided
to the Board and is incorporated into the overall county budget. The Tax Collector’s budget is
adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIALSTATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Stan Colie Nichols
Tax Collector
Santa Rosa County, Florida
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) of the general fund and the tax fund
of the Tax Collector of Santa Rosa County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as “Tax Collector”),
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Tax Collector’s financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated January 19, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Tax
Collector’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Tax Collector’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Tax Collector’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Tax Collector’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, FL
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550,
RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

We have examined the Office of the Tax Collector of Santa Rosa County, Florida’s (hereinafter
referred to as “Tax Collector”) compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in regards to
investments for the year ended September 30, 2014.
Management is responsible for the Tax Collector’s compliance with those requirements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Tax Collector’s compliance based on our
examination.
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Tax Collector’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not
provide a legal determination on the Tax Collector’s compliance with specified requirements.
In our opinion, the Tax Collector complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned
requirements for the year ended September 30, 2014.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Stan Colie Nichols
Tax Collector
Santa Rosa County, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) of the
general fund and the tax fund of the Office of the Tax Collector of Santa Rosa County, Florida
(hereinafter referred to as “Tax Collector”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 19, 2105.
Auditor’s Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the
Auditor General.
Other Reports
We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance
Requirements in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in
those reports which are dated January 19, 2015, should be considered in conjunction with this
management letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554 (1) (i) 1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit. No recommendations were made in the preceding annual financial audit
report.
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Other Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the
management letter any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with
our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance
with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to
have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did
not have any such findings.
Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, and applicable management, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Tax Collector
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE TO MANAGEMENT LETTER
For the year ended September 30, 2014

There were no comments which require management’s written response.
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Donald Spencer – Clerk of Court and Comptroller
Santa Rosa County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Office of Clerk of Court and Comptroller of Santa Rosa County, Florida
(hereinafter referred to as “Clerk”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the financial statements, as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Clerk’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Clerk’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Clerk, as of
September 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, the financial statements referred to above have been
prepared for the purpose of complying with the Rules of the Auditor General, State of Florida. In
conformity with the Rules, the accompanying financial statements are intended to present the financial
position and changes in financial position of each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information,
only for that portion of the major funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information, of Santa Rosa
County, Florida that is attributable to the Clerk. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the
financial position of Santa Rosa County, Florida as of September 30, 2014, and the changes in its
financial position for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary
comparison schedules on pages 15-17 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements. The
accompanying supplementary information, the combining statement of assets and liabilities on page 19, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of these financial statements. This
statement is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
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The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 2, 2015
on our consideration of the Clerk’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters included under the heading “Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.” The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

March 2, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
BALANCE SHEET - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2014

General

Courts
Technology

Courts

Major Funds
Records
Modernization
Trust

10% FinesPRMTF

Child Support
Title IV-D

Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other funds
Due from other governmental units
Total assets

$

$

373,202
6,845
-299
380,346

$

5,865
128,360
92,298
-100,551
53,272
380,346

$

$

706,580
-38,541
-745,121

$

2,764
95,751
--616,541
-715,056

$

$

299,984
---299,984

$

194
5,568
--24,887
-30,649

$

$

281,009
---281,009

$

8,829
-----8,829

$

$

559,705
---559,705

$

6,673
-----6,673

$

$

---38,541
38,541

$

---38,541
--38,541

$

$

2,220,480
6,845
38,541
38,840
2,304,706

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and salaries
Due to Board of County Commissioners
Due to other funds
Due to other governmental units
Deposits
Total liabilities

$

24,325
229,679
92,298
38,541
741,979
53,272
1,180,094

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for state court operations
Restricted for records modernization
Restricted for court equipment and technology
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

----$

380,346

30,065
--30,065
$

745,121

--269,335
269,335
$

299,984

-272,180
-272,180
$

281,009

--553,032
553,032
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

559,705

----$

38,541

30,065
272,180
822,367
1,124,612
$

2,304,706

-5-

Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

General

Major Funds
Records
Courts
Modernization
Technology
Trust

Courts

10% FinesPRMTF

Child Support
Title IV-D

Total

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues

838,846
33,297
872,143

$

746,256
2,090,176
721,322
8,812
3,566,566

$

257,214
257,214

$

84,398
84,398

$

167,321
167,321

$

166,577
166,577

$

912,833
3,270,634
888,643
42,109
5,114,219

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Financial and administrative:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Judicial:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

2,165,065
274,805
43,951

4,154
-

2,483,821

2,848,480
232,944
3,085,578

(1,611,678)

480,988

1,703,677
(91,999)
1,611,678

(478,405)
(478,405)

-

-

2,165,065
424,282
52,311

35,250
-

110,073
8,360

164,078
124,606
91,866
380,550

35,250

118,433

(123,336)

49,148

48,888

-

(1,155,990)

-

-

-

1,705,587
(91,999)
(478,405)
1,135,183
(20,807)

3,179,135
357,550
91,866
6,270,209

166,577
166,577

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Board of County Commissioners appropriation
Board of County Commissioners unspent revenues
Payments to Clerks of the Court Trust Fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

1,910
1,910

Net change in fund balances

-

2,583

(121,426)

49,148

48,888

-

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

-

27,482

390,761

223,032

504,144

-

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$

-

$

30,065

$

269,335

$

272,180

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

553,032

$

-

1,145,419
$

1,124,612
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Courts and Comptroller
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
September 30, 2014

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governmental units
Total assets

$
$

3,197,557
3,197,557

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to other governmental units
Deposits
Total liabilities

$

$

160,473
617,611
2,419,473
3,197,557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the financial
statements follows:
1.

Reporting Entity

The Office of the Clerk of Court and Comptroller of Santa Rosa County, Florida (the “Clerk”) was
established as a constitutional office of Santa Rosa County, Florida (the “County”) by Article VIII,
Section 1 (d) of the Constitution of the State of Florida. The Clerk is an elected official of the County
and serves as Clerk of the Circuit Court (duties described in Chapter 28, Florida Statutes), Clerk of
the County Court (duties described in Chapter 34, Florida Statutes), and Clerk and Accountant to the
Santa Rosa County Board of County Commissioners (the “BOCC”) (in this capacity the Clerk is
required to keep the minutes of the county commission, keep the accounts of the County, invest
county funds, and perform such other duties as provided by law). The Clerk’s office is funded by
appropriations from the BOCC and by fees charged for providing court related services. Although
the Clerk is operationally autonomous from the BOCC, it does not hold sufficient corporate powers to
be considered a legally separate entity for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Clerk is
considered part of the County’s primary government.
These financial statements of the Clerk are not intended to be a complete presentation of the financial
position and results of operations of the County, taken as a whole. As permitted by Chapter 10.556(4),
Rules of the Auditor General State of Florida, the financial statements consists of only the fund level
financial statements as defined in GASB Statement No. 34, and do not include presentations of
government-wide financial statements of the Clerk.
2.

Fund Accounting

The accounting system of the Clerk’s office is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined
as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and financial
resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which
are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.
The funds utilized by the Clerk are as follows:
Governmental Funds
These funds utilize a modified accrual basis of accounting. The measurement focus is upon determination
of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources
rather than upon net income determination).
The Clerk reports the following major governmental funds:
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES -- (Continued)
2.

Fund Accounting -- (Continued)

General Fund is used to account for all financial resources that are generated from operations of the
office, appropriations from the BOCC, and any other resources not required to be accounted for in another
fund.
Courts Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for all court-related activities and court-related
financial resources of the Clerk.
Courts Technology Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the court-related technology
needs of the Clerk.
Records Modernization Trust Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for monies collected
according to Chapter 28.24, Florida Statutes, to be used exclusively for equipment, personnel training,
and technical assistance in modernizing the official records system and to pay for equipment and start-up
costs necessitated by a statewide recording system.
Title IV-D Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for activities related to Title IV-D child
support cases. The funding provides assistance to the plaintiff and enforcement of collections through the
Office of Child Support Enforcement.
10% Fines – Public Records Modernization Trust (PRMT) Fund is a special revenue fund used to
account for 10% of fines collected and retained by the Clerk for supporting court operations.
Fiduciary Funds
The Clerk uses agency funds to account for assets being held in a trustee capacity or for individuals,
private organizations, and/or other governments. Assets equal liabilities in agency funds.
3.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. The basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made,
regardless of the measurement focus applied. All governmental funds are accounted for using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and
available as net current assets. The Clerk considers receivables collected within sixty days after year-end
to be available and recognizes them as revenues of the current year. Expenditures are recognized when
the related fund liability is incurred. Agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting.

-9-

Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES -- (Continued)
4.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Clerk’s cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
5.

Accounting for Capital Assets

Capital assets (vehicles, equipment, and other tangible property and certain intangible property costing at
least $1,000 with a useful life of more than one year) are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase.
These assets are capitalized at cost and are accounted for in the County’s government-wide financial
statements.
6.

Compensated Absences

Employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused annual, sick, and compensatory leave
which will be paid upon separation from service. Unpaid compensated absences are recorded as a liability
when the benefits are earned in the County’s government-wide financial statements. For the
governmental fund statements, expenditures are recognized when payments are made to employees.
7.

Unspent Revenue

Annually, the Clerk must remit to the Board any unspent revenues attributable to non court-related
functions. Additionally, the Clerk must calculate and remit to the Department of Revenue Clerks of
Courts Trust Fund the unspent revenues attributable to state funded court-related functions. These
amounts are reported as due to other governmental units at year-end.
8.

Fund Balances

Fund balances are classified either as non-spendable or as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned
based on the extent to which there are external and internal constraints on the spending of these fund
balances.

NOTE B – CASH
At September 30, 2014, the banks reported deposits before outstanding checks of $6,108,399, all of which
were held by financial institutions designated as "qualified public depositories" by the State Treasurer.
All deposits were fully insured through a combination of federal depository insurance and participation of
the financial institutions in the multiple financial institution collateral pool as specified in Chapter 280,
Florida Statutes. Accordingly, risk of loss due to bank failure is not significant.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE C – LONG-TERM LIABILITY – COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Disclosures required by Chapter 10.557(3)(h), Rules of the State of Florida Auditor General, related to
long term liabilities are as follows:
Balance - October 1, 2013
Increases
Decreases
Balance - September 30, 2014

$

$

530,824
470,715
(428,547)
572,992

Compensated absences are paid from the respective funds which incur compensation expenditures.

NOTE D – PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN
Substantially all full-time employees of the Clerk are covered by the Florida Retirement System
(FRS). The FRS was established in 1970 by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes and is administered by the
Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement. Changes to the FRS can be
made only by an act of the Florida Legislature. Rules governing the operation and administration of
the system may be found in Chapter 60S of the Florida Administrative Code. The FRS issues a
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained at www.myfrs.com or by writing to FRS, 2639-C North Monroe Street,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399.
The FRS offers two retirement plans – the FRS Pension Plan and the FRS Investment Plan. An
employee may participate in only one of the plans. Both plans, effective July 1, 2011 are funded
monthly by a combination of employer and employee contributions.
The FRS Pension Plan is a multiple employer cost sharing defined benefit plan which provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. For employees who were enrolled in the plan prior to July 1, 2011,
normal retirement benefits are available at age 62 with 6 or more years of service, or to those
employees who have at least 30 years of creditable service, regardless of age. Early retirement is
available after 6 years of service with a 5% reduction of benefits for each year prior to the normal
retirement age.
For employees enrolling in the plan for the first time on or after July 1, 2011, normal retirement
benefits are available at age 65 with 8 or more years of service, or to those employees who have at
least 33 years of creditable service, regardless of age. Early retirement is available after 8 years of
service with a 5% reduction of benefits for each year prior to the normal retirement age.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE D – PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN -- (Continued)
Retirement age and years of service requirements also vary depending on membership class.
Retirement benefits are based upon age, average compensation and years-of-service credit where
average compensation is computed as the average of the members highest 5 (if enrolled prior to July
1, 2011) or 8 (if enrolled on or after July 1, 2011) fiscal years of earnings.
The FRS Investment Plan is a defined contribution plan funded monthly by employer and employee
contributions based on salary and membership class. Employer contributions vest after 1 year of
service whereas employee contributions vest immediately. Members in the Investment Plan decide
how their funds are allocated between various investment accounts and the vested funds are portable
upon termination.
The final retirement benefit is equal to the vested contributions plus investment earnings less
expenses and losses allocated to the member’s account. Members in the Investment Plan are not
eligible for participation in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP).
DROP is available for members of the FRS Pension Plan who are vested and elect to participate in
DROP within 1 year after reaching normal retirement age. Under this program, a member effectively
retires while continuing to be employed for up to 5 years. While in DROP, the member’s deferred
monthly retirement benefits accumulate, earning interest and cost-of-living increases. When the
DROP period is over, the participant terminates covered employment and begins receiving their
predetermined monthly retirement benefit, as well as the accrued DROP benefit. Disability retirees
are not eligible to participate in DROP, and DROP participants do not qualify for disability
retirement.
Prior to July 2011, the plans were noncontributory for employees with all contributions being the
participating FRS employer’s responsibility. Effective July 1, 2011, participating employees
contribute 3% of their gross salaries each pay period to the plan. Participating employer contributions
are based upon rates established by the State of Florida. Blended contribution rates for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014 were as follows: regular employees - 7.06%, special risk employees 19.25%, elected officials - 35.58%, senior management employees - 19.02%, and DROP participants
- 12.70%. The Clerk’s contributions to the Pension Plan, funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, were
equal to the actuarially determined contributions for each year. Contributions to the Investment Plan
were equal to the legislatively-mandated contribution rates. Contributions to both plans totaled
$317,014, $205,508, and $168,807 for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE E – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN
The Clerk participates in the health insurance plan offered to employees of the Board and other
County Elected Officials (the Board plan). Additionally, retirees and eligible dependents have the
option of continuing in the Board plan at the same group rate as for active employees. Although
participating retirees are required to reimburse the Board for 100% of the premium cost, employees
who retire with a minimum of 10 years of creditable service (8 years elected service) are eligible for a
monthly health insurance subsidy of $3 per year of creditable service, limited to the lesser of $90 per
month or the actual cost of the retiree’s monthly health insurance premium.
Because the premium is a group rate which includes active lower cost employees, these retirees are
receiving an “implicit subsidy”. This implicit subsidy has a cost which is required to be disclosed in
these financial statements. However, this annual cost, the accrued obligation, and other required
disclosures have been calculated for the County as a whole, and not separately for the Clerk.
Accordingly, these calculations and disclosures can be found in the County-wide comprehensive
annual financial report.

NOTE F – FUND BALANCES
Fund balances consist of the following:
Non-spendable fund balances include amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable
form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The Clerk does not have any
non-spendable fund balances.
The remaining fund balances are classified as follows depending on the Clerk’s ability to control their
spending:
Restricted fund balances can only be used for specific purposes which are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations or are imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. As of September 30, 2014, the Clerk had
restricted fund balances for state court operations of $30,065 and for records modernization and
court equipment and technology of $1,094,547.
Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes imposed internally by the
Clerk’s formal action of highest level of decision making authority. At year end the Clerk had no
committed fund balances.
Assigned fund balances are fund balances intended to be used for specific purposes, but which do
not meet the more formal criterion to be considered either restricted or committed. At year end
the Clerk had no assigned fund balances.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

NOTE F – FUND BALANCES
Unassigned fund balances represent the residual positive fund balance within the General Fund,
which has not been assigned to other funds and has not been restricted, committed, or assigned. In
funds other than the General Fund, unassigned fund balances are limited to negative residual
balances. At year end the Clerk had no unassigned fund balances because all unspent revenues of the
General Fund are required to be returned to the BOCC and there were no negative residual balances
in the special revenue funds.

NOTE G – CLAIMS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Clerk is involved from time to time in routine civil litigation incidental to the ordinary course of
operations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, there are no lawsuits or claims
outstanding which might materially affect the financial position of the Clerk’s Office.

NOTE H – RISK MANAGEMENT
The Clerk is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Board maintains a Self-Insurance
Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss.
Under this program the County is self-insured with respect to the following exposures:
Workers Compensation
Auto Physical Damage
Auto Liability
Construction and Road Equipment
Portable Communication Equipment
The County is covered by outside insurance for the following exposures:
Building and contents, $5,000 deductible
Employee Fidelity
General Liability, $25,000 deductible
Public Officials’ Liability, $25,000 deductible
Conventional insurance remains in effect for buildings and contents. There also were no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims resulting from conventional
insurance risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The County is a member
of the Florida Association of Counties Trust, a pooled liability program providing general liability
coverage and public official’s liability coverage. The Clerk participates in the program and makes
payments to the Self-Insurance Fund based on historical estimates of amounts needed to pay prior and
current year claims and to establish a reserve for catastrophe losses.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Special Revenue Fund
Courts Fund

General Fund

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Actual

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines & Forfeitures
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues

868,180
31,320
899,500

$

977,230
34,780
1,012,010

838,846
33,297
872,143

$

(138,384)
(1,483)
(139,867)

659,399
1,859,160
582,200
4,640
3,105,399

$

659,399
1,980,290
456,820
8,890
3,105,399

746,256
2,090,176
721,322
8,812
3,566,566

$

86,857
109,886
264,502
(78)
461,167

1,957,480
444,910
18,000

2,190,137
361,540
51,500

2,165,065
274,805
43,951

25,072
86,735
7,549

2,420,390

2,603,177

2,483,821

119,356

(1,520,890)

(1,591,167)

(1,611,678)

(20,511)

-

-

480,988

480,988

1,520,890
1,520,890

1,591,167
1,591,167

1,703,677
(91,999)
1,611,678

112,510
(91,999)
20,511

-

-

(478,405)
(478,405)

(478,405)
(478,405)

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Financial and administrative:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Judicial:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

-

-

2,726,862
376,037
2,500
3,105,399

2,910,300
195,099
3,105,399

4,154
-

(4,154)
-

2,848,480
232,944
3,085,578

61,820
(37,845)
19,821

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Board of County Commissioners appropriation
Board of County Commissioners unspent revenues
Payments to Clerks of the Court Trust Fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,583

2,583

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

-

-

-

-

-

-

27,482

27,482

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

-

$

-

$

30,065

$

30,065
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Special Revenue Fund
Courts Technology Fund

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Actual

Special Revenue Fund
Records Modernization Trust Fund
Variance with
Final Budget
Original
Final
Positive
Budget
Budget
Actual
(Negative)

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues

300,000
300,000

$

301,910
301,910

$

257,214
257,214

$

(44,696)
(44,696)

$

100,000
100,000

$

100,000
100,000

$

84,398
84,398

$

(15,602)
(15,602)

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Financial and administrative:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Judicial:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay

-

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

-

-

-

65,200
34,800

65,200
34,800

35,250
-

29,950
34,800

100,000

100,000

35,250

64,750

241,905
134,095
124,000
500,000

243,815
133,995
124,100
501,910

164,078
124,606
91,866
380,550

79,737
9,389
32,234
121,360

(200,000)

(200,000)

(123,336)

76,664

-

-

49,148

49,148

1,910
1,910

-

-

-

-

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Board of County Commissioners appropriation
Board of County Commissioners unspent revenues
Payments to Clerks of the Court Trust Fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

-

Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$

-

1,910
1,910

(200,000)

(200,000)

(121,426)

78,574

-

-

49,148

49,148

200,000

200,000

390,761

190,761

-

-

223,032

223,032

-

$ 272,180

-

$

-

$ 269,335

$

269,335

$

-

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

$

$

272,180
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Special Revenue Fund
10% Fines & PRMT Fund

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Fines & forfeits
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Financial and administrative:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Judicial:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

165,000
165,000

Final
Budget
$

170,000
170,000

Actual

Special Revenue Fund
Child Support Title IV-D Fund
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

167,321

(2,679)
(2,679)

167,321

55,760
101,240
8,000

161,500
8,500

110,073
8,360

51,427
140

165,000

170,000

118,433

51,567

Original
Budget
160,000
160,000

Final
Budget

Actual

$ 170,000
170,000

-

166,577

$

166,577

-

160,000
160,000

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

-

170,000
170,000

(3,423)
(3,423)

-

166,577

3,423
3,423

166,577

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

-

-

48,888

48,888

-

-

-

-

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Board of County Commissioners appropriation
Board of County Commissioners unspent revenues
Payments to Clerks of the Court Trust Fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net change in fund balances

-

-

48,888

48,888

-

-

-

-

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

-

-

504,144

504,144

-

-

-

-

-

$ 553,032

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$

-

$

$

553,032

$

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

-

$

-

$

-

$

-
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the year ended September 30, 2013

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The Clerk establishes annual budgets for its general fund and special revenue funds pursuant to Section
218.35, Florida Statutes. The Clerk’s budget is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORAMTION
COMBINING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
September 30, 2014

Court
Registry

Fine and
Cost

Intangible
Tax

State
Documentary
Stamp

Suspense

Tax
Redemption

Ordinary
Witness

Bail
Bonds

Flower
Trust Fund

Child
Support

Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governmental units
Total assets

$
$

1,921,904
1,921,904

$
$

288,514
288,514

$
$

58,425
58,425

$
$

297,068
297,068

$
$

88,551
88,551

$
$

294,069
294,069

$
$

38,813
38,813

$
$

202,763
202,763

$
$

737
737

$
$

6,713
6,713

$
$

3,197,557
3,197,557

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governmental units
Deposits
Total liabilities

$

$

1,921,904
1,921,904

$

$

121,660
166,854
288,514

$

$

58,425
58,425

$

$

297,068
297,068

$

$

88,551
88,551

$

$

294,069
294,069

$

$

38,813
38,813

$

$

202,763
202,763

$

$

737
737

$

$

6,713
6,713

$

$

160,473
617,611
2,419,473
3,197,557
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Honorable Donald Spencer – Clerk of Court and Comptroller
Santa Rosa County, Florida
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as
“financial statements”) of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Office of
Clerk of Court and Comptroller of Santa Rosa County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as “Clerk”), as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Clerk’s financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 2,
2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Clerk’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Clerk’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Clerk’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Clerk’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 2, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF
THE AUDITOR GENERAL

We have examined the Office of Clerk of Court and Comptroller of Santa Rosa County, Florida’s
(hereinafter referred to as the “Clerk”) compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in regards to investments,
and Florida Statutes 28.35 and 28.36 in regards to certain court-related functions for the year ended
September 30, 2014.
Management is responsible for the Clerk’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Clerk’s compliance based on our examination.
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the Clerk’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Clerk’s compliance with
specified requirements.
In our opinion, the Clerk complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
year ended September 30, 2014.

Pensacola, Florida
March 2, 2014
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

MANAGEMENT LETTER
Honorable Donald Spencer – Clerk of Court and Comptroller
Santa Rosa County, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements (“financial statements”) of each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Office of Clerk of Court and Comptroller of Santa Rosa County, Florida
(hereinafter referred to as “Clerk”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 2, 2015.
Auditors’ Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Florida Auditor General.
Other Reports and Schedules
We have also issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountants’ Report on Examination of Compliance
Requirements in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports,
which are dated March 2, 2015, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report. No recommendations were made in the preceding annual financial report.
Other Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such
recommendations.
Section 10.554 (1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
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Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, the Clerk, and the Santa Rosa County Board of County Commissioners and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

March 2, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Clerk of Court and Comptroller
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE TO MANAGEMENT LETTER
For the year ended September 30, 2014

There are no findings which require a response from management.
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Gregory S. Brown
Property Appraiser
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the general fund of the Santa Rosa County
Property Appraiser, Santa Rosa County, Florida (the Property Appraiser), as of and for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Property Appraiser’s financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to an express opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the general fund of the Property Appraiser as of September 30, 2014, and
the respective changes in financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, the financial statements referred to above were
prepared solely for the purpose of complying with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of
Florida. In conformity with the Rules, the accompanying financial statements are intended to present the
financial position and changes in financial position of the general fund of the Property Appraiser. They do
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Santa Rosa County, Florida as of
September 30, 2014, and the changes in its financial position for the fiscal year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to these matters.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary
comparison schedule, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the financial
statements. Such information, although not a required part of the financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report on our consideration of
the Property Appraiser’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters included
under the heading “Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards”.
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The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Property Appraiser’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Property Appraiser
BALANCE SHEET - GENERAL FUND
September 30, 2014

ASSETS

Cash

$

405,876

$

90,750
251,669
63,457
405,876

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to Board of County Commissioners
Accrued salaries and wages
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE

Fund balance - unassigned

Total liabilities and fund balance

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

--

$

405,876
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Property Appraiser
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
For the year ended September 30, 2014

REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

8,800
2,188
10,988

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

2,201,872
436,958
84,076
2,722,906

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

(2,711,918)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Board of County Commissioners appropriation
Board of County Commissioners unspent revenue
Total other financing sources (uses)

2,963,587
(251,669)
2,711,918

Net change in fund balance

--

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

--

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$

--
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the financial
statements follows.
1. Reporting Entity
The Santa Rosa County, Florida Property Appraiser (the “Property Appraiser”), as established by Article
VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is an elected official of Santa Rosa County, Florida (the
“County”). Although the Property Appraiser is operationally autonomous from the Santa Rosa County
Board of County Commissioners (the “Board”), it does not hold sufficient corporate powers to be
considered a legally separate entity for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Property Appraiser is
considered part of the County’s primary government.
The financial statements of the Property Appraiser are not intended to be a complete presentation of the
financial position and results of operations of the County taken as a whole. As permitted by Chapter
10.556(4), Rules of the Auditor General State of Florida, the financial statements consist of only the fund
level financial statements as defined in GASB Statement No. 34, and do not include presentations of
government-wide financial statements of the Property Appraiser.
2. Fund Accounting
The accounting system of the Property Appraiser is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is
defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and financial
resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which
are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.
The General Fund of the Property Appraiser is used to account for all financial resources which are
generated from operations of the office, appropriations from the Board, or any other resources not
required to be accounted for in another fund. The measurement focus is upon determination of financial
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources rather than
upon net income determination).
3. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. The basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made,
regardless of the measurement focus applied. The General Fund uses the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Its revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available as net current
assets. The Property Appraiser considers receivables collected within sixty days after year-end to be
available and recognizes them as revenues of the current year. Expenditures are recognized when the
related fund liability is incurred.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES -- (Continued)
4. Accounting for Capital Assets
Capital assets (vehicles, equipment, and other tangible and certain intangible property costing at least
$1,000 with a useful life of more than one year) are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase.
These assets are capitalized at cost and accounted for in the County’s government-wide financial
statements.
5. Compensated Absences
Employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused annual and sick leave which will be paid
upon separation from service. Unpaid compensated absences are recorded as a liability when the benefits
are earned in the County’s government-wide financial statements. For the general fund, compensated
absence expenditures are recognized when payments are made to employees.
6. Unspent Revenue and Fund Balance
In accordance with Section 218.36(2), Florida Statutes, unspent revenue is remitted to the Board at fiscal
year-end. This unspent revenue is reported as due to Board of County Commissioners, therefore, fund
balance is zero.
7. Events Occurring After Reporting Date
The Property Appraiser has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between September 30, 2014
and January 19, 2015, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, for
possible recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

NOTE B - CASH
At September 30, 2014, the bank reported deposits before outstanding checks of $443,639 all of which
were held by a financial institution designated as “a qualified public depository” by the State Treasurer.
All deposits were fully insured through a combination of Federal depository insurance and participation of
the financial institution in the multiple financial institution collateral pool as specified in Chapter 280,
Florida Statutes. Accordingly, risk of loss due to bank failure is not significant.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE C - LONG-TERM DEBT - COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Disclosures required by Chapter 10.557(3)(h), Rules of the State of Florida Auditor General, related to
long-term debt are as follows:
Balance - October 1, 2013
Increases
Decreases
Balance - September 30, 2014

$

$

352,693
132,760
(136,966)
348,487

NOTE D – PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN
Substantially all full-time employees of the Property Appraiser are covered by the Florida
Retirement System (FRS). The FRS was established in 1970 by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes and is
administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement. Changes
to the FRS can be made only by an act of the Florida Legislature. Rules governing the operation and
administration of the system may be found in Chapter 60S of the Florida Administrative Code. The
FRS issues a financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. The report may be obtained at www.myfrs.com or by writing to FRS, 2639-C North
Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.
The FRS offers two retirement plans – the FRS Pension Plan and the FRS Investment Plan. An
employee may participate in only one of the plans. Both plans, effective July 1, 2011 are funded
monthly by a combination of employer and employee contributions.
The FRS Pension Plan is a multiple employer cost sharing defined benefit plan which provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. For employees who were enrolled in the plan prior to July 1, 2011,
normal retirement benefits are available at age 62 with 6 or more years of service, or to those
employees who have at least 30 years of creditable service, regardless of age. Early retirement is
available after 6 years of service with a 5% reduction of benefits for each year prior to the normal
retirement age.
For employees enrolling in the plan for the first time on or after July 1, 2011, normal retirement
benefits are available at age 65 with 8 or more years of service, or to those employees who have at
least 33 years of creditable service, regardless of age.
Early retirement is available after 8 years of service with a 5% reduction of benefits for each year
prior to the normal retirement age. Retirement age and years of service requirements also vary
depending on membership class.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE D – PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN -- (Continued)
Retirement benefits are based upon age, average compensation and years-of-service credit where
average compensation is computed as the average of the members highest 5 (if enrolled prior to July
1, 2011) or 8 (if enrolled on or after July 1, 2011) fiscal years of earnings.
The FRS Investment Plan is a defined contribution plan funded monthly by employer and employee
contributions based on salary and membership class. Employer contributions vest after 1 year of
service whereas employee contributions vest immediately. Members in the Investment Plan decide
how their funds are allocated between various investment accounts and the vested funds are portable
upon termination. The final retirement benefit is equal to the vested contributions plus investment
earnings less expenses and losses allocated to the member’s account. Members in the Investment
Plan are not eligible for participation in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP).
The Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) is available for members of the FRS Pension Plan
who are vested and elect to participate in DROP within 1 year after reaching normal retirement age.
Under this program, a member effectively retires while continuing to be employed for up to 5 years.
While in DROP, the member’s deferred monthly retirement benefits accumulate, earning interest and
cost-of-living increases. When the DROP period is over, the participant terminates covered
employment and begins receiving their predetermined monthly retirement benefit, as well as the
accrued DROP benefit.
Disability retirees are not eligible to participate in DROP, and DROP participants do not qualify for
disability retirement.
Prior to July 2011, the plans were noncontributory for employees with all contributions being the
participating FRS employer’s responsibility. Effective July 1, 2011, participating employees
contribute 3% of their gross salaries each pay period to the plan. Participating employer
contributions are based upon state-wide rates established by the State of Florida. Average
contribution rates for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 were as follows: regular employees,
7.06%, special risk employees, 19.25%, elected officials, 35.58%, senior management employees,
19.02%, and DROP participants, 12.70%.
The Property Appraiser’s contributions to the Pension Plan, funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, were
equal to the actuarially determined contributions for each year. Contributions to the Investment Plan
were equal to the legislatively-mandated contribution rates. Contributions to both plans totaled
$157,315, $99,488, and $76,476 for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE E – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN
The Property Appraiser participates in the health insurance plan offered to employees of the Board
and other County Elected Officials (the Board plan). Additionally, retirees and eligible dependents
have the option of continuing in the Board plan at the same group rate as for active employees.
Although participating retirees are required to reimburse the Board for 100% of the premium cost,
employees who retire with a minimum of 10 years of creditable service (8 years elected service) are
eligible for a monthly health insurance subsidy based on the number of years of creditable service
multiplied by $3, and limited to the lesser of $90 per month or the actual cost of the retiree’s
monthly health insurance premium.
Because the premium is a group rate which includes active lower cost employees, these retirees are
receiving an “implicit subsidy”. This implicit subsidy has a cost which is required to be disclosed in
these financial statements. However, this annual cost, the accrued obligation, and other required
disclosures have been calculated for the County as a whole, and not separately for the Property
Appraiser. Accordingly, these calculations and disclosures can be found in the County-wide
comprehensive annual financial report.

NOTE F - RISK MANAGEMENT
The Property Appraiser is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft and damage of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Board has a Self-Insurance
Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss.
The County is self-insured with respect to the following exposures:
Workers Compensation
Auto Physical Damage
Auto Liability
Construction and Road Equipment
Portable Communication Equipment
The County is covered by outside insurance for the following exposures:
Buildings and contents, $5,000 deductible
Boats
Employee Fidelity
General Liability, $25,000 deductible
Public Officials’ Liability, $25,000 deductible
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE F - RISK MANAGEMENT -- (Continued)
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years. The County is a member of the Florida Association of Counties Trust, a pooled
liability program providing general liability coverage and public official’s liability coverage.
The Property Appraiser participates in the County’s self-insurance program and makes payments to the
Self-Insurance Fund based on historical estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year
claims and to establish a reserve for catastrophe losses.

NOTE G - LITIGATION
The Property Appraiser is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims which might be
filed incidental to the ordinary course of operations. In the opinion of management, based on the advice of
legal counsel, there are no lawsuits or claims outstanding which will have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Property Appraiser’s Office.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Santa Rosa County, Florida Property Appraiser
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS)
AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND - (Unaudited)
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Actual

REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

---

$

---

$

2,188
2,188

$

2,188
2,188

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

2,416,012
483,742
-2,899,754

2,398,198
500,676
84,444
2,983,318

2,201,872
428,158
84,076
2,714,106

196,326
72,518
368
269,212

(2,899,754)

(2,983,318)

(2,711,918)

271,400

2,899,754
-2,899,754

2,983,318
-2,983,318

2,963,587
(251,669)
2,711,918

(19,731)
(251,669)
(271,400)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Board of County Commissioners appropriation
Board of County Commissioners unspent revenue
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

--

--

--

--

FUND BALANCE, BUDGETARY BASIS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

--

--

--

--

--

--

FUND BALANCE, BUDGETARY BASIS, END OF YEAR

$

--

$

Adjustment for revenues not budgeted

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

--

8,800

Adjustment for expenditures allowed under Florida Statute 195.087

FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS, END OF YEAR

$

(8,800)
$

--
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Budget and Budgetary Accounting
The Property Appraiser operates under budget procedures pursuant to Section 195.087, Florida Statutes.
As permitted by Section 195.087 certain revenues and expenditures related to copy fees, sale of maps, and
other charges for services are not subject to budget procedures. The legal level of budgetary control is at
the fund level.
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS
Honorable Gregory S. Brown
Property Appraiser
Santa Rosa County, Florida
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Santa Rosa County,
Florida Property Appraiser (the Property Appraiser) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 19, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Property Appraiser’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Property Appraiser’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Property Appraiser’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Property Appraiser’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Property
Appraiser’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Property Appraiser’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550,
RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Honorable Gregory S. Brown
Property Appraiser

We have examined the Office of the Property Appraiser of Santa Rosa County, Florida’s (hereinafter
referred to as “Property Appraiser”) compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in regards to investments
for the year ended September 30, 2014.
Management is responsible for the Property Appraiser’s compliance with those requirements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Property Appraiser’s compliance based on our examination.
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Property Appraiser’s
compliance with specified requirements.
In our opinion, the Property Appraiser complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned
requirements for the year ended September 30, 2014.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Gregory S. Brown
Property Appraiser

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of the general fund of the Office of the Property Appraiser of
Santa Rosa County, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon January 19, 2015.
Auditors’ Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Other Reports and Schedule
We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountants’ Report on Examination of Compliance
Requirements in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those
reports which are January 19, 2015, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report. There were no recommendations made in the preceding audit report.
Other Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter
any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have
any such recommendations. Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address
noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are
likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have
any such findings.
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Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, the Property Appraiser, Santa Rosa County Board of County Commissioners, and applicable
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

January 19, 2015
Pensacola, Florida
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Santa Rosa County, Florida
Property Appraiser
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE TO MANAGEMENT LETTER
For the year ended September 30, 2014

There were no comments which require management’s written response.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
+RQRUDEOH7DSSLH9LOODQH
6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV

Report on the Financial Statements
:H KDYH DXGLWHG WKH DFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKHJHQHUDOIXQGRIWKH6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\
)ORULGD6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVDVRIDQGIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG6HSWHPEHUDQGWKHUHODWHGQRWHVWR
WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKLFKFROOHFWLYHO\FRPSULVHWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV¶ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDV
OLVWHGLQWKHWDEOHRIFRQWHQWV
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
0DQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKDFFRXQWLQJSULQFLSOHVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFDWKLVLQFOXGHV
WKH GHVLJQ LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ DQG PDLQWHQDQFH RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU
SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV WKDW DUH IUHH IURP PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHWKHU GXH WR IUDXG RU
HUURU
Auditors’ Responsibility
2XU UHVSRQVLELOLW\ LV WR H[SUHVV DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV EDVHG RQ RXU DXGLW :H
FRQGXFWHG RXU DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG LQ WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI
$PHULFDDQGVWDQGDUGVDSSOLFDEOHWRILQDQFLDODXGLWVFRQWDLQHGLQGovernment Auditing StandardsLVVXHG
E\WKH&RPSWUROOHU*HQHUDORIWKH8QLWHG6WDWHV7KRVHVWDQGDUGVUHTXLUHWKDWZHSODQDQGSHUIRUPWKH
DXGLW WR REWDLQ UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH DERXW ZKHWKHU WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH IUHH IURP PDWHULDO
PLVVWDWHPHQW
$QDXGLWLQYROYHVSHUIRUPLQJSURFHGXUHVWRREWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHDERXWWKHDPRXQWVDQGGLVFORVXUHVLQ
WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 7KH SURFHGXUHV VHOHFWHG GHSHQG RQ WKH DXGLWRUV¶ MXGJPHQW LQFOXGLQJ WKH
DVVHVVPHQWRIWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,QPDNLQJWKRVHULVNDVVHVVPHQWVWKHDXGLWRUFRQVLGHUVLQWHUQDOFRQWUROUHOHYDQWWRWKHHQWLW\¶VSUHSDUDWLRQ
DQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLWSURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQ
WKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH6XSHUYLVRU
RI(OHFWLRQV¶LQWHUQDOFRQWURO$FFRUGLQJO\ZHH[SUHVVQRVXFKRSLQLRQ$QDXGLWDOVRLQFOXGHVHYDOXDWLQJ
WKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHV
PDGHE\PDQDJHPHQWDVZHOODVHYDOXDWLQJWKHRYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRU
RXUDXGLWRSLQLRQ



Opinion
,Q RXU RSLQLRQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV UHIHUUHG WR DERYH SUHVHQW IDLUO\ LQ DOO PDWHULDO UHVSHFWV WKH
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKHJHQHUDOIXQGRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVDVRI6HSWHPEHUDQGWKH
UHVSHFWLYH FKDQJHV LQ ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ WKHUHRI IRU WKH \HDU WKHQ HQGHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DFFRXQWLQJ
SULQFLSOHVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFD
Emphasis of Matter
$V GLVFXVVHG LQ 1RWH $ WR WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV UHIHUUHG WR DERYH ZHUH
SUHSDUHG VROHO\ IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI FRPSO\LQJ ZLWK WKH 5XOHV RI WKH $XGLWRU *HQHUDO RI WKH 6WDWH RI
)ORULGD,QFRQIRUPLW\ZLWKWKH5XOHVWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHLQWHQGHGWRSUHVHQWWKH
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGFKDQJHVLQILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKDWSRUWLRQRIWKHJHQHUDOIXQGDWWULEXWDEOHVROHO\
WR WKH RSHUDWLRQV RI WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV 7KH\GRQRWSXUSRUWWRDQGGRQRWSUHVHQWIDLUO\WKH
ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ RI 6DQWD 5RVD &RXQW\ )ORULGD DV RI 6HSWHPEHU   DQG WKH FKDQJHV LQ LWV
ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ IRU WKH ILVFDO \HDU WKHQ HQGHG LQ FRQIRUPLW\ ZLWK DFFRXQWLQJ SULQFLSOHV JHQHUDOO\
DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFD2XURSLQLRQLVQRWPRGLILHGZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKLVPDWWHU

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
$FFRXQWLQJ SULQFLSOHV JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG LQ WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI $PHULFD UHTXLUH WKDW WKH EXGJHWDU\
FRPSDULVRQ LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ SDJH  EH SUHVHQWHG WR VXSSOHPHQW WKH EDVLF ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 6XFK
LQIRUPDWLRQ DOWKRXJK QRW D SDUW RI WKH EDVLF ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LV UHTXLUHG E\ WKH *RYHUQPHQWDO
$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUGZKRFRQVLGHUVLWWREHDQHVVHQWLDOSDUWRIILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJIRUSODFLQJWKH
EDVLFILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQDQDSSURSULDWHRSHUDWLRQDOHFRQRPLFRUKLVWRULFDOFRQWH[W:HKDYHDSSOLHG
FHUWDLQ OLPLWHG SURFHGXUHV WR WKH UHTXLUHG VXSSOHPHQWDU\ LQIRUPDWLRQ LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DXGLWLQJ
VWDQGDUGVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRI$PHULFDZKLFKFRQVLVWHGRILQTXLULHVRIPDQDJHPHQW
DERXW WKH PHWKRGV RI SUHSDULQJ WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG FRPSDULQJ WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ IRU FRQVLVWHQF\ ZLWK
PDQDJHPHQW¶V UHVSRQVHV WR RXU LQTXLULHV WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG RWKHU NQRZOHGJH ZH REWDLQHG
GXULQJRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV:HGRQRWH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRUSURYLGHDQ\DVVXUDQFHRQ
WKHLQIRUPDWLRQEHFDXVHWKHOLPLWHGSURFHGXUHVGRQRWSURYLGHXVZLWKVXIILFLHQWHYLGHQFHWRH[SUHVVDQ
RSLQLRQRUSURYLGHDQ\DVVXUDQFH
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWKGovernment Auditing StandardsZHKDYHDOVRLVVXHGDUHSRUWGDWHG0DUFKRQ
RXUFRQVLGHUDWLRQRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV¶LQWHUQDOFRQWURORYHUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGRQRXUWHVWV
RILWVFRPSOLDQFHZLWKFHUWDLQSURYLVLRQVRIODZVUHJXODWLRQVFRQWUDFWVDQGJUDQWDJUHHPHQWVDQGRWKHU
PDWWHUV LQFOXGHG XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ“Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.”



7KH SXUSRVH RI WKDW UHSRUW LV WR GHVFULEH WKH VFRSH RI RXU WHVWLQJ RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO
UHSRUWLQJDQGFRPSOLDQFHDQGWKHUHVXOWVRIWKDWWHVWLQJDQGQRWWRSURYLGHDQRSLQLRQRQLQWHUQDOFRQWURO
RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ RU RQ FRPSOLDQFH 7KDW UHSRUW LV DQ LQWHJUDO SDUW RI DQ DXGLW SHUIRUPHG LQ
DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK Government Auditing Standards LQ FRQVLGHULQJ WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV¶ LQWHUQDO
FRQWURORYHUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGFRPSOLDQFH




3HQVDFROD)ORULGD
0DUFK45



Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
BALANCE SHEET - GENERAL FUND
September 30, 2014

ASSETS

Due from Board of County Commissioners

$

181,807

$

55,789
28,929
97,089
181,807

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advances on grants
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balance

-$

181,807

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND
For the year ended September 30, 2014

REVENUES
Grant revenue
Miscellaneous revenue

$

49,078
19,347
68,425

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

531,307
394,697
35,823
961,827

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

(893,402)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Board of County Commissioners appropriation

893,402

Net change in fund balance

--

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

-$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

--

-6-

Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

$VXPPDU\RIWKHVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVFRQVLVWHQWO\DSSOLHGLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVIROORZV

1. Reporting Entity

7KH6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV WKH³6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV´ DVHVWDEOLVKHGE\
$UWLFOH9,,,RIWKH&RQVWLWXWLRQRIWKH6WDWHRI)ORULGDLVDQHOHFWHGRIILFLDORI6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD
WKH³&RXQW\´ $OWKRXJKWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVLVRSHUDWLRQDOO\DXWRQRPRXVIURPWKH6DQWD5RVD
&RXQW\%RDUGRI&RXQW\&RPPLVVLRQHUV WKH³%RDUG´ LWGRHVQRWKROGVXIILFLHQWFRUSRUDWHSRZHUVRILWV
RZQWREHFRQVLGHUHGDOHJDOO\VHSDUDWHHQWLW\IRUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSXUSRVHV7KHUHIRUHWKH6XSHUYLVRU
RI(OHFWLRQVLVUHSRUWHGDVDSDUWRIWKHSULPDU\JRYHUQPHQWRIWKH&RXQW\

7KHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHQRWLQWHQGHGWREHDFRPSOHWHSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQG
UHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQVRIWKH&RXQW\WDNHQDVDZKROH$VSHUPLWWHGE\&KDSWHU  5XOHVRI
WKH$XGLWRU*HQHUDO6WDWHRI)ORULGDWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVFRQVLVWVRIRQO\WKHfund levelILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDVGHILQHGLQ*RYHUQPHQW$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG *$6% 6WDWHPHQW1RDQGGR
QRWLQFOXGHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRIgovernment-wideILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV

3XUVXDQWWRWKHSURYLVLRQVRI)ORULGD6WDWXWHVWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVKDVHOHFWHGWRKDYHWKH
2IILFH RI WKH &OHUN RI &RXUW DQG &RPSWUROOHU RI 6DQWD 5RVD &RXQW\ PDLQWDLQ WKH ERRNV DQG UHFRUGV
SHUWDLQLQJWRWKHRSHUDWLRQVRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV7KHUHIRUHWKH6XSHUYLVRUVRI(OHFWLRQVGRHV
QRWPDLQWDLQDVHSDUDWHFDVKDFFRXQWDQGDOOFDVKDFWLYLW\IRUWKH6XSHUYLVRUVRI(OHFWLRQVLVUHFRUGHGLQ
WKHFRPPRQFDVKDFFRXQWRIWKH%RDUG7KH³'XHIURP%RDUGRI&RXQW\&RPPLVVLRQHUV´DFFRXQWRQWKH
EDODQFHVKHHWUHSUHVHQWVWKHDPRXQWRIFDVKKHOGRQEHKDOIRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV

2. Fund Accounting

7KHDFFRXQWLQJV\VWHPRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVLVRUJDQL]HGDQGRSHUDWHGRQDIXQGEDVLV$IXQGLV
GHILQHGDVDILVFDODQGDFFRXQWLQJHQWLW\ZLWKDVHOIEDODQFLQJVHWRIDFFRXQWVUHFRUGLQJFDVKDQGILQDQFLDO
UHVRXUFHVWRJHWKHUZLWKDOOUHODWHGOLDELOLWLHVDQGUHVLGXDOHTXLWLHVRUEDODQFHVDQGFKDQJHVWKHUHLQZKLFK
DUH VHJUHJDWHG IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI FDUU\LQJ RQ VSHFLILF DFWLYLWLHV RU DWWDLQLQJ FHUWDLQ REMHFWLYHV LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKVSHFLDOUHJXODWLRQVUHVWULFWLRQVRUOLPLWDWLRQV

7KHJHQHUDOIXQGRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVLVXVHGWRDFFRXQWIRUDOOILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHVZKLFKDUH
JHQHUDWHG IURP RSHUDWLRQV RI WKH RIILFH DSSURSULDWLRQV IURP WKH %RDUG RU DQ\ RWKHU UHVRXUFHV QRW
UHTXLUHGWREHDFFRXQWHGIRULQDQRWKHUIXQG

7KLVIXQGXWLOL]HVDPRGLILHGDFFUXDOEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ7KHPHDVXUHPHQWIRFXVLVXSRQGHWHUPLQDWLRQ
RIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGFKDQJHVLQILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ VRXUFHVXVHVDQGEDODQFHVRIILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHV
UDWKHUWKDQXSRQQHWLQFRPHGHWHUPLQDWLRQ  




Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES – (Continued)



3. Basis of Accounting

%DVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJUHIHUVWRwhenUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQGLWXUHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGLQWKHDFFRXQWVDQGUHSRUWHG
LQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQW  7KH EDVLV RI DFFRXQWLQJ UHODWHV WR WKH WLPLQJ RI WKH PHDVXUHPHQWV PDGH
UHJDUGOHVV RI WKH PHDVXUHPHQW IRFXV DSSOLHG  $OO JRYHUQPHQWDO IXQGV DUH DFFRXQWHG IRU XVLQJ WKH
PRGLILHGDFFUXDOEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ7KHLUUHYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKH\EHFRPHERWKPHDVXUDEOH
DQG DYDLODEOH DV QHW FXUUHQW DVVHWV  7KH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV FRQVLGHUV UHFHLYDEOHV FROOHFWHG ZLWKLQ
VL[W\ GD\V DIWHU \HDUHQG WR EH DYDLODEOH DQG UHFRJQL]HV WKHP DV UHYHQXHV RI WKH FXUUHQW \HDU
([SHQGLWXUHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKHUHODWHGIXQGOLDELOLW\LVLQFXUUHG




4. Accounting for Capital Assets

&DSLWDO DVVHWV YHKLFOHV HTXLSPHQW DQG RWKHU WDQJLEOH DQG FHUWDLQ LQWDQJLEOH SURSHUW\ FRVWLQJ DW OHDVW
ZLWKDXVHIXOOLIHRIPRUHWKDQRQH\HDU DUHUHFRUGHGDVH[SHQGLWXUHVLQWKHIXQGOHYHOILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV DW WKH WLPH RI SXUFKDVH  7KHVH DVVHWV DUH DOVR FDSLWDOL]HG DW FRVW DQG DFFRXQWHG IRU LQ WKH
&RXQW\¶VJRYHUQPHQWZLGHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV 
5. Compensated Absences

(PSOR\HHVDFFXPXODWHDOLPLWHGDPRXQWRIHDUQHGEXWXQXVHGVLFNDQGDQQXDOOHDYHZKLFKZLOOEHSDLG
XSRQVHSDUDWLRQIURPVHUYLFH8QSDLGFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDUHUHFRUGHGDVDOLDELOLW\ZKHQWKHEHQHILWV
DUHHDUQHGLQWKH&RXQW\¶VJRYHUQPHQWZLGHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV)RUWKHJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVWDWHPHQWV
H[SHQGLWXUHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQSD\PHQWVDUHPDGHWRHPSOR\HHV



NOTE B - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

'LVFORVXUHVUHTXLUHGE\&KDSWHU  K 5XOHVRIWKH$XGLWRU*HQHUDO6WDWHRI)ORULGDUHODWHGWRWKH
OLDELOLW\IRUFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDUHDVIROORZV
   
 %DODQFH2FWREHU
 
 ,QFUHDVHV


 'HFUHDVHV

 
 %DODQFH6HSWHPEHU
 
NOTE C - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN

6XEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO IXOOWLPH HPSOR\HHV RI WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV DUH FRYHUHG E\ WKH )ORULGD
5HWLUHPHQW6\VWHP )56 7KH)56ZDVHVWDEOLVKHGLQE\&KDSWHU)ORULGD6WDWXWHVDQGLV
DGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH)ORULGD'HSDUWPHQWRI0DQDJHPHQW6HUYLFHV'LYLVLRQRI5HWLUHPHQW&KDQJHV
WRWKH)56FDQEHPDGHRQO\E\DQDFWRIWKH)ORULGD/HJLVODWXUH5XOHVJRYHUQLQJWKHRSHUDWLRQDQG
DGPLQLVWUDWLRQRIWKHV\VWHPPD\EHIRXQGLQ&KDSWHU6RIWKH)ORULGD$GPLQLVWUDWLYH&RGH7KH
)56 LVVXHV D ILQDQFLDO UHSRUW WKDW LQFOXGHV ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG UHTXLUHG VXSSOHPHQWDU\
LQIRUPDWLRQ  7KH UHSRUW PD\ EH REWDLQHG DW ZZZP\IUVFRP RU E\ ZULWLQJ WR )56 & 1RUWK
0RQURH6WUHHW7DOODKDVVHH)ORULGD



Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE C - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN – (Continued)

7KH )56 RIIHUV WZR UHWLUHPHQW SODQV ± WKH )56 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ DQG WKH )56 ,QYHVWPHQW 3ODQ  $Q
HPSOR\HH PD\ SDUWLFLSDWH LQ RQO\ RQH RI WKH SODQV %RWK SODQV HIIHFWLYH -XO\   DUH IXQGHG
PRQWKO\E\DFRPELQDWLRQRIHPSOR\HUDQGHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQV

7KH )56 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ LV D PXOWLSOH HPSOR\HU FRVW VKDULQJ GHILQHG EHQHILW SODQ ZKLFK SURYLGHV
UHWLUHPHQW DQG GLVDELOLW\ EHQHILWV DQQXDO FRVWRIOLYLQJ DGMXVWPHQWV DQG GHDWK EHQHILWV WR SODQ
PHPEHUV DQG EHQHILFLDULHV )RU HPSOR\HHV ZKR ZHUH HQUROOHG LQ WKH SODQ SULRU WR -XO\  
QRUPDO UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV DUH DYDLODEOH DW DJH  ZLWK  RU PRUH \HDUV RI VHUYLFH RU WR WKRVH
HPSOR\HHV ZKR KDYH DW OHDVW  \HDUV RI FUHGLWDEOH VHUYLFH UHJDUGOHVV RI DJH (DUO\ UHWLUHPHQW LV
DYDLODEOH DIWHU  \HDUV RI VHUYLFH ZLWK D  UHGXFWLRQ RI EHQHILWV IRU HDFK \HDU SULRU WR WKH QRUPDO
UHWLUHPHQWDJH

)RU HPSOR\HHV HQUROOLQJ LQ WKH SODQ IRU WKH ILUVW WLPH RQ RU DIWHU -XO\   QRUPDO UHWLUHPHQW
EHQHILWVDUHDYDLODEOHDWDJHZLWKRUPRUH\HDUVRIVHUYLFHRUWRWKRVHHPSOR\HHVZKRKDYHDW
OHDVW\HDUVRIFUHGLWDEOHVHUYLFHUHJDUGOHVVRIDJH(DUO\UHWLUHPHQWLVDYDLODEOHDIWHU\HDUVRI
VHUYLFHZLWKDUHGXFWLRQRIEHQHILWVIRUHDFK\HDUSULRUWRWKHQRUPDOUHWLUHPHQWDJH

5HWLUHPHQW DJH DQG \HDUV RI VHUYLFH UHTXLUHPHQWV DOVR YDU\ GHSHQGLQJ RQ PHPEHUVKLS FODVV
5HWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV DUH EDVHG XSRQ DJH DYHUDJH FRPSHQVDWLRQ DQG \HDUVRIVHUYLFH FUHGLW ZKHUH
DYHUDJHFRPSHQVDWLRQLVFRPSXWHGDVWKHDYHUDJHRIWKHPHPEHUVKLJKHVW LIHQUROOHGSULRUWR-XO\
 RU LIHQUROOHGRQRUDIWHU-XO\ ILVFDO\HDUVRIHDUQLQJV

7KH)56,QYHVWPHQW3ODQLVDGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSODQIXQGHGPRQWKO\E\HPSOR\HUDQGHPSOR\HH
FRQWULEXWLRQV EDVHG RQ VDODU\ DQG PHPEHUVKLS FODVV (PSOR\HU FRQWULEXWLRQV YHVW DIWHU  \HDU RI
VHUYLFHZKHUHDVHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQVYHVWLPPHGLDWHO\0HPEHUVLQWKH,QYHVWPHQW3ODQGHFLGH
KRZWKHLUIXQGVDUHDOORFDWHGEHWZHHQYDULRXVLQYHVWPHQWDFFRXQWVDQGWKHYHVWHGIXQGVDUHSRUWDEOH
XSRQ WHUPLQDWLRQ  7KH ILQDO UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILW LV HTXDO WR WKH YHVWHG FRQWULEXWLRQV SOXV LQYHVWPHQW
HDUQLQJVOHVVH[SHQVHVDQGORVVHVDOORFDWHGWRWKHPHPEHU¶VDFFRXQW0HPEHUVLQWKH,QYHVWPHQW3ODQ
DUHQRWHOLJLEOHIRUSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQWKH'HIHUUHG5HWLUHPHQW2SWLRQ3URJUDP '523 

'523LVDYDLODEOHIRUPHPEHUVRIWKH)563HQVLRQ3ODQZKRDUHYHVWHGDQGHOHFWWRSDUWLFLSDWHLQ
'523ZLWKLQ\HDUDIWHUUHDFKLQJQRUPDOUHWLUHPHQWDJH8QGHUWKLVSURJUDPDPHPEHUHIIHFWLYHO\
UHWLUHVZKLOHFRQWLQXLQJWREHHPSOR\HGIRUXSWR\HDUV:KLOHLQ'523WKHPHPEHU¶VGHIHUUHG
PRQWKO\ UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV DFFXPXODWH HDUQLQJ LQWHUHVW DQG FRVWRIOLYLQJ LQFUHDVHV  :KHQ WKH
'523 SHULRG LV RYHU WKH SDUWLFLSDQW WHUPLQDWHV FRYHUHG HPSOR\PHQW DQG EHJLQV UHFHLYLQJ WKHLU
SUHGHWHUPLQHGPRQWKO\UHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWDVZHOODVWKHDFFUXHG'523EHQHILW'LVDELOLW\UHWLUHHV
DUH QRW HOLJLEOH WR SDUWLFLSDWH LQ '523 DQG '523 SDUWLFLSDQWV GR QRW TXDOLI\ IRU GLVDELOLW\
UHWLUHPHQW

3ULRU WR -XO\  WKH SODQV ZHUH QRQFRQWULEXWRU\ IRU HPSOR\HHV ZLWK DOO FRQWULEXWLRQV EHLQJ WKH
SDUWLFLSDWLQJ )56 HPSOR\HU¶V UHVSRQVLELOLW\ (IIHFWLYH -XO\   SDUWLFLSDWLQJ HPSOR\HHV
FRQWULEXWHRIWKHLUJURVVVDODULHVHDFKSD\SHULRGWRWKHSODQ3DUWLFLSDWLQJHPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWLRQV
DUHEDVHGXSRQVWDWHZLGHUDWHVHVWDEOLVKHGE\WKH6WDWHRI)ORULGD$YHUDJHFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHVIRUWKH
ILVFDO \HDU HQGHG 6HSWHPEHU   ZHUH DV IROORZV  UHJXODU HPSOR\HHV   VSHFLDO ULVN
HPSOR\HHVHOHFWHGRIILFLDOVVHQLRUPDQDJHPHQWHPSOR\HHVDQG'523



Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

NOTE C - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN – (Continued)

SDUWLFLSDQWV7KH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV¶FRQWULEXWLRQVWRWKH3HQVLRQ3ODQIXQGHGRQD
SD\DV\RXJR EDVLV ZHUH HTXDO WR WKH DFWXDULDOO\ GHWHUPLQHG FRQWULEXWLRQV IRU HDFK \HDU
&RQWULEXWLRQV WR WKH ,QYHVWPHQW 3ODQ ZHUH HTXDO WR WKH OHJLVODWLYHO\PDQGDWHG FRQWULEXWLRQ UDWHV
&RQWULEXWLRQVWRERWKSODQVWRWDOHGDQGIRUWKH\HDUVHQGHG6HSWHPEHU
DQGUHVSHFWLYHO\

NOTE D - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN
7KH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV SDUWLFLSDWHV LQ WKH KHDOWK LQVXUDQFH SODQ RIIHUHG WR HPSOR\HHV RI WKH
%RDUG DQG RWKHU &RXQW\ (OHFWHG 2IILFLDOV WKH %RDUG SODQ   $GGLWLRQDOO\ UHWLUHHV DQG HOLJLEOH
GHSHQGHQWV KDYH WKH RSWLRQ RI FRQWLQXLQJ LQ WKH %RDUG SODQ DW WKH VDPH JURXS UDWH DV IRU DFWLYH
HPSOR\HHV  $OWKRXJK SDUWLFLSDWLQJ UHWLUHHV DUH UHTXLUHG WR UHLPEXUVH WKH %RDUG IRU  RI WKH
SUHPLXP FRVW HPSOR\HHV ZKR UHWLUH ZLWK D PLQLPXP RI  \HDUV RI FUHGLWDEOH VHUYLFH  \HDUV
HOHFWHGVHUYLFH DUHHOLJLEOHIRUDPRQWKO\KHDOWKLQVXUDQFHVXEVLG\EDVHGRQWKHQXPEHURI\HDUVRI
FUHGLWDEOHVHUYLFHPXOWLSOLHGE\DQGOLPLWHGWRWKHOHVVHURISHUPRQWKRUWKHDFWXDOFRVWRI
WKHUHWLUHH¶VPRQWKO\KHDOWKLQVXUDQFHSUHPLXP
%HFDXVHWKHSUHPLXPLVDJURXSUDWHZKLFKLQFOXGHVDFWLYHORZHUFRVWHPSOR\HHVWKHVHUHWLUHHVDUH
UHFHLYLQJDQ³LPSOLFLWVXEVLG\´7KLVLPSOLFLWVXEVLG\KDVDFRVWZKLFKLVUHTXLUHGWREHGLVFORVHGLQ
WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV +RZHYHU WKLV DQQXDO FRVW WKH DFFUXHG REOLJDWLRQ DQG RWKHU UHTXLUHG
GLVFORVXUHVKDYHEHHQFDOFXODWHGIRUWKH&RXQW\DVDZKROHDQGQRWVHSDUDWHO\IRUWKH6XSHUYLVRURI
(OHFWLRQV $FFRUGLQJO\ WKHVH FDOFXODWLRQV DQG GLVFORVXUHV FDQ EH IRXQG LQ WKH &RXQW\ZLGH
FRPSUHKHQVLYHDQQXDOILQDQFLDOUHSRUW


NOTE E - RISK MANAGEMENT

7KH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVLVH[SRVHGWRYDULRXVULVNVRIORVVUHODWHGWRWRUWVWKHIWRIGDPDJHWR
DQG GHVWUXFWLRQ RI DVVHWV HUURUV DQG RPLVVLRQV LQMXULHV WR HPSOR\HHV DQG QDWXUDO GLVDVWHUV  7KH
%RDUGXVHVD6HOI,QVXUDQFH)XQG DQLQWHUQDOVHUYLFHIXQG WRDFFRXQWIRUDQGILQDQFHLWVXQLQVXUHG
ULVNVRIORVV8QGHUWKLVSURJUDPWKH&RXQW\LVVHOILQVXUHGZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHIROORZLQJH[SRVXUHV

 :RUNHUV&RPSHQVDWLRQ 
 $XWR3K\VLFDO'DPDJH 
 $XWR/LDELOLW\
 &RQVWUXFWLRQDQG5RDG(TXLSPHQW 
 3RUWDEOH&RPPXQLFDWLRQ(TXLSPHQW

7KH&RXQW\LVFRYHUHGE\RXWVLGHLQVXUDQFHIRUWKHIROORZLQJH[SRVXUHV
 
 %XLOGLQJVDQGFRQWHQWVGHGXFWLEOH
 %RDWV
 (PSOR\HH)LGHOLW\
 *HQHUDO/LDELOLW\GHGXFWLEOH
 3XEOLF2IILFLDOV¶/LDELOLW\GHGXFWLEOH 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE E - RISK MANAGEMENT – (Continued)

6HWWOHGFODLPVUHVXOWLQJIURPWKHVHULVNVKDYHQRWH[FHHGHGFRPPHUFLDOLQVXUDQFHFRYHUDJHLQDQ\RIWKH
SDVWWKUHHILVFDO\HDUV7KHUHKDYHEHHQQRVLJQLILFDQWUHGXFWLRQVLQLQVXUDQFHFRYHUDJHIURPFRYHUDJHLQ
WKHSULRU\HDU7KH&RXQW\LVDPHPEHURIWKH)ORULGD$VVRFLDWLRQRI&RXQWLHV7UXVWDSRROHGOLDELOLW\
SURJUDP SURYLGLQJ JHQHUDO OLDELOLW\FRYHUDJHDQGSXEOLFRIILFLDOV¶OLDELOLW\FRYHUDJH7KH6XSHUYLVRURI
(OHFWLRQVSDUWLFLSDWHVLQWKHSURJUDPDQGPDNHVSD\PHQWVWRWKH6HOI,QVXUDQFH)XQGEDVHGRQKLVWRULFDO
HVWLPDWHV RI WKH DPRXQWV QHHGHG WR SD\ SULRU DQG FXUUHQW \HDU FODLPV DQG WR HVWDEOLVK D UHVHUYH IRU
FDWDVWURSKLFORVVHV





REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION


Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Actual

REVENUES
Grant revenues
Miscellaneous revenues
Total revenues

$

30,400
-30,400

$

49,998
-49,998

$

49,078
19,347
68,425

$

(920)
19,347
18,427

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Personal services
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

550,715
466,925
-1,017,640

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

550,715
437,463
35,840
1,024,018

531,307
394,697
35,823
961,827

19,408
42,766
17
62,191

(987,240)

(974,020)

(893,402)

80,618

987,240

974,020

893,402

(80,618)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Board of County Commissioners appropriation

Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

$

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

$

See notes to required supplementary information.

--

$

--

$

--
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Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

7KH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVRSHUDWHVXQGHUEXGJHWSURFHGXUHVSXUVXDQWWR)ORULGD6WDWXWHV7KH6XSHUYLVRURI
(OHFWLRQV¶EXGJHWLVDGRSWHGRQDEDVLVFRQVLVWHQWZLWKDFFRXQWLQJSULQFLSOHVJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGLQWKH8QLWHG
6WDWHV RI $PHULFD  %XGJHW DSSURSULDWLRQV ODSVH DW WKH HQG RI WKH \HDU DQG DUH QRW FDUULHG RYHU WR WKH
IROORZLQJ\HDU7KHOHJDOOHYHORIEXGJHWDU\FRQWUROLVDWWKHIXQGOHYHO



316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS


+RQRUDEOH7DSSLH9LOODQH
6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV
6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD
:H KDYH DXGLWHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG LQ WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI
$PHULFD DQG WKH VWDQGDUGV DSSOLFDEOH WR ILQDQFLDO DXGLWV FRQWDLQHG LQ Government Auditing Standards
LVVXHGE\WKH&RPSWUROOHU*HQHUDORIWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKHJHQHUDOIXQGRIWKH
2IILFH RI WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV RI 6DQWD 5RVD &RXQW\ )ORULGD KHUHLQDIWHU UHIHUUHG WR DV
³6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV´ DVRIDQGIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG6HSWHPEHUDQGWKHUHODWHGQRWHVWRWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGKDYHLVVXHGRXUUHSRUWWKHUHRQGDWHG0DUFK

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
,Q SODQQLQJ DQG SHUIRUPLQJ RXU DXGLW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZH FRQVLGHUHG WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI
(OHFWLRQV¶ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO  WR GHWHUPLQH WKH DXGLW SURFHGXUHV
WKDW DUH DSSURSULDWH LQ WKH FLUFXPVWDQFHV IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI H[SUHVVLQJ RXU RSLQLRQ RQ WKH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV EXW QRW IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI H[SUHVVLQJ DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH HIIHFWLYHQHVV RI WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI
(OHFWLRQV¶ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO  $FFRUGLQJO\ ZH GR QRW H[SUHVV DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH HIIHFWLYHQHVV RI WKH
6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV¶LQWHUQDOFRQWURO

$ deficiency in internal control H[LVWV ZKHQ WKH GHVLJQ RU RSHUDWLRQ RI D FRQWURO GRHV QRW DOORZ
PDQDJHPHQW RU HPSOR\HHV LQ WKH QRUPDO FRXUVH RI SHUIRUPLQJ WKHLU DVVLJQHG IXQFWLRQV WR SUHYHQW RU
GHWHFWDQGFRUUHFWPLVVWDWHPHQWVRQDWLPHO\EDVLV$material weaknessLVDGHILFLHQF\RUFRPELQDWLRQ
RIGHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDOFRQWUROVXFKWKDWWKHUHLVDUHDVRQDEOHSRVVLELOLW\WKDWDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQW
RIWKHHQWLW\¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZLOOQRWEHSUHYHQWHGRUGHWHFWHGDQGFRUUHFWHGRQDWLPHO\EDVLV$
significant deficiency LV D GHILFLHQF\ RU D FRPELQDWLRQ RI GHILFLHQFLHV LQ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO WKDW LV OHVV
VHYHUH WKDQ D PDWHULDO ZHDNQHVV \HW LPSRUWDQW HQRXJK WR PHULW DWWHQWLRQ E\ WKRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK
JRYHUQDQFH

2XUFRQVLGHUDWLRQRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROZDVIRUWKHOLPLWHGSXUSRVHGHVFULEHGLQWKHILUVWSDUDJUDSKRIWKLV
VHFWLRQ DQG ZDV QRW GHVLJQHG WR LGHQWLI\ DOO GHILFLHQFLHV LQ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO WKDW PLJKW EH PDWHULDO
ZHDNQHVVHVRUVLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHV*LYHQWKHVHOLPLWDWLRQVGXULQJRXUDXGLWZHGLGQRWLGHQWLI\DQ\
GHILFLHQFLHV LQ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO WKDW ZH FRQVLGHU WR EH PDWHULDO ZHDNQHVVHV  +RZHYHU PDWHULDO
ZHDNQHVVHVPD\H[LVWWKDWKDYHQRWEHHQLGHQWLILHG




Compliance and Other Matters

$VSDUWRIREWDLQLQJUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV¶ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
DUHIUHHRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZHSHUIRUPHGWHVWVRILWVFRPSOLDQFHZLWKFHUWDLQSURYLVLRQVRIODZV
UHJXODWLRQVFRQWUDFWVDQGJUDQWDJUHHPHQWVQRQFRPSOLDQFHZLWKZKLFKFRXOGKDYHDGLUHFWDQGPDWHULDO
HIIHFW RQ WKH GHWHUPLQDWLRQ RI ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQW DPRXQWV  +RZHYHU SURYLGLQJ DQ RSLQLRQ RQ
FRPSOLDQFHZLWKWKRVHSURYLVLRQVZDVQRWDQREMHFWLYHRIRXUDXGLWDQGDFFRUGLQJO\ZHGRQRWH[SUHVV
VXFKDQRSLQLRQ7KHUHVXOWVRIRXUWHVWVGLVFORVHGQRLQVWDQFHVRIQRQFRPSOLDQFHRURWKHUPDWWHUVWKDW
DUHUHTXLUHGWREHUHSRUWHGXQGHUGovernment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

7KHSXUSRVHRIWKLVUHSRUWLVVROHO\WRGHVFULEHWKHVFRSHRIRXUWHVWLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWURODQGFRPSOLDQFHDQG
WKHUHVXOWVRIWKDWWHVWLQJDQGQRWWRSURYLGHDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKHHQWLW\¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURORU
RQFRPSOLDQFH7KLVUHSRUWLVDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIDQDXGLWSHUIRUPHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKGovernment Auditing
StandardsLQFRQVLGHULQJWKHHQWLW\¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURODQGFRPSOLDQFH$FFRUGLQJO\WKLVFRPPXQLFDWLRQLVQRW
VXLWDEOHIRUDQ\RWKHUSXUSRVH



0DUFK
3HQVDFROD)ORULGD
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550,
RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
+RQRUDEOH7DSSLH9LOODQH
6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV
6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD
:HKDYHH[DPLQHGWKH2IILFHRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV¶RI6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD¶V KHUHLQDIWHU
UHIHUUHG WR DV WKH ³6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV´  FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK )ORULGD 6WDWXWH  LQ UHJDUGV WR
LQYHVWPHQWVIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG6HSWHPEHU
0DQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV¶ FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK WKRVH UHTXLUHPHQWV 2XU
UHVSRQVLELOLW\ LV WR H[SUHVV DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV¶ FRPSOLDQFH EDVHG RQ RXU
H[DPLQDWLRQ
2XU H[DPLQDWLRQ ZDV FRQGXFWHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DWWHVWDWLRQ VWDQGDUGV HVWDEOLVKHG E\ WKH $PHULFDQ
,QVWLWXWHRI&HUWLILHG3XEOLF$FFRXQWDQWVDQGDFFRUGLQJO\LQFOXGHGH[DPLQLQJRQDWHVWEDVLVHYLGHQFH
DERXW WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV¶ FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK WKRVH UHTXLUHPHQWV DQG SHUIRUPLQJ VXFK RWKHU
SURFHGXUHVDVZHFRQVLGHUHGQHFHVVDU\LQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHV:HEHOLHYHWKDWRXUH[DPLQDWLRQSURYLGHVD
UHDVRQDEOH EDVLV IRU RXU RSLQLRQ 2XU H[DPLQDWLRQ GRHV QRW SURYLGH D OHJDO GHWHUPLQDWLRQ RQ WKH
6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV¶FRPSOLDQFHZLWKVSHFLILHGUHTXLUHPHQWV
,Q RXU RSLQLRQ WKH 6XSHUYLVRU RI (OHFWLRQV FRPSOLHG LQ DOO PDWHULDO UHVSHFWV ZLWK WKH DIRUHPHQWLRQHG
UHTXLUHPHQWVIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG6HSWHPEHU
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+RQRUDEOH7DSSLH9LOODQH
6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV
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Report on the Financial Statements
:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKHJHQHUDOIXQGRIWKH2IILFHRIWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQVRI
6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\)ORULGD KHUHLQDIWHUUHIHUUHGWRDVWKH³6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV´ DVRIDQGIRUWKH\HDU
HQGHG 6HSWHPEHU   DQG WKH UHODWHG QRWHV WR WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG KDYH LVVXHG RXU UHSRUW
WKHUHRQGDWHG0DUFK

Auditors’ Responsibility
:H FRQGXFWHG RXU DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG LQ WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI
$PHULFDWKHVWDQGDUGVDSSOLFDEOHWRILQDQFLDODXGLWVFRQWDLQHGLQGovernment Auditing StandardsLVVXHGE\
WKH&RPSWUROOHU*HQHUDORIWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVDQG&KDSWHU5XOHVRIWKH)ORULGD$XGLWRU*HQHUDO

Other Reports
:H KDYH LVVXHG RXU ,QGHSHQGHQW $XGLWRUV¶ 5HSRUW RQ ,QWHUQDO &RQWURO 2YHU )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ DQG
&RPSOLDQFH DQG 2WKHU 0DWWHUV %DVHG RQ DQ $XGLW RI )LQDQFLDO 6WDWHPHQWV 3HUIRUPHG LQ $FFRUGDQFH ZLWK
Government Auditing Standards; DQG ,QGHSHQGHQW $FFRXQWDQWV¶ 5HSRUW RQ ([DPLQDWLRQ RI &RPSOLDQFH
5HTXLUHPHQWV LQ $FFRUGDQFH ZLWK &KDSWHU  5XOHV RI WKH $XGLWRU *HQHUDO 'LVFORVXUHV LQ WKRVH
UHSRUWVZKLFKDUHGDWHG0DUFKVKRXOGEHFRQVLGHUHGLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKWKLVPDQDJHPHQWOHWWHU

Prior Audit Findings
6HFWLRQ   L  5XOHV RI WKH $XGLWRU *HQHUDO UHTXLUHV WKDW ZH GHWHUPLQH ZKHWKHU RU QRW FRUUHFWLYH
DFWLRQV KDYH EHHQ WDNHQ WR DGGUHVV ILQGLQJV DQG UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV PDGH LQ WKH SUHFHGLQJ DQQXDO ILQDQFLDO
DXGLWUHSRUW1RUHFRPPHQGDWLRQVZHUHPDGHLQWKHSUHFHGLQJDQQXDOILQDQFLDODXGLWUHSRUW

Other Matters
6HFWLRQ  L 5XOHVRIWKH$XGLWRU*HQHUDOUHTXLUHVWKDWZHDGGUHVVLQWKHPDQDJHPHQWOHWWHUDQ\
UHFRPPHQGDWLRQVWRLPSURYHILQDQFLDOPDQDJHPHQW,QFRQQHFWLRQZLWKRXUDXGLWZHGLGQRWKDYHDQ\VXFK
UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV

6HFWLRQ   L  5XOHV RI WKH $XGLWRU *HQHUDO UHTXLUHV WKDW ZH DGGUHVV QRQFRPSOLDQFH ZLWK
SURYLVLRQVRIFRQWUDFWVRUJUDQWDJUHHPHQWVRUDEXVHWKDWKDYHRFFXUUHGRUDUHOLNHO\WRKDYHRFFXUUHG
WKDWKDYHDQHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWLVOHVVWKDQPDWHULDOEXWZKLFKZDUUDQWVWKHDWWHQWLRQRI
WKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFH,QFRQQHFWLRQZLWKRXUDXGLWZHGLGQRWKDYHDQ\VXFKILQGLQJV




Purpose of this Letter
2XU PDQDJHPHQW OHWWHU LV LQWHQGHG VROHO\ IRU WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG XVH RI WKH /HJLVODWLYH $XGLWLQJ
&RPPLWWHHPHPEHUVRIWKH)ORULGD6HQDWHDQGWKH)ORULGD+RXVHRI5HSUHVHQWDWLYHVWKH)ORULGD$XGLWRU
*HQHUDOWKH6XSHUYLVRURI(OHFWLRQV6DQWD5RVD&RXQW\%RDUGRI&RXQW\&RPPLVVLRQHUVDQGDSSOLFDEOH
PDQDJHPHQW DQG LV QRW LQWHQGHG WR EH DQG VKRXOG QRW EH XVHG E\ DQ\RQH RWKHU WKDQ WKHVH VSHFLILHG
SDUWLHV




0DUFK
3HQVDFROD)ORULGD




Santa Rosa County, Florida Supervisor of Elections
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE TO MENAGMENT LETTER
September 30, 2014

7KHUHDUHQRFRPPHQWVZKLFKUHTXLUHPDQDJHPHQW¶VZULWWHQUHVSRQVH




